

Annex

Updated Indicative Heads of Terms

To the document entitled "

Carbon Capture, Usage and Storage: (CCS) Network Code – Updated Indicative Heads of Terms"

Consultation draft

December <u>2022</u>2023



Disclaimer:

- The details, as set out in this document, in whatever form they are expressed, are indicative only and do not constitute an offer by government and do not create a basis for any form of expectation or reliance. Parties are expected to get their own financial and legal advice.
- The business models referred to are not final and are subject to further development by the government, and approval by Ministers, in consultation with relevant regulators and the devolved administrations, as well as the development and Parliamentary approval of any necessary legislation, and completion of necessary contractual documentation.
- Government reserves the right to review and amend all provisions, for any reason and in particular to ensure that any proposals provide value for money (VfM) and are consistent with the current subsidy control regime.



© Crown copyright 2022 2023

This publication is licensed under the terms of the Open Government Licence v3.0 except where otherwise stated. To view this licence, visit

<u>nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3</u> or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email: <u>psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk</u>.

Where we have identified any third-party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned.

Any enquiries regarding this publication should be sent to us at: enquiries@beis.gov.uk [codes.engagement@energysecurity.gov.uk]

CONTENTS

CCS Network Code Updated Indicative Heads of Terms

	PAGE
SECTION	PAGE
SECTION A: INTRODUCTION, STRUCTURE AND INTERPRETATION	4
SECTION B: GOVERNANCE	9 10
SECTION C: CONNECTION	38 47
SECTION D: NETWORK STRUCTURE AND PLANNING	39 <u>54</u>
SECTION E: NETWORK USE AND CAPACITY	40 <u>55</u>
SECTION F: NETWORK DESIGN AND SPECIFICATION	53 <u>79</u>
SECTION G: INDUSTRIAL PROCEDURES	61 <u>90</u>
SECTION H: CHARGES, INVOICING AND PAYMENT	65 <u>95</u>
SECTION I: GENERAL	80 DATA 112
SECTION J: GENERAL	<u>126</u>
SECTION K: GLOSSARY	103 <u>141</u>
EXHIBIT A: CODE ACCESSION AGREEMENT	117 <u>160</u>
EXHIBIT B: CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT	122 165
EXHIBIT C: CONNECTION AGREEMENT	134 <u>183</u>
EXHIBIT D: CDS ACCESSION AGREEMENT	<u>191</u>
ANNEXURE A: CARBON DIOXIDE SPECIFICATIONS - GENERAL	<u>142</u> 192
ANNEXURE B: CARBON DIOXIDE SPECIFICATIONS — ECC	143 (NORTHERN ENDURANCE
PARTNERSHIP) 193	
ANNEXURE C—: CARBON DIOXIDE SPECIFICATIONS — LBA	145(HYNET) 196
ANNEXURE D—: MEASUREMENT REQUIREMENTS (ECCNORTHERN EN	DURANCE PARTNERSHIP)
147 <u>198</u>	
ANNEXURE E—: MEASUREMENT REQUIREMENTS (LBAHYNET)	148 199
ANNEXURE F: EMERGENCY PROCEDURE TERMS OF REFERENCE	200
ANNEXURE G: COMMISSIONING PROCEDURE TERMS OF REFERENCE	
ANNEXURE H: ISOLATION PROCEDURE TERMS OF REFERENCE	203
ANNEXURE I: MINIMUM DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS	204
ANNEXURE J: INFORMATION PUBLICATION REQUIREMENTS	205
ANNEXURE K: RETAINED DATA	206
ANNEXURE L: CDS TERMS OF REFERENCE	207
ANNEXURE M: INDEPENDENT VERIFIER TERMS OF REFERENCE	208
ANNEXURE N: NETWORK PORTAL TERMS OF REFERENCE	<u>209</u>

SECTION A: INTRODUCTION, STRUCTURE AND INTERPRETATION

No	Subject	Terms			
1.	Introduction	1.1	This document is the CCS Network Code prepared and maintained by each T&SCo pursuant to Standard Licence Condition [x] of its Licence.		
			Note: it is expected that the licence conditions of T&SCo's Licence will require each T&SCo to have a network code with an acknowledgement that this single uniform Code will satisfy that requirement, unless otherwise specified in the T&SCo's licence.		
		1.2	The Code sets out the commercial and technical rules and arrangements between T&SCos and Users, and between individual T&SCos, in relation to:		
			(a) the connection by Users to a T&S Network, or part of a T&S Network;		
			(b) the delivery of carbon dioxide by Users into the T&S Network at a Delivery Point;		
			(c) the transportation and storage of carbon dioxide delivered by Users at Delivery Points;		
			(d) the operation and maintenance of each T&S Network; and		
			(e) the interface between T&SCos in relation to different T&S Networks or parts of a T&S Network.		
2.	Parties	2.1	For the purposes of the Code:		
			(a) "T&SCo" means, in relation to each T&S Network or part of a T&S Network, the entity that is the holder of a Licence authorising it to operate that T&S Network or part of a T&S Network; and		
			(b) "User" means a person other than T&SCo who is bound by the provisions of this Code and delivers carbon dioxide into the T&S Network at a Delivery Point.		
		2.2	For the purposes of the Code:		
			(a) a "Party" means a T&SCo or a User;		
			(b) in the context of any Ancillary Agreement, references to "Parties" are to the T&SCo or a User who is party to that agreement;		
			(c) where a right or obligation is imposed on a T&SCo, then, unless otherwise specified, that right or obligation relates to the T&S Network, or part of a T&S Network, to which the Licence held by that T&SCo relates;		

No	Subject	Terms		
			(d)	a reference to T&SCos is a reference to all T&SCos collectively; and
			(e)	anything required to be done by T&SCos which is done by or on behalf of all of them shall be treated as having been done by all of them.
3.	Contractual effect	3.1		Code is made binding on a T&SCo or a User pursuant e Code Agreement.
			T&SC	Co
		3.2	Each	T&SCo shall enter into:
			(a)	the Code Agreement or a Code Accession Agreement; and
			<u>(b)</u>	the CDS Contract or
			(b)	an a CDS Accession Agreement.
			case Agree will s	: subject to commencement timing it may be the that multiple parties will sign the initial Code ement and/or that all initial T&SCos and initial Usersign the Code Agreement or Accession Agreement to the Code commencing.
			User	accession
		3.3	perso	der to become a User in relation to a T&S Network, a n must satisfy or secure satisfaction of the following rements:
			(a)	the applicant shall have entered into:
				(i) the Code Agreement or ana Code Accession Agreement;
				(ii) a Construction Agreement with T&SCo and
				(iii) a Connection Agreement with T&SCo,
				and each document shall have become effective in accordance with its terms;
			(b)	the applicant shall have provided to T&SCo, in the form prescribed by T&SCo from time to time, the applicant's name, legal nature and address, and any other information that is required to be provided as part of the connection process set out in Section C (<i>Connection</i>); and
			(c)	the applicant shall have provided the emergency contact details required under Section G (<i>Industrial procedures</i>).

No	Subject	Terms			
4.	Structure	4.1	The C	Code co	mprises:
			(a)	the fo	llowing sections of the main body:
				(i)	this Section A: Introduction, structure and interpretation;
				(ii)	Section B: Governance;
				(iii)	Section C: Connection;
				(iv)	Section D: Network structure and planning;
				(v)	Section E: Network use and capacity;
				(vi)	Section F: Network design and specification;
				(vii)	Section G: Industrial procedures;
				(viii)	Section H: Charges, invoicing and payment;
				(ix)	Section I: <u>Data;</u>
				<u>(x)</u>	Section J: General; and
				<u>(xi)</u>	(x)-Section ∃ <u>K</u> : Glossary.
			(b)	the fo	ollowing exhibits:
				(i)	Exhibit A: Code Accession Agreement;
				(ii)	Exhibit B: Construction Agreement; and
				(iii)	Exhibit C: Connection Agreement; and
				<u>(iv)</u>	Exhibit D: CDS Accession Agreement.
				the (the Code Agreement, which will be signed by Original T&SCos and the Initial Users, is led as an exhibit to the <u>Code</u> Accession ement.
			(c)	the fo	llowing annexures:
				(i)	Annexure A: Carbon Dioxide Specifications – General;
				(ii)	Annexure B: Carbon Dioxide Specifications ([EEC]Northern Endurance Partnership T&S Network);
				(iii)	Annexure C: Carbon Dioxide Specifications (LBA]HyNet T&S Network);
				(iv)	Annexure D: Measurement Requirements (<u>FECC</u> <u>Northern Endurance Partnership</u> T&S

No	Subject	Terms
		Network); and
		(v) Annexure E: Measurement Requirements (<u>FLBA]HyNet</u> T&S Network)-;
		Note: the annexures will set out information specific to each T&S Network. The process for
		introducing new annexures applying to new T&S Networks will be part of the accession process to the Code by new T&SCos.
		(vi) Annexure F: Emergency Procedure Terms of Reference;
		(vii) Annexure G: Commissioning Procedure Terms of Reference;
		(viii) Annexure H: Isolation Procedure Terms of Reference;
		(ix) Annexure I: Minimum Documentation Requirements;
		(x) <u>Annexure J: Information Publication</u> <u>Requirements;</u>
		(xi) Annexure K: Retained Data;
		(xii) Annexure L: CDS Terms of Reference;
		(xiii) Annexure M: Independent Verifier Terms of Reference; and
		(xiv) Annexure N: T&S Network Portal Terms of Reference.
		4.2 Sections A to J, Exhibits A to C D and Annexure A]Annexures A, F, G, H, I, J, K, L, M are referred to as the "Uniform Provisions" and apply equally to all T&S Networks, while Annexures B to E, referred to as the "Specific Provisions", are specific to each individual T&S Network-and.
		4.3 The Exhibits include the prescribed forms for the Ancillary Agreements.
		4.4 Where applicable, parties are required to enter into Ancillary Agreements in the form of the template set out in the relevant Exhibit and in accordance with any "Drafting instruction" set out in the template (save that where the contents of the schedules in the Ancillary Agreements are require further population, any information to be populated shall be specific to each User). Any departures from the template of an Ancillary Agreement as set out in the relevant Exhibit (including to the terms of any schedule and any "Drafting instruction") shall be dealt

No	Subject	Terms		
			with \	via the modification procedure under Section B.
5.	Interpretation - general	5.1	expre Condi have	s the context otherwise requires, words and ssions defined in the Act or the Standard Licence tions and not otherwise defined in the Code shall the meaning given to them in the Act or the lard Licence Conditions.
		5.2	Code	ences to the Code (or any part thereof) are to the (or such part thereof) as from time to time modified ordance with the Modification Rules.
		5.3	a "re direct consu perso	erence in the context of any provision of the Code to presentative" of any person is a reference to any for, officer or employee of that person or any agent, eltant or contractor appointed or engaged by that in for purposes connected with the subject matter of elevant provision of the Code.
		5.4	direct comm "contr Corpo expre	Affiliate", in relation to a party, is any entity that by or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under non control with that party from time to time and rol" has the meaning given in section 1124 of the pration Tax Act 2010 and controls, controlled and the ssion "change of control" shall be interpreted dingly.
6.	Interpretation	6.1	For th	ne purposes of the Code:
	- times and dates		(a)	"Day" means the 24 hour period from 00:00 hours (midnight) until 23:59 hours;
			(b)	"Business Day" means a Day other than:
				(i) a Saturday or a Sunday; or
				(ii) a Day which begins at 00:00 hours on a bank holiday in England, Wales or Scotland;
			<u>(c)</u>	"Calendar Week" means a period of 7 Days starting on Monday:
			<u>(d)</u>	(c)—"Charging Year" means the period from 1 April in any year until and including 31 March in the following year;
			<u>(e)</u>	(d) unless the context otherwise requires, "carbon dioxide" means a stream consisting primarily of carbon dioxide (CO ₂) molecules and references to carbon dioxide being delivered by a User to the T&S Network assume that the gaseous stream being delivered is carbon dioxide;
			<u>(f)</u>	(e) -references to:
				(i) a calendar day (such as 1 January) or a day-

No	Subject	Terms		
				of the week (such as Sunday) is to the Daywhich begins at 00:00 hours on that day;
			<u>(i)</u>	(ii) a week is to the period from 00:00 hours on a day until 23:59 hours on the 7th day following;
			<u>(ii)</u>	(iii)—a month (or a number of months) is to the period from 00:00 hours on a day in one month until 00:00 hours on the same day of the month which follows (or follows by the relevant number of months), or if there is no such day in such month 00:00 on the first day of the next following month;
			(iii)	(iv) a calendar month is to the period from 00:00 hours on the first day of a month until 00:00 hours on the first day of the following month, and references to a particular calendar month (such as January) shall be construed accordingly;
			<u>(iv)</u>	(v) a year is to the period from 00:00 hours on a day in one year until 00:00 hours on the same day (or where the day in the first year was 29 February, on 1 March) in the following year;
			<u>(v)</u>	(vi) a calendar year (such as 2022) is to be construed accordingly;
			<u>(vi)</u>	(vii) each reference in this Code to any time of the day shall, unless otherwise stated, be construed as a reference to London time.
		<u>(g)</u>	capita	unless the context otherwise requires, alised terms have the meanings set out in on $\frac{1}{2}$ (Glossary).

SECTION B: GOVERNANCE

This proposed governance framework is being developed concurrently with:

- the development of reforms to the equivalent processes under the gas and electricity industry; and
- as set out in the transport and storage business model January 2022 update, the consultation and development of the Future System Operator.

It is likely that regard may need to be had to the outcome of these processes in finalising this governance framework.

No	Subject	Terms	
1.	Modification Panel	1.1	Each T&SCo, together with the other T&SCos, is required to operate a procedure for the Modification of the CCS Network Code so as to better facilitate the achievement of the Relevant Objectives in accordance with the terms of its Licence.
		1.2	The T&SCos shall ensure that a Modification Panel is established within three (3) months from the Code Implementation Date. The Modification Panel will be comprised of:
			(a) the Panel Chairperson, being a non-voting Member;
			(b) six (6) T&SCo Representatives, being Voting Members;
			(c) six (6) User Representatives, being Voting Members, with at least one representative of each User Type; and
			(d) one (1) representative of the Authority, <u>being a non-voting Member; and</u>
			(e) one (1) representative of the Secretary of State, being a non-voting Member.
			Panel Chairperson
		1.3	The Panel Chairperson shall be appointed by majority vote of the Modification Panel and shall serve as Panel Chairperson until such time as their appointment expires in accordance with paragraph 1.31.
			T&SCo Representatives
		1.4	Subject to paragraph 1.13, the T&SCos shall appoint (and as the case may be re-appoint) up to six (6) T&SCo Representatives to the Modification Panel.
		1.5	Subject to paragraph 1.6 and 1.7, each T&SCo will have an equal representation of T&SCo Representatives and in such circumstances each T&SCo shall have absolute discretion over the individuals that it appoints as the

No	Subject	Terms	
			T&SCo Representative(s) representing that T&SCo.
		1.6	Subject to paragraph 1.7, where the number of T&SCos and the limit of six (6) T&SCo Representatives prevents equal representation in accordance with paragraph 1.5, each T&SCo shall have at least one T&SCo Representative (the identify of whom shall be determined in that T&SCo's absolute discretion) and the T&SCos shall collectively by agreement appoint any additional T&SCo Representatives to reach 6 T&SCo Representatives.
		1.7	Where the number of T&SCos and the limit of six (6) T&SCo Representatives prevents each T&SCo having at least one T&SCo Representative, the T&SCos shall collectively by agreement appoint the T&SCo Representatives.
		1.8	The Authority shall (itself or through a designated independent person appointed by the Authority) appoint the T&SCo Representatives where the T&SCos are unable to collectively agree upon the identity of any T&SCo Representatives under paragraph 1.6, 1.7 or 1.39 .
			Users' Representatives
		1.9	Subject to paragraph 1.13, the Users shall appoint (and as the case may be re-appoint) up to six (6) User Representatives to the Modification Panel.
		1.10	Subject to paragraph 1.11 and 1.12, each User will have an equal representation of User Representatives and in such circumstances each User shall have absolute discretion over the individuals that it appoints as the User Representative(s) representing that User.
		1.11	Subject to paragraph 1.12, where the number of Users and the limit of six (6) User Representatives prevents equal representation in accordance with paragraph 1.10, each User shall have at least one User Representative (the identity of whom shall be determined in that User's absolute discretion) and the Users shall collectively by agreement appoint any additional User Representatives to reach 6 User Representatives.
		1.12	Where the number of Users and the limit of 6 User Representatives prevents each User having at least one User Representative, the Users shall collectively by agreement appoint the User Representatives, provided that there is at least one User Representative for each User Type.
		1.13	Where there are more than six (6) User Types, <u>from</u> the date upon which any such additional User Types

No	Subject	Terms	
			accede to the Code, the number of User Representatives and T&SCo Representatives on the Modification Panel shall be increased to the number of User Types.
		Note:	Consideration to be given to how User Types will be defined so as to provide fair representation. (and where such accession occurs after the Modification Panel has been established in accordance with paragraph 1.2, the process in paragraphs 1.4 to 1.14 shall apply to the appointment of any additional User Representatives and/or T&SCo Representatives).
		1.14	The Authority shall (itself or through a designated independent person appointed by the Authority) appoint the relevant User Representatives where the Users (or Users of a User Type) are unable to collectively agree upon the identity of any User Representatives under paragraph 1.11, 1.12 or 1.40.
			Secretary
		1.15	The T&SCos shall collectively appoint an individual representative to act as the Secretary. The Secretary shall $\underline{:}$
			(a) attend meetings of the Modification Panel and:
			(b) carry out the various tasks and duties assigned to it in this section B (Governance); and
			(c) at all times act and take decisions in an impartial, objective and balanced manner
		1.16	The Authority shall (itself or through a designated independent person appointed by the Authority) appoint the Secretary where the T&SCos are unable to collectively agree upon the identity of the Secretary under paragraph 1.15.
		1.17	Each T&SCo shall be responsible for funding an equal proportion of the costs and expenditure incurred by the Secretary in the carrying out of the various tasks and duties assigned to it in this section B (<i>Governance</i>).
		1.18	Ву:
			(a) the date that is one month after the Code Implementation Date in relation to the first Charging Year; and
			(b) 30th October each Charging Year thereafter,
			the Secretary shall prepare and submit to the Modification Panel and the Authority for the Modification

No	Subject	Terms	
			Panel's approval:
			(c) a Resource Plan; and
			(d) Budget Forecast,
			("Resource Plan and Budget Forecast") in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 1.19 and 1.20.
		1.19	The Resource Plan shall include provision for the level of resources that the Secretary considers necessary to undertake its functions, including any:
			(a) suitable facilities for business purposes;
			(b) office equipment, including telephones and other communication devices or computer workstations
			(c) office furniture; and
			(d) any applications developed for internal or external business purposes.
		1.20	The Budget Forecast shall set out:
			(a) the itemised budget forecast expenditure for each line item of resource to be provided;
			(b) the estimated aggregate funds required to implement the resource plan; and
			(c) such other costs and expenses to be incurred or likely to be incurred by the Secretary.
		1.21	The Modification Panel shall, as quickly as practicable and in any event within ten (1)010 Business Days of receipt of the Resource Plan and Budget Forecast, determine whether or not to approve the proposed Resource Plan and Budget Forecast and shall within such ten (10) Business Day period either notify the Secretary of its approval or, in the event that the Modification Panel reasonably withholds its approval, notify the Secretary of any changes or variations to the proposed Resource Plan and Budget Forecast recommended by the Modification Panel. If the Secretary does not accept such changes or variations submitted by the Modification Panel, any such dispute or difference shall be referred to the Authority to be determined by the Authority.
		1.22	Within one month of the end of each Charging Year, the Secretary shall prepare and submit to the Modification Panel and the Authority an Expenses Claim setting out the details of any Secretary Expenditure (net of VAT)

No	Subject	Terms	
			during that Charging Year, together with reasonable supporting evidence in relation to such expenses ("Secretary's Expenses Claim").
		1.23	On receipt of the Secretary's Expenses Claim, the Modification Panel shall, within ten (10) Business Days prepare and circulate to the Parties a statement setting out for the relevant Charging Year its determination of:
			(a) the budgeted expenditure under the Resource Plan;
			(b) taxes or duties chargeable, if any;
			(c) the proportion of the Secretary Expenditure payable by, each Party in accordance with the principle of equal apportionment as set out in paragraph 1.17; and
			(d) any other information the Modification Panel, in its reasonable discretion, considers relevant,
			("Draft Statement of Expenses").
		1.24	If a Party disputes the Draft Statement of Expenses (or any part of it), it shall, within five (5) Business Days of the date of the Draft Statement of Expenses notify the Modification Panel and the Secretary with details of the dispute (an "Expenses Dispute Notification") and, within a further five (5) Business Days, provide such supporting evidence as the Modification Panel may reasonably require.
		1.25	Within five (5) Business Days of the notice period for disputes under Paragraph 1.24 expiring, the Modification Panel shall:
			(a) (where no Expenses Dispute Notification has been made) notify the Parties and the Secretary that the Draft Statement of Expenses is final; or
			(b) (where one or more Expenses Dispute Notifications have been made) circulate to the Parties and the Secretary a revised statement of expenses which shall reflect the undisputed part of the Secretary Expenses Claim only,
			("Final Statement of Expenses").
		1.26	The Modification Panel shall consider all disputes under Paragraph 1.24 and shall make a determination, which shall be notified to the Parties and the Secretary within fifteen (15) Business Days of the notice period for disputes under Paragraph 1.24 expiring.
		1.27	Determinations under Paragraph 1.26 shall be reflected

No	Subject	Terms	
			in the next following Draft Statement of Expenses to be issued under Paragraph 1.23, and any Party that made an Expenses Dispute Notification may not make an Expenses Dispute Notification in respect of that part or parts of the Draft Statement of Expenses that were subject to the earlier dispute.
		1.28	Following receipt by the Modification Panel of the Final Statement of Expenses, the Secretary may invoice each of the T&SCos for its proportion of the Secretary Expenditure, together with VAT, for each Charging Year, as set out in the Final Statement of Expenses.
		1.29	Each T&SCo shall pay any amount due under paragraph 1.28 to the Secretary within thirty (30) days of the amount being invoiced to it.
		1.30	The allocation of funding between the Parties under paragraph 1.17 shall be reviewed by the Authority once every two years from the Code Implementation Date.
			Appointments and retirements
		1.31	Each Voting Member shall be appointed for a two (2) year period commencing on 1 October and ending with effect from the second anniversary of such date ("Appointment Period").
		1.32	Each Voting Member shall retire at end of their Appointment Period.
		1.33	Each retiring Member shall be eligible for re-appointment, save that where additional Voting Members have been appointed pursuant to paragraphs 1.6, 1.7, 1.8 (in the case of T&SCo Representatives), or paragraphs 1.11, 1.12 or 1.14 (in the case of User Representatives) and subject always to paragraphs 1.39 and 1.40, such Voting Members will be appointed for a maximum of one Appointment Period.
		1.34	Any Voting Member who is, pursuant to paragraph 1.32 to retire and who is not to be re-appointed (and consequently in respect of whom no notice shall have been received pursuant to paragraphs 1.35 or paragraph 1.36) shall not be entitled to receive notice of any meeting of the Modification Panel which is to take place after the end of their Appointment Period.
		1.35	In respect of each individual who is a T&SCo Representative, the T&SCos shall, not later than 1st September in the year following the year in respect of which the T&SCo's Representative's Appointment Period commences, notify the Secretary:
			(a) that such individual is to be re-appointed as a

No	Subject	Terms	
			T&SCo Representative; or
			(b) that such individual is not to be so re-appointed and the identity of the individual to be appointed as a T&SCo Representative.
		1.36	In respect of each individual who is a User Representative, each User shall, not later than 1st September in the year following the year in respect of which the Users' Representative's Appointment Period commences, notify the Secretary (copying the notice to the Authority):
			(a) that such individual is to be re-appointed as a User Representative; or
			(b) that such individual is not to be so re-appointed at the relevant meeting and the identity of the individual to be appointed as a User Representative.
		1.37	Where any notice is received pursuant to paragraphs 1.35 or 1.36, the appointment or, as the case may be, the re-appointment to which such notice relates shall have effect from the 1 October specified in such notice. Each individual who is to be appointed or, as the case may be, reappointed as a Member at that meeting shall be entitled to receive notice of any meeting of the Modification Panel which is to take place after the commencement of their Appointment Period.
		1.38	If notices shall be received in accordance with paragraph 1.35 or 1.36 in respect of less than six (6) individuals to be appointed (or, as the case may be, reappointed) as User Representatives or T&SCo Representatives (as applicable) all individuals identified in such notices shall, pursuant to paragraph 1.35 or 1.36 (as applicable) be appointed (or, as the case may be, reappointed) and the individuals who are, pursuant to paragraph 1.32, to retire and in respect of whom no notice shall have been received pursuant to paragraph 1.35(a) or paragraph 1.36(a), shall retire at the end of their Appointment Period.
		1.39	If less than six (6) individuals are appointed (or, as the case may be, reappointed) as T&SCo Representatives the T&SCos shall collectively by agreement appoint the individuals to act as additional T&SCo Representatives (and paragraph 1.32 shall not apply to any such appointment).
		1.40	If less than six (6) individuals are appointed (or, as the case may be, reappointed) as User Representatives the Users shall collectively by agreement appoint the individuals to act as additional User Representatives (and paragraph 1.32 shall not apply to any such

No	Subject	Terms	
			appointment).
			Ceasing to be a Member
		1.41	A Member shall, other than by way of retirement pursuant to paragraph 1.32, cease to be a Member where:
			(a) the Member notifies the Secretary that they wish to cease to be a Member; or
			(b) in the case of a Voting Member, the Member is absent from three (3) consecutive monthly meetings (convened in accordance with paragraph 1.461.48) of the Modification Panel.
		<u>1.42</u>	If at any time after the Modification Panel has been established in accordance with paragraph 1.2:
			(a) an existing User has more than one Voting Member;
			(b) and/or a new User accedes to the Code,
			such existing User or Users shall, by notice to the Secretary in accordance with paragraph 1.41, remove one or more Voting Members from their membership as is necessary to maintain the principle of equal representation set out in paragraph 1.10, based on the new number of Users (and the principles set out in paragraphs 1.4 to 1.14 shall apply to any replacement Voting Members).
		<u>1.43</u>	If at any time after the Modification Panel has been established in accordance with paragraph 1.2:
			(a) an existing T&SCo has more than one Voting Member; and
			(b) a new T&SCo accedes to the Code,
		7 1 7 5	such existing T&SCos shall by notice to the Secretary in accordance with paragraph 1.41, remove one or more Voting Members from their membership as is necessary to maintain the principle of equal representation set out in paragraph 1.10, based on the new number of T&SCos and the principles set out in paragraphs 1.4 to 1.14 shall apply to any replacement Voting Members).
		<u>1.44</u>	1.42 Where pursuant to paragraph 1.41 or otherwise a vacancy shall arise, subject always to the principles set out in paragraphs 1.4 to 1.14 in the case of:
			(a) a T&SCo Representative, the T&SCos shall, by notice to the Secretary, identify another individual to be appointed as a T&SCo-

No	Subject	Terms	
			Representative;
			(b) a User Representative, the Users shall, by notice to the Secretary, identify another individual to be appointed as a User Representative.
			Meetings of the Panel
		<u>1.45</u>	1.43 Meetings of the Modification Panel will provide a forum in which Modifications Proposals can be discussed in accordance with the Modification Procedures.
		<u>1.46</u>	1.44-Except as otherwise permitted in the Code:
			(a) determinations of the Modification Panel shall be made by Panel Majority; and
			(b) Workgroups may be created or dissolved by Panel Majority,
			where "Panel Majority" shall mean
			(c) a majority (in number) of the votes exercised by the Voting Members present at that meeting and voting in favour of such matter; or
			(d) if there is an equal number of votes by the Voting Members present at that meeting in favour of and against such matter, where the representative of the Authority elects to exercise a casting vote in favour of such matter.
			Frequency of meetings
		<u>1.47</u>	1.45 The Secretary shall convene meetings of the Modification Panel by notice to the Members not less frequently than once each month unless there is no matter as an agenda item for the Modification Panel to discuss. In any event, a meeting of the Modification Panel will be convened once every three calendar months.
			Notice convening meetings
		<u>1.48</u>	1.46 The Secretary shall be responsible for providing notices of meetings with agendas and materials in relation to the matters to be considered at the meeting.
			Location and Form of Meetings
		<u>1.49</u>	1.47 Meetings of the Modification Panel may take place by any audio, audio-visual or interactive communication, provided that each Member shall be able to communicate to each of the other Members and be heard by each of the other Members simultaneously.

No	Subject	Terms	
		1.50	1.48 Any Member who shall be able to participate in the manner envisaged by paragraph 1.471.49 in any meeting of the Modification Panel shall be treated as being present at such meeting, notwithstanding that the Members may not all be meeting in the same place and accordingly shall, if such Member is a voting Member, be entitled to vote and shall count towards a quorum.
		<u>1.51</u>	1.49 Where any Member is unable to attend a meeting of the Modification Panel such Member shall be entitled to appoint another person as their proxy to exercise all or any of their rights to attend and to speak and vote at such meeting, provided that notice of such appointment is given to the Secretary no later than twenty-four (24) hours prior to such meeting taking place.
			Quorum
		<u>1.52</u>	1.50—Eight (8) Members, of whom four (4) shall be T&SCo Representatives and four (4) shall be User Representatives present at a meeting of the Modification Panel shall be a quorum.
			Voting
		<u>1.53</u>	1.51—Any matter expressed to require a determination of the Modification Panel shall be determined by a vote.
		<u>1.54</u>	1.52 On any vote each Voting Member present shall be entitled to exercise a vote. Where there is:
			(a) an equal number of T&SCo Representatives and User Representatives present, each Voting member shall be entitled to exercise one (1) vote; and
			(b) an unequal number of T&SCo Representatives and User Representatives present, votes shall be weighted such that:
			(i) there shall be an equal number of voting rights between T&SCo Representatives and User Representatives; and
			(ii) each T&SCo Representative and User Representative has equally weighted voting rights.
		<u>1.55</u>	1.53 Subject to paragraph 1.541.56, it is expected that each Voting Member shall, as appropriate, represent and inform the Modification Panel of the views of that Member's appointor (or appointors) in relation to Modification Proposals.
			Note: i.e. if a User Representative is appointed by a

No	Subject	Terms	
			User it would be entitled to reflect the views of that User, if it was appointed by Users within a User Type it would be expected to reflect the views of the Users of that User Type.
		<u>1.56</u>	1.54—Where a Voting Member has been appointed by the Authority pursuant to paragraph 1.8 or 1.14, such Voting Member shall represent and inform the Modification Panel of the views of the T&SCo, User or User Type (as applicable) of which that Voting Member is a part, in relation to Modification Proposals.
		<u>1.57</u>	1.55 A resolution in writing signed in wet ink or electronically by Voting Members shall be valid and effective for the purposes of discharging any function requiring a determination of the Modification Panel as if such vote were conducted in accordance with paragraph 1.511.53 at a duly convened meeting of the Modification Panel provided that votes are received by the Secretary from such Members as would, if present, form a quorum in accordance with paragraph 1.501.52 not later than three (3) Business Days (or such shorter period as the Secretary may reasonably notify) following receipt by Voting Members of such documents as are necessary for the purposes of such written resolution.
			Observers and Invitees
		<u>1.58</u>	1.56 The Panel Chairperson may at its discretion, authorise any individual (who is not a Member) to attend a meeting of the Modification Panel as an observer on behalf of a User or T&SCo and to participate in the business of the meeting.
		<u>1.59</u>	1.57 The Modification Panel and/or the Authority may, from time to time, determine to invite any individual to attend all or part of a meeting of the Modification Panel.
		1.60	1.58—Where such an invitation is made, the Secretary shall give as much notice as reasonably practicable to Members of the Modification Panel of the name of the individual invited, the organisation that the individual represents and the date of the relevant meeting(s). Where the Authority requests the Secretary to invite any individual, the Secretary shall set out in writing to the Authority details of any objections that the Parties may have to such attendance.
		<u>1.61</u>	1.59 Any invitee to a meeting of the Modification Panel pursuant to paragraph 1.581.60 shall be entitled to receive copies of any relevant minutes, agendas, notices and Modification Proposals due to be discussed at that meeting (but shall not be entitled to participate in the business of the meeting).
	1		

No	Subject	Terms	
2.	Third Party Participants	<u>2.1</u>	The Authority shall have the right (but not the obligation) to designate, from time to time, any person or body who is not a party to the Code but who is representative of interested third parties to participate in the Modification Procedure as a third party participant ("Third Party Participant").
		<u>2.2</u>	Third Party Participants may include (but are not limited to), a future User and/or T&SCo as identified under the Selection Process.
		<u>2.3</u>	Any such designation made under paragraph 2.1, shall be made in writing, and shall be maintained on a register held by the Authority.
<u>3.</u> 2.	Modification		Modification proposals Proposals
	Procedure	<u>3.1</u>	2.1 A Modification Proposal in respect of the Code may be made from time to time by:
			(a) a T&SCo
			(b) a User;
			(c) a Third Party Participant;
			(d) the Authority, where such Modification Proposal is a Significant Code Review Modification Proposal or an Urgent Modification Proposal; or
			(e) (c) the Secretary of State.
		<u>3.2</u>	The Authority may direct a T&SCo to make a Significant Code Review Modification Proposal and the T&SCo shall make a proposal in accordance with that direction and such a proposal shall proceed in accordance with the Modification Procedures.
		<u>3.3</u>	A T&SCo, a User, or a Third Party Participant may not make a Modification Proposal during the relevant Significant Code Review Phase if the subject matter of such proposal relates to a matter which is the subject of a Significant Code Review, unless the Authority directs that it may do so, having taken into account, among other things, the urgency of the subject matter of such proposal.
			Form of Modification Proposals
		<u>3.4</u>	2.2 Each Modification Proposal made pursuant to paragraph 2.1 3.1:
			(a) shall state the Proposer's view as to:
			(i) whether it should be a Self-Governance Modification Proposal and the Proposer's

No	Subject	Terms
		reasons for such a view; and
		(ii) whether, if the Proposer's view is that should be a Self-Governance Modification it satisfies the Fast Track Self Governance Procedure and the Proposer's reasons for such a view;
		(b) shall where it is made pursuant to a direction of the Authority state that it is so made;
		 in the case of a Modification which proposes timescale for the implementation of the Modification (for the purposes of enabling the Authority and any persons, including but not limited to Users, T&SCos and Third Part Participants to be aware of the potential benefit or constraints associated with such timing except in the case where the Authority had directed a timetable in accordance with paragraph 3.72 and/or 3.73, where only on Fixed Implementation Date may be included shall include: two or more Fixed Implementation Dates a Proposed Authority Decision Date in respect of each Fixed Implementation Date, for the purposes of enabling the Modification to be implemented by the Fixed Implementation Date; a Backstop Lead Time; and the reasons why it is proposing each date
		under paragraph (i), (ii) and (iii).
		(d) shall be in writing;
		(e) shall set out the information in reasonable by not excessive detail the case for change and be in the form specified in the Code.solution proposed;
		Note: Requirements of a Proposal to be developed but it will include as a minimum the justification for the proposed modification,
		(f) shall detail the sections and paragraphs of th Code which are potentially impacted by th Modification Proposal;
		(g) shall, if the Proposer considers that the Modification Proposal should be treated as a Urgent Modification Proposal, identify the Modification Proposal as such and indicate the

No	Subject	Terms			
				Propos	ser's justification for such belief;
			<u>(h)</u>	shall s details	tate the name of the Proposer and contact
			<u>(i)</u>	Panel's	without prejudice to the Modification s right of determination pursuant to raph 3.14, state the Proposer's preference whether the Modification Proposal should:
				<u>(i)</u>	proceed to Consultation;
				<u>(ii)</u>	proceed to Workgroup Assessment; or
				<u>(iii)</u>	where paragraph 3.4(a)(ii) applies, be implemented;
			<u>(i)</u>	impac Propos	state the Proposer's opinion of the likely t of the implementation of the Modification sal upon User's computer systems and/or al processes and procedures;
			<u>(k)</u>	may ir	nclude the Proposer's suggested text;
			<u>(1)</u>		it is a Significant Code Review made by thority shall state that it is such; and
			<u>(m)</u>	impler follow Consu	state the proposed timeframe for the mentation, suggested process to be ed through of the Modification Rules (ieltation, Workgroup, Self-Governance sal etc)Proposal.
		<u>3.5</u>			ation Panel may, from time to time, form which Modification Proposals should
		3.6	maint	ain an	retary shall be required to establish and online register of all Modification Proposals e made publicly available.
		<u>3.7</u>	Secre require the fo	tary we red pursorm of t	dification Proposal shall be given to the ho shall ensure that the information suant to the Code has been provided, and the Modification is as specified in the Code sing such Modification Proposal.
		3.8	comp	ly with	purported Modification Proposal, does not paragraph 2.23.2 the Secretary may reject cation Proposal.
		<u>3.9</u>	2.6 O shall:	n receiț	ot of a Modification Proposal, the Secretary
			(a)	allocat	te a unique reference number to that

No	Subject	Terms			
				propos	sal;
			(b)	-	e the online register of Modification sals established pursuant to paragraph ; and
			(c)	by the	later of:
				(i)	the end of three (3) Business Days following receipt of a Modification Proposal; or
				(ii)	the end of the first Business Day following the date on which the Secretary receives notification of any decision of the Authority pursuant to paragraph 2.363.71 as to whether the Modification Proposal should be treated as an Urgent Modification Proposal,
				T&SCc	a copy of that Modification Proposal to each o, each User, each Third Party Participant, ecretary of State and the Authority; and
			<u>(d)</u>	discus Agend Panel receiv	abject to paragraph 2.363.71, put initial sion of the Modification Proposal, on the a for the next meeting of the Modification (provided the Modification Proposal is ed no later than [x] Business Days prior to the of the next meeting of the Modification.
					n Proposals made during a Significant w Phase
		3.10	of th respe inforn Party	e Modi ct of a n the P Particip	uthority has received a written assessment fication Panel under paragraph 3.15 in Modification Proposal, the Secretary shall roposer and each T&SCo, User, and Third pant, of the direction or re-direction it has in the Authority.
		3.11	Secre Modif becon Modif either unless into a	tary fro ication ne a ication the en s the A account	direction or re-direction received by the m the Authority is not to proceed with the Proposal that Modification Proposal shall Significant Code Review Suspended Proposal and shall continue to be so until d of the Significant Code Review Phase or Authority directs otherwise (having taken among other things not limited to, the subject matter of such a proposal).
		<u>3.12</u>	not Modif	made ication	uthority has not made a direction or has a re-direction not to proceed with a Proposal in respect of which the Authority a written assessment under paragraph

No	Subject	Terms		
			Signif Propo	such proposal shall not be or shall cease to be a ricant Code Review Suspended Modification sal and that Modification Proposal shall proceed in dance with the Modification Procedures.
			Discu	ssion of Modification Proposal
		3.13	Modif Panel	The Modification Panel shall discuss each new ication Proposal at a meeting of the Modification . The Modification Panel shall make minations having:
			(a)	discussed the Modification Proposal;
			(b)	heard the presentation of the Proposer's representative (provided that the Modification Panel shall be entitled to determine to proceed where the Proposer's representative fails to attend); and
			(c)	considered whether there are any other persons from whom representations should be invited and considered.
		2.9 Sul		to paragraph 6, the <u>The</u> Modification Panel may mine that a Modification Proposal:
			(d)	either satisfies the Self-Governance Criteria or does not;
			(e)	where the Self-Governance Criteria has been determined to be satisfied, either satisfies the Fast Track Self-Governance Procedure (which must be determined Unanimously by the Modification Panel) or does not;
			(f)	where the Fast-Track Self-Governance Criteria has been determined to be satisfied, the Modification be implemented (which must be determined Unanimously by the Modification Panel);
			(g)	should be referred to a Workgroup for a Workgroup Assessment (and the Modification Panel may determine the Terms of Reference for such work (including terms as to the identity of any third parties to be consulted, which may include Third Party Participants) and the date upon which it requires the Workgroup to submit its Workgroup Report);
			(h)	should proceed to Consultation;
			(i)	should be deferred to a subsequent meeting of the Modification Panel for further discussions; or

No	Subject	Terms	
			(j) be referred back to the Proposer for further development (provided this can only be determined once per Modification Proposal).
		3.14	The Modification Panel shall assess whether the subject matter of a Modification Proposal made during a Significant Code Review Phase relates to a matter that is the subject of an ongoing Significant Code Review and instruct the Secretary to submit to the Authority as soon as is reasonably practicable a written assessment including:
			(a) representations received as to whether such proposal relates to the matter which is the subject of a Significant Code Review;
			(b) its determination as to whether such proposal relates to the matter which is the subject of Significant Code Review;
			(c) its reasons for making such determination; and
			(d) a copy of the relevant Modification Proposal.
			Workgroup Assessment
		3.15	2.10—If the Modification Panel determines that the Modification Proposal should proceed to Workgroup Assessment then the Secretary shall within ten (10) Business Days of such determination finalise the Terms of Reference for that Workgroup Assessment and notify each T&SCo and User and invite them to make representations in respect of the Modification Proposal within fifteen (15) Business Days.
		<u>3.16</u>	2.11 Once the Terms of Reference for the Workgroup Assessment have been finalised:
			 (a) the Workgroup shall meet and consider the Modification Proposal in accordance with the details and timescales set out in the Terms of Reference;
			(b) the Secretary shall ensure that the Authority is notified of all meetings of the Workgroup and invited to attend;
			(c) the Secretary shall ensure that the Secretary of State is notified of all meetings of the Workgroup and invited to attend; and
			(d) (c) the Workgroup shall prepare a Workgroup Report containing a recommendation based on the Workgroup's consideration of the Modification Proposal within the timescale set out in the Terms of Reference and send a copy

No	Subject	Terms	
			to all Members as soon as reasonably practicable but in any event not less than eight (8) Business Days prior to the meeting of the Modification Panel at which that report is to be discussed.
			Note:
		<u>3.17</u>	The <i>minimum requirements of a</i> Workgroup Report will be specified in the Code
		Note:	The Code shall allow for a Party to make Alternative-Proposals for consideration by the Workgroup (including-where the initial proposer of a proposal withdraws that-original proposal) need to comply with the requirements for a Modification Report set out in paragraph 3.40.
		3.18	2.12 Having considered the Workgroup Report, the Modification Panel shall determine if the Modification Proposal shall proceed to Consultation or whether it should be referred back to the Workgroup for further work.
			Alternative Proposals
		3.19	In respect of a Modification Proposal which the Modification Panel pursuant to paragraph 3.14(d) has determined should be referred to a Workgroup, a Party or a Third Party Participant may make an alternative Modification Proposal in accordance with paragraph 3.4 and the Workgroup shall consider an alternative Modification Proposal made under this paragraph 3.20 if it is made no less than five (5) Business Days before the next meeting of the Workgroup. Where there are fewer than five (5) Business Days before such Workgroup meeting the alternative Modification Proposal will be included on the agenda for the following Workgroup meeting.
		3.20	Where a Modification Proposal has been referred to a Workgroup and the Workgroup requests that the Modification Proposal should be amended but the Proposer of the Modification Proposal does not agree to amend the Modification Proposal, any person (other than the Proposer) who is eligible to make an alternative Modification Proposal under paragraph 3.20 may, in accordance with paragraph 3.4 make an alternative Modification Proposal under this paragraph 3.21 which shall include the amendment.
		<u>3.21</u>	Where the Modification Panel has determined a Modification Proposal should be referred to a Workgroup and:
			(a) the Workgroup Report in respect of such Modification Proposal has been sent to all

No	Subject	Terms		
				Members in accordance with paragraph 3.17; or
			<u>(b)</u>	the Modification Panel has made a determination to refer the Workgroup Report in respect of such Modification Proposal back to the Workgroup for revision or further work under paragraph 3.19 and such Workgroup Report has been sent to all Members in accordance with paragraph 3.20 after such revision or further work,
			in res	ernative Modification Proposal shall not be made pect of Modification Proposal or be considered by orkgroup under paragraph 2.19.
		3.22	Modified Workg Workg Propose alternates	the Modification Panel has determined a cation Proposal should be referred to a roup under paragraph 3.14(d) and the roup Report in respect of such Modification cal has been sent to the Modification Panel an active Modification Proposal shall not be made in at of such Modification Proposal or be considered Workgroup under paragraph 3.20.
		<u>3.23</u>	An alte	ernative Modification Proposal may not be made:
			<u>(a)</u>	in respect of a Modification Proposal after the Modification Panel pursuant to paragraph 3.14(e) has determined such Modification Proposal should proceed to Consultation;
			<u>(b)</u>	where the Authority directs a T&SCo in writing that an alternative Modification Proposal shall not be made in respect of a Modification Proposal; or
			<u>(c)</u>	by the Authority, unless such alternative Modification Proposal is in respect of a Significant Code Review,
			about after Modified Propos	the direction as soon as reasonably practicable it has been received by the T&SCo, and the cation Panel shall ensure that a Modification sal will not be considered as an alternative cation Proposal to the relevant Modification sal.
		<u>3.24</u>	withdr may, alterna paragr which the Mo	spect of any Modification Proposal which is awn, any of the parties (except for the Proposer) but shall not be required to, either raise an ative Modification Proposal in accordance with raph 3.4) or adopt the withdrawn proposal (in case the adopted proposal shall continue through odification Procedures from the point at which it ithdrawn).

No	Subject	Terms	5		
			Withdrawal or variation of Modification Proposals		
		<u>3.25</u>	A Proposer may:		
			(a) subject to paragraph 3.32, withdraw a Modification Proposal, at any time before the final Modification Report is circulated to the Authority pursuant to paragraph 3.39 or in respect of a Self-Governance Modification Proposal at any time before the Modification Panel makes a determination under paragraph 3.68(a), by notice to the Secretary, and subject to paragraph 3.20, any Modification Proposal so withdrawn shall lapse; or		
			(b) subject to paragraph 3.32, vary a Modification Proposal, at any time before the Modification Panel has determined to proceed to Consultation by notice to the Secretary, and subject to paragraphs 3.20 to 3.25, any Modification Proposal so varied shall replace the original Proposal;		
			subject to paragraphs 3.20 to 3.25, 3.32, 3.33, request a variation to a Modification Proposal ("Variation Request"), at any time after the Modification Panel has determined to proceed to Consultation pursuant to paragraph 3.14(e) and before the Modification Panel has made a determination in respect of such Modification Proposal pursuant to paragraph 3.38(a), by notice to the Secretary, and any such variation request shall contain a description of the nature of the variation.		
		<u>3.26</u>	The Secretary shall, within a reasonable period of time following any withdrawal (including any withdrawal directed by the Authority pursuant to paragraph 3.33), variation or variation request (except where such variation request is made at the Modification Panel meeting) notify each T&SCo, each Member, each User, and each Third Party Participant of such withdrawal, variation or variation request (as the case may be).		
		3.27	Following receipt of the notice given pursuant to paragraph 3.26(c) the Secretary shall submit such variation request to the appropriate Modification Panel which the Proposer may attend for the purpose of explaining the variation request.		
		3.28	Subject to paragraphs 3.20 to 3.25, and paragraph 3.33, the Modification Proposal shall be varied to replace the original Proposal which shall be deemed withdrawn where the Modification Panel:		
			(a) determines by a unanimous vote that the		

No	Subject	Terms	
			variation request is immaterial, and in such case the varied Modification Proposal shall continue through the Modification Procedures from the point at which the original Proposal was deemed withdrawn;
			(b) does not so determine in accordance with (a), and in such case the Modification Panel shall make a determination in respect of the varied Modification Proposal in accordance with paragraph 3.14.
		3.29	The Proposer of a variation request may withdraw it at any time before the Modification Panel votes in accordance with paragraph 3.29.
		3.30	A Modification Proposal made by a User shall be deemed withdrawn where the User ceases to be a User.
		<u>3.31</u>	For the purposes of paragraphs 3.26 to 3.33, the Authority, upon request by a Proposer of a Significant Code Review Modification Proposal, may direct:
			(a) that the Proposer may vary, withdraw or make a variation request in respect of the relevant Significant Code Review Modification Proposal; or
			(b) that the Proposer may not vary, withdraw or make a variation request in respect of the relevant Significant Code Review Modification Proposal and that such proposal shall proceed in accordance with the Modification Procedures;
		3.32	Any Significant Code Review Modification Proposal and any alternative to such Significant Code Review Modification Proposal shall be withdrawn where the Authority issues a direction to that effect.
			Consultation
		3.33	2.13—If the Modification Panel determines that the Modification Proposal should proceed to Consultation (including in circumstances where the Modification Proposal has already been the subject of a Workgroup Report), the Secretary shall prepare a draft Modification Report in accordance with paragraph 2.193.40 and circulate the draft Modification Report to each T&SCoand, each User, each Third Party Participant and the Secretary of State within:
			(a) fifteen (15) Business Days, where the Modification Panel has determined that legal text is required;
			(b) three (3) Business Days, where the Modification

Subject	Terms		
			Panel has determined that legal text is not required; or
		(c)	such other time period as the Modification Panel shall determine,
		within	g them to make representations to the Secretary fifteen (15) Business Days following the date of evitation
	3.34	Modific paragi repres	The Secretary shall update the online register of cation Proposals established pursuant to raph 2.33.5 to include publication in full of all sentations received during Consultation in respect h Modification Proposal.
	<u>3.35</u>	day fo	Within ten (10) Business Days following the last or making representations to the Secretary in ct of the draft Modification Report, the Secretary
		(a)	prepare a final Modification Report in accordance with paragraph 2.193.40 for approval of the Modification Panel;
		(b)	submit a copy of the final Modification Report to each T&SCo, each User and each Member;
		(c)	add the Modification Proposal as an agenda item for the Modification Panel to discuss in the next meeting of the Modification Panel;
		(d)	where the Secretary considers that any representation made identifies issues that may arise through implementation of the proposal then the Secretary shall record such issues and include them in the final Modification Report and the Secretary shall submit it to the next Modification Panel for determination pursuant to paragraph 2.163.37.
	3.36	views 2.15 <u>3.</u>	Where the Modification Panel determines that on such issues identified under paragraph .36(d) should be obtained by the relevant proup then:
		(a)	the Secretary shall submit the final Modification Report to the relevant Workgroup and obtain a report containing their views;
		(b)	within three (3) Business Days following receipt of such report the Secretary shall submit a copy of the final Modification Report to each T&SCo, each User and each Member; and
		(c)	the Secretary shall add the Modification Proposal
	Subject	3.34	(c) invitin within that ir 3.34 2.14 Modifi paragg repres of suc 3.35 2.15 day for respective shall: (a) (b) (c) (d) 3.36 2.16 views 2.153 Works (a) (b)

No	Subject	Terms			
					Agenda item for the Modification Panel to s in the next meeting of the Modification
		3.37	the 2.153 asses with t	final <u>.36</u> or s wheth	to paragraph 2.323.67, upon receipt of Modification Report under paragraphs 2.163.37, the Modification Panel shall her the final Modification Report complies uirements of paragraph 2.193.40, and if it shall:
			(a)	impler	nine whether or not to recommend the nentation of the Modification Proposal to thority;
			(b)	paragi its op how t	t to the Authority its determination under raph 2.173.38(a) and the factors which (in inion), justify its determination (including the Modification Proposal meets T&SCo's lives as set out in its Licence); and
			(c)	Modifi	ct the Secretary to send the final cation Report, together with its mendation to the Authority.
		3.38	of an	instruct Autho <u>Party I</u>	cretary shall, within one (1) Business Day ion under paragraph 2.173.38(c), circulate rity and each T&SCo-and, each User, each Participant and the Secretary of State the
			(a)		of the final Modification Report and any attachments; and
			(b)	recom deterr	opy of the Modification Panel's mendation to the Authority seeking a nination of the Authority as to whether the cation should be implemented or not.
			Conte	ent of I	Modification Report
		3.39			Modification Report shall include the rmation:
			(a)	set ou	t or append in full:
				(i)	the relevant Modification Proposal including, in the case of a Modification Proposal, any suggested text provided by the proposer; and
				(ii)	where the Modification Panel has determined that legal text is required, the legal text;
			(b)	provid	e an analysis of whether and if so the

No	Subject	Terms	
		rec und <u>Mo</u> wh fac pui	cent to whichshall in relation to a commendation of the Modification wouldPanel der paragraph 3.38(a), include details of the dification Panel's reasoning for determining ether or not the Modification Proposal better ilitate the facilitates achievement (for the rposes of each T&SCo's Licence) of the levant Objectives;
		<u>ma</u> 3.3 <u>fav</u> pre	te whether or not a determination has been de by the Modification Panel under paragraph (8) and the number of Voting Members in our of, and the number of Voting Members esent and not voting in favour of, the olementation of the Modification Proposal;
		Mo wh det	—where it relates to a Self-Governance dification Proposal, state that fact and ether the Modification Panel or the Authority termined that such proposal satisfied the lf-Governance Criteria;
		<u>a S</u>	te whether the proposal is made in respect of Significant Code Review by, or at the direction the Authority;
		tha and tim Mo	ere it relates to a Modification Proposal other in a Self-Governance Modification Proposal d where the Proposer has proposed a nescale for the implementation of the dification in accordance with paragraph (c), shall include:
		<u>(i)</u>	two or more Fixed Implementation Dates;
		<u>(ii)</u>	a Proposed Authority Decision Date in respect of each Fixed Implementation Date, for the purposes of enabling the Modification to be implemented by the Fixed Implementation Date;
		<u>(iii)</u>	<u>a Backstop Lead Time; and</u>
		<u>(iv</u>)	the reasons why it is proposing each date under paragraph (i), (ii) and (iii);
			—address the implications (if any) of the plementation of such Modification Proposal:
		(i)	on operation of the T&S Network;
		(ii)	for the T&SCos and each T&SCo, including:
			(A) the implications for the operation of the Onshore Transportation

No	Subject	Terms
		System and/or the Offshore Transportation and Storage System;
		(B) the development and capital cost and operating cost implications (if any) for each T&SCo of implementing the Modification Proposal and if there are any such cost implications, the extent to which it is appropriate for each T&SCo and/or the T&SCos to recover the costs, and (to such extent) a proposal for the most appropriate way for the costs to be recovered; and
		(h) (e) address the implications (if any) of the implementation of the Modification for Users, including:
		(i) the administrative and operational implications (if any) of the implementation of the proposal on Users; and
		(ii) the capital cost and operating cost implications (if any) for Users of implementing the Modification Proposal
		(i) (f) address the implications (if any) for other relevant persons;
		(j) (g) provide a summary of the representations and/or responses of those persons (if any) which the Workgroup consulted, pursuant to the Terms of Reference and paragraph 2.103.16 and (to the extent that representations are not addressed or otherwise commented upon in the Modification Report) comment, in the context of the Modification Report as a whole, on such representations;
		(k) (h)—detail the programme for works (if any) required as a consequence of the implementation of the Modification Proposal;
		(i) set out a proposed timetable to be followed in respect of the implementation of the Modification (including, but without limitation, the date upon which the Modification should become effective);
		(m) (j) state whether or not any matter detailed in the Workgroup Report (pursuant to paragraph 2.113.17(ed)) has been addressed or otherwise

No	Subject	Terms		
			dealt v	vith and:
			(i)	if such matter has been so addressed or dealt with, the result; or
			` '	if such matter has not been so addressed or dealt with, an explanation as to why such matter has not been addressed or dealt with;
		<u>(n</u>	favour presen implen pursua	ate the number of Voting Members in of, and the number of Voting Members t and not voting in favour of, the nentation of the Modification Proposal nt to the determination made under aph 2.173.38;
		<u>(o</u>		ve attached to it copies of all the entations received by the Secretary; and
		<u>(p</u>	express satisfied repressering the Market N	et out a high level summary of views sed in the representations, which may be ed by stating the number of entatives in favour of, and the number of entatives against the implementation of dodification Proposal (or Third Party-cation Proposal).
		pr to all of th re to op ac Mc Mc Pa Mc Re cir	gether (and gether (and l work has the Modificati e Modificati ferred to in which of binion of the chievement odification odification enel shall he odification report shall	or more Modification Proposals have through the Modification Procedures I neither proposal has been withdrawn and not been discontinued following a decision cation Panel in respect of either proposal) on Report shall, in addition to the analysis paragraph 3.40(b), provide an analysis as the Modification Proposals would in the Modification Panel better facilitate the of the Relevant Objectives. Where two (2) Proposals were proceeding through the Procedures together and the Modification ave determined that only one (1) of the Proposals should proceed, the Modification provide a commentary as to the sin which the Modification Panel so
		<u>fu</u>	rnished to ontained or	ration Report shall be addressed and the Authority and none of the facts opinions stated in any Modification Report ed upon by any other person.
			preparing	any Modification Report, the Secretary
		<u>(a</u>	<u>do so</u>	on the basis set out in these Modification

No	Subject	Terms		
				Rules; and
			<u>(b)</u>	not be required to have regard (other than as expressly provided in these Modification Rules) to the consequences of any Modification on any person or persons.
			Imple	ementation
		<u>3.43</u>	Repor	Where the Authority receives a final Modification t pursuant to paragraph $\frac{2.18}{3.39}$, the Authority letermine:
			(a)	that the final Modification Report provides insufficient detail in order to make a decision, in which case the Secretary shall make the necessary arrangements to address the deficiency and re-submit it to the Modification Panel and paragraph 2.173.38 shall re-apply; or
			(b)	whether the proposed Modification shall be implemented and may give notice of its decision together with reasons, to the Secretary, in which case on receipt of such notice from the Authority:
				(i) if the notice confirms the Authority's determination not to implement the proposed Modification, the Secretary shall circulate to each T&SCo, each User and each Member a non-implementation notice; and
				(ii) if the notice confirms the Authority's determination to implement the Modification, the Secretary shall circulate to each T&SCo, each User and each Member an implementation notice.
		3.44	the subm	If, in respect of a Modification Proposal which is subject of a Modification Report previously tted to the Authority by the Secretary in dance with paragraph 2.183.39:
			(a)	the Authority has not given notice of its decision in respect of that Modification Report within two (2) calendar months (in the case of Urgent Modification Proposals), or four (4) calendar months (in the case of non-Urgent Modification Proposals) from the date upon which the relevant Modification Report was submitted to it; or
			(b)	the Authority, or any Voting Member, by notice to the Secretary expresses the reasonable opinion that the circumstances relating to that

No	Subject	Terms	
			Modification have materially changed,
			the Secretary shall place that Modification Proposal on the Agenda for consideration at the next Modification Panel meeting.
		<u>3.45</u>	2.22 Having considered the circumstances relating to the Modification Proposal which is subject to paragraph 2.213.45, the Modification Panel may determine that the Secretary should request the Authority to give an indication of the likely date by which the Authority's decision shall be made.
			Modification
		<u>3.46</u>	2.23 Subject to paragraph 2.243.48, the Secretary shall modify the Code in accordance with each consent given and each direction made by the Authority.
		3.47	2.24 The Secretary shall modify the Code without the consent of the Authority in accordance with a determination made by the Modification Panel in respect of a Self-Governance Modification Proposal under paragraph 2.333.68(a) no less than fifteen (15) Business Days after the date of such determination provided that no Appeal has been made or the Authority has not directed that its approval is required in accordance with paragraph 2.273.51(b).
		3.48	2.25 The Secretary shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, notify each T&SCo, each User and each Member of each Modification. Each such notice shall specify the legal text of the Modification and the date upon which the Modification shall become effective and may provide (for the purposes of information only) an explanatory note (which note should not be relied upon) in respect of the Modification. Each Modification shall become effective upon the date specified in the relevant notice.
			Self-Governance Modifications
		3.49	2.26–Where the Modification Panel determines that the Modification Proposal satisfies the Self-Governance Criteria and paragraph 2.93.14(a) applies, the Secretary shall submit a Self-Governance Statement to the Authority with a proposed Self-Governance Determination Date.
		<u>3.50</u>	2.27 The Authority may, at any time before the proposed Self-Governance Determination Date:
			(a) reject the Modification Panel's determination that the Self-Governance Criteria have been satisfied; or
		<u>3.49</u>	under paragraph 2.333.68(a) no less than fifteen (1 Business Days after the date of such determination provided that no Appeal has been made or the Authority has not directed that its approval is required in accordance with paragraph 2.273.51(b). 2.25—The Secretary shall, as soon as reasonate practicable, notify each T&SCo, each User and each Member of each Modification. Each such notice shapeify the legal text of the Modification and the date upon which the Modification shall become effective and may provide (for the purposes of information only) explanatory note (which note should not be relieupon) in respect of the Modification. Each Modificationshall become effective upon the date specified in the relevant notice. Self-Governance Modification Panel determines that the Modification Proposal satisfies the Self-Governance Criteria and paragraph 2.93.14(a) applies, the Secretary shall submit a Self-Governance Statement the Authority with a proposed Self-Governance Determination Date: (a) reject the Modification Panel's determination the Self-Governance Criteria have been such as the such as the self-Governance Criteria have been such as the such as

No	Subject	Terms	
			(b) direct that its approval is required to implement the Self-Governance Modification Proposal.
		<u>3.51</u>	2.28-Notwithstanding any determination to the contrary under paragraph 2.93.14(a), the Authority may determine that a Modification Proposal satisfies the Self-Governance Criteria.
		3.52	2.29 Where paragraph 2.93.14(b) applies but paragraph 2.93.14(c) does not (iei.e. the Modification Proposal satisfies the Fast Track Self Governance Procedure but the Modification Panel does not determine that it should be implemented immediately), the Modification shall become a Self-Governance Modification Proposal and be further determined by the Modification Panel under paragraph 2.93.14.
		<u>3.53</u>	2.30—Where the Modification Panel makes a determination in respect of a Self-Governance Modification Proposal under paragraph 2.93.14(c) (i.e. in respect of a fast tracked Modification) a Party or the Authority may object to such determination and the Self-Governance Modification Proposal shall not be implemented. Any such objection shall be received within fifteen (15) Business Days of the implementation notice under paragraph 2.203.44(b)(ii) being issued.
			Note:
			Appeal rights and basis for objection to be developed Procedures
		3.54	No later than fifteen (15) Business Days after the Self-Governance Determination Date, a User, T&SCo or Third Party Participant may make an Appeal by giving written notice of the Appeal to the Secretary, such notice to identify:
			(a) the Self-Governance Modification Proposal which is the subject of the Appeal;
			(b) any representations which the Appealing Party wishes to make in support of the Appeal; and
			(c) evidence supporting the Appealing Party's view that it will be unfairly prejudiced by the modification proposed in the relevant Self-Governance Modification Proposal.
		<u>3.55</u>	Subject to the Appeal being made within the period referred to in paragraph 3.55, the Secretary shall, on receipt of a notice under paragraph 3.55 notify each T&SCo, User, Third Party Participant and the Authority that an Appeal has been made and the Secretary shall put discussion of the Appeal on the Agenda of the next

No	Subject	Terms	
			meeting of the Modification Panel.
		<u>3.56</u>	The Modification Panel shall decide, at the meeting referred to in paragraph 3.56, whether to confirm or reverse its determination under paragraph 3.38(a) having regard to any representations made by the Appealing Party in support of the Appeal.
		<u>3.57</u>	The Modification Panel shall, upon deciding whether to confirm or reverse its determination under paragraph 3.38(a), notify the Secretary and the Appealing Party of its decision as soon as reasonably practicable following receipt of the Appeal, and where the Modification Panel:
			(a) confirms its determination under paragraph 3.38(a), the Secretary shall notify each T&SCo, User, Third Party Participant and the Authority of the Modification Panel's confirmation of its determination and send each such person an implementation or (as the case may be) non-implementation notice under paragraph 3.44(b) confirming the implementation or (as the case may be) non-implementation of the proposal; or
			(b) reverses its determination under paragraph 3.38(a), the Secretary shall notify each T&SCo, User, Third Party Participant and the Authority of the Modification Panel's determination and send each such person an implementation or (as the case may be) non-implementation notice, which shall have effect in place of the implementation or (as the case may be) non-implementation notice issued pursuant to the Modification Panel's initial determination under paragraph 3.38(a).
		3.58	The Appealing Party may no later than fifteen (15) Business Days after the Self-Governance Modification Proposal Determination Date make an appeal to the Authority; such appeal to identify the Self-Governance Modification Proposal which is the subject of the appeal and include any representations which the Appealing Party wishes to make in support of the appeal.
		3.59	If the Authority determines the Authority Appeal satisfies the Appeal Criteria, the Authority may consider the Authority Appeal having regard (without limitation) to:
			(a) the Self-Governance Modification Proposal;
			(b) the final Modification Report in respect of the Self-Governance Modification Proposal;
			(c) any representations made by the Appealing

No	Subject	Terms		
				Party in support of the Authority Appeal; and
			<u>(d)</u>	the determination made by the Modification Panel under paragraph 3.58(a).
		<u>3.60</u>		ving such determination in accordance with raph 3.60, the Authority may:
			<u>(a)</u>	confirm the Modification Panel's determination under paragraph 3.58(a); or
			<u>(b)</u>	quash the Modification Panel's determination under paragraph 3.58(a) and rule that the Modification Panel's determination should have no further effect for the purposes of the Modification Rules.
		<u>3.61</u>	Appea respe practi	Authority shall notify the Secretary and the aling Party of its decision under paragraph 3.61 in ct of the Authority Appeal as soon as reasonably cable following receipt of the Authority Appeal, the decision of the Authority shall be final and ing.
		<u>3.62</u>	Where	e paragraph 3.61(b) applies the Authority may:
			<u>(a)</u>	remit the Self-Governance Modification Proposal which is the subject of the Modification Panel's quashed determination under paragraph 3.58(a) back to the Modification Panel for reconsideration and redetermination; or
			<u>(b)</u>	determine that the proposed modification to the Code should be made; or
			<u>(c)</u>	determine that the proposed modification to the Code should not be made.
		<u>3.63</u>	Where	e the Authority:
			<u>(a)</u>	confirms the Modification Panel's determination under paragraph 3.58(a), the Secretary shall notify each T&SCo, User and Third Party Participant of the Authority's confirmation of the Modification Panel's determination under paragraph 3.58(a) confirming the implementation or (as the case may be) non-implementation of the proposal;
			<u>(b)</u>	quashes the Modification Panel's determination under paragraph 3.58(a), the Secretary shall notify each T&SCo, User, Member and Third Party Participant of the Authority's decision and send each such person an implementation notice or (as the case may be) non-implementation notice, which shall have effect in place of the

No	Subject	Terms	
			Modification Panel's determination under paragraph 3.58(a);
		3.64	Where the Secretary, under paragraph 3.61(a) gives notice of the Authority's confirmation of the Modification Panel's determination under paragraph 3.58(a) confirming the implementation of a proposal or under paragraph 3.63(b) sends an implementation notice, paragraph 3.47 shall apply.
		3.65	2.31 —Where a (fast tracked) Self-Governance Modification Proposal is objected to under paragraph 2.303.54 then the Self-Governance Modification Proposal shall return to the Modification Panel and be considered as a Modification Proposal under the provisions of paragraph 2.93.14.
		3.66	2.32 Where the Modification Proposal is a Self-Governance Modification Proposal paragraphs 2.173.38, 2.183.39, and 2.203.44 shall not apply to such proposal.
		3.67	2.33—The Modification Panel shall upon receipt of the final Modification Report under paragraph 2.153.36 or 2.163.37, in respect of a Self-Governance Modification Proposal:
			(a) assess whether the final Modification Report complies with the requirements of the Code, and if it is compliant, shall make a determination as to whether or not the Self-Governance Modification Proposal should be implemented;
			(b) instruct the Secretary to include such determination and the Modification Panel's reasoning for such determination in the Final Modification Report; and
			(c) instruct the Secretary to circulate an implementation notice or a non-implementation notice (as the case may be) in respect of such proposal to each T&SCo, each User and each Member.
		3.68	2.34 Where the Modification Panel makes a determination in respect of a Self-Governance Modification Proposal under paragraph 2.333.68(a), a T&SCo or User may appeal such determination and the Self-Governance Modification Proposal shall not be implemented until the Authority has confirmed a determination in respect of an appeal and an implementation notice has been sent.
			Urgent Modification Proposals
		<u>3.69</u>	2.35 If the Proposer considers that a Modification

No	Subject	Terms		
			Propos the Se	sal should be treated as an Urgent Modification sal it shall state so in its Modification Proposal and ecretary shall as soon as possible send a copy of odification Proposal to the Authority.
		<u>3.70</u>	2.36 V	Vhere the Authority:
			(a)	agrees that the Modification Proposal should be treated as an Urgent Modification Proposal, all or any of the Modification Rules (including, but without limitation, consulting with the Modification Panel and seeking representations from each T&SCo and Users or any other person may be deviated from and any other procedure accepted by the Authority may be followed; or
			(b)	does not agree that the Modification Proposal should be treated as an Urgent Modification Proposal the Secretary shall notify the Modification Panel and the standard Modification Rules will apply.
			<u>Time</u>	<u>Periods</u>
		3.71	Modificin wr timeta	chstanding any time periods specified in this raph 3, in respect of any Significant Code Review cation Proposal, the Authority may, by direction iting to a T&SCo, specify and/or amend the able to apply to each stage of such Modification sal and/or the implementation date of such cation Proposal.
		<u>3.72</u>		e the Authority makes a direction referred to in raph 3.72 and such direction specifies:
			<u>(a)</u>	a timetable in respect of all of the steps specified in this paragraph 3 as applying to such Modification Proposal, the Modification Proposal shall progress in accordance with the timetable specified in such direction (and not the timetable set out in this paragraph 3);
			(b)	a timetable in respect of some (but not all) of the steps specified in these Modification Rules as applying to such Modification Proposal (and does not direct that the steps in respect of which no timetable is directed are not to apply to such Modification Proposal), then such Modification Proposal shall proceed on the basis of the timetable specified in the direction (in respect of the steps specified in the direction) and the timetable set out in this paragraph 3 (in respect of all other steps specified in these Modification Rules as applying to such Modification Proposal);
			<u>(c)</u>	an implementation date in respect of such

No	Subject	Terms
		Modification Proposal but specifies no timetable to apply to such Modification Proposal in relation to these Modification Rules, then the T&SCo to whom the direction is made by the Authority shall notify the Secretary of the timetable that the T&SCo reasonably believes ought to apply to such Modification Proposal in order to achieve the directed implementation date, and such notified timetable shall apply for the purposes of this paragraph 3 in relation to such Modification Proposal.
		3.73 Until such time as the Authority makes a direction referred to in paragraph 3.73, the Modification Proposal shall proceed in accordance with the Modification Procedures set out in this Section B.
<u>4.</u> 3.	Specific Provisions	3.1 Subject to paragraph 45, Modification Proposals in respect of Specific Provisions shall be addressed using an equivalent Modification Procedure, save that only:
		(a) the T&SCo that owns and operates the T&S Network to which those Specific Provisions apply; and
		 (b) a User that is the holder of a Connection Agreement relating to the T&S Network, or relevant part of the T&S Network, to which those Specific Provisions apply,
		shall be deemed a "T&SCo or a "User" for the purposes of the Modification Rules.
<u>5.</u> 4.	Ancillary Agreement	4.1 The "User-specific provisions" (i.e. those that are contemplated as being completed in the Schedules) of an Ancillary Agreement may be amended by agreement of the parties to that Agreement and not otherwise, and accordingly "User-specific provisions" of an Ancillary Agreement shall not be subject to modification pursuant to the Modification Rules (but without prejudice to any modification of any provisions of the Code which apply to or are incorporated into such Agreement).
		5.2 4.2 The Uniform Provisions of an Ancillary Agreement may only be amended pursuant to the Modification Rules.
		Note: Distinction between the "User-specific provisions" and the Uniform Provisions of an Ancillary Agreement are subject to the development of those agreements but it may be that the "User-specific provisions" comprise the schedules and the Uniform Provisions comprise the main body.

No	Subject		Terms		
<u>6.</u> 5.	Modification General	ons –	6.1	Autho Modifi Propo Propo	The Secretary may decide to seek a view from the nority on any matter arising (under these lification Rules or otherwise) from a Modification posal that is not a Self-Governance Modification posal at any stage prior to the date on which the retary finalises the Modification Report.
6.		Authority I	ights		Note: it is expected that the Authority will have a right to initiate Modifications through a process referred to as a specified code review process which is intended to be similar to the significant code review process that applies in the context of gas and electricity codes but will be more streamlined while still incorporating consultation and engagement with Code parties. The details of this process are being developed, but the intention is that this process will allow the Authority to address any significant market developments or distortions.
7.	[Secretary rights]Mod Right durin Period		7.1	Propo makin 3.1, t power	ere the Secretary of State makes a Modification posal during the Interim Period, then in addition to king a Modification Proposal pursuant to paragraph the Secretary of State may choose to exercise ters in relation to that Modification Proposal in pordance with paragraph 7.2.
			<u>7.2</u>	by the "SoS effect	espect of any Modification Proposal which is made the Secretary of State during the Interim Period (a S Modification Proposal"), paragraph 3 is to have ct with the following modifications until the end of Interim Period: in paragraph 3.2 for "Authority" substitute "Secretary of State" and for "Significant Code
				<u>(b)</u>	Review Modification Proposal" substitute "SoS Modification Proposal"; in paragraph 3.3, for "Authority" substitute "Secretary of State", for "Significant Code Review" substitute "SoS Modification Proposal", and for "Significant Code Review Phase" substitute "SoS Modification Proposal Phase";
				<u>(c)</u>	in paragraph 3.4(l), for "Authority" substitute "Secretary of State" and for "Significant Code Review " substitute "SoS Modification Proposal";
				<u>(d)</u>	in paragraphs 3.10, 3.11, 3.12 and 3.15 for "Authority" substitute "Secretary of State", for

No	Subject	Terms	
			"Significant Code Review Modification Proposal" substitute "SoS Modification Proposal", for "Significant Code Review Phase" substitute "SoS Modification Proposal Phase", and for "Significant Code Review Suspended Modification Proposal" substitute "SoS Modification Suspended Proposal"; and
			(e) in paragraphs 3.4(b), 3.24(c), 3.32, 3.33, 3.38, 3.39(b), 3.40(e), 3.42, 3.44, 3.47 and 3.72 for "Authority" substitute "Secretary of State" and for "Significant Code Review Modification Proposal" and "Significant Code Review" substitute "SoS Modification Proposal.
			Note: role of Secretary of State (if any) in Modification- Procedure is under review. while the Secretary of State's powers during the Interim Period are based on the Ofgem SCR process, some further defined terms (e.g. "SoS Modification Proposal Phase") will need to be further considered and developed.
		<u>7.3</u>	Where the Secretary of State chooses to exercise powers in relation to an SoS Modification Proposal in accordance with this paragraph 7 then the SoS Modification Proposal does not need to be approved by the Authority for it to be implemented.
		7.4	The Parties acknowledge and agree that notwithstanding paragraph 16.1 of Section J (General), the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 shall apply to the rights conferred on the Secretary of State under this Section B and the consent of the Secretary of State will be required to rescind or vary any such rights.
8.	Dispute resolution		Dispute avoidance
		8.1	The Parties shall at all times deal proactively with any issues through Code governance processes to reduce the scope for disputes to arise. The Parties shall take all reasonable steps to identify solutions and mitigations that address the concerns of other parties and at all times to act reasonably to avoid or minimise the scope for disputes.
		8.2	Where the relevant Parties are unable to avoid or resolve a dispute, the dispute shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures summarised in this paragraph 8.
			Introduction
		8.3	For the purposes of this section:
			(a) a "dispute" is any dispute or difference arising

No	Subject	Terms	
			between the parties under or in connection with the Code, the Code Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement; and
			Note: Subject to the development of the Code, some disputes may be excluded from this process if there is an alternative process (such as in respect of charging disputes)
			(b) in respect of any dispute " parties " means the T&SCo(s) and/or the User(s) party to such dispute, and "party" shall be construed accordingly.
		8.4	The Secretary appointed in accordance with paragraph 1.15 shall perform the administrative functions set out in this paragraph 8.
		8.5	Where any relevant provision provides or the parties have agreed that a dispute is to be referred to or resolved by Expert Determination:
			(a) paragraphs 9.1 to 9.30 shall apply; and
			(b) subject to paragraph 8.7, no party shall commence proceedings in any court in respect of or otherwise in connection with such dispute.
		8.6	The parties may agree to refer any dispute (including such a dispute as is referred to in paragraph 8.4) to mediation in accordance with paragraph 10.1.
		8.7	Nothing in this section shall prevent any party from seeking interim or interlocutory relief in any court.
			Related Disputes
		8.8	If, acting reasonably, a T&SCo believes that a dispute between a T&SCo and a User raises the same or similar issues to a dispute between that T&SCo and another User, T&SCo may require that the related disputes are addressed as a single dispute under this paragraph 8.
		8.9	If the Secretary identifies that a dispute between a T&SCo and a User(s) raises the same or similar issues to a dispute between another T&SCo(s) and another User(s), the Secretary may notify the relevant T&SCos and if agreed by those T&SCos, the T&SCos may require that the related disputes are addressed as a single dispute under the Code.
9.	Expert determination		Expert Determination
		9.1	A dispute which is to be referred to or resolved by Expert Determination shall be determined by an individual appointed as an expert in accordance with

No	Subject	Terms	
			the relevant provisions of the Code.
		9.2	Within one month of the Code Implementation Date, the Parties shall develop a list of experts comprising 12 persons available to act as experts in relation to:
			(a) CDS Data Disputes; and
			(b) Invoice Disputes.
			in accordance with paragraph 9.1 and listed in alphabetical order by surname ("Listed Experts").
		9.3	The <u>list_lists</u> under paragraph 9.2 shall comprise six (6) persons nominated collectively by agreement of the T&SCos and six (6) persons nominated collectively by agreement of Users.
		9.4	No person shall be nominated as expert under this paragraph 9 unless they have first confirmed in writing to the Secretary that they accept their nomination.
		9.5	If any Listed Expert indicates that they no longer wish to be included in the list they shall be removed from the list and replaced by a person nominated collectively by agreement of the original nominating parties (i.e. either T&SCos or Users).
		9.6	Any party to a dispute which is to be resolved by or referred to Expert Determination may give notice of the dispute in accordance with this paragraph. The notice shall be given to each other party and shall:
			(a) state whether the party believes the dispute to be a CDS Dispute or an Invoice Dispute;
			(b) (a) provide brief details of the issues to be resolved; and
			(c) (b) nominate four persons as proposed experts.
		9.7	Within five (5) Business Days after receiving a notice under paragraph 9.6, each party (other than the party giving such notice) shall by notice to each other party nominate four persons as proposed experts based on the nature of the dispute.
		9.8	The parties shall endeavour within ten (10) Business Days after the notice under paragraph 9.6 being given to agree upon the selection of an expert and may meet for this purpose.
		9.9	If within ten (10) Business Days after the notice under paragraph 9.6 was given the parties shall not have agreed upon the selection of an expert, each shall within a further five (5) Business Days give to the

No	Subject	Terms		
			others a notice ("Preference Notice") specifying the names of seven (7) Listed Experts in order of preference and assigning to each a number ("Preference Number") from 7 (the most preferred) to 1 (the least preferred).	
		9.10	The Listed Expert with the greatest aggregate the Preference Numbers assigned to them under each Preference Notice shall be selected as the expert.	
			Appointment of the Expert	
		9.11	Once the expert is selected, the parties shall notify the expert of the selection and request that the expert confirm within five (5) Business days whether they are willing to accept the appointment.	
		9.12	The notification to the expert shall include the following:	
			(a) the names of the parties and a summary of the dispute;	
			(b) a request that the expert provides a confirmation required under paragraph 9.27;	
			(c) a request for confirmation of the expert's scale of fees;	
			(d) a statement that the expert's fees and expenses will be paid as provided in paragraph 9.30;	
			 (e) a statement that the information disclosed in the notification is confidential and that it should not be disclosed, copied or revealed whether the appointment is accepted or not; 	
			(f) a copy of this paragraph 9; and	
			(g) a request for confirmation that the expert is able and willing to act in accordance with the procedure set out herein.	
		9.13	If the selected expert is unwilling or unable to accept the appointment, or shall not have confirmed their willingness and ability to accept such appointment within the period required, the parties shall endeavour to agree upon the selection of another expert within three (3) Business Days, failing which another expert shall be selected in accordance with paragraph 9.11.	
			Timetable and Procedure	
		9.14	No later than five (5) Business Days following their appointment, the expert shall by giving reasonable notice to each party convene a meeting with the parties	

No	Subject	Terms	
			at which the expert shall raise any matters upon which they requires clarification and discuss with the parties any additional procedural requirements the expert or the parties may have.
		9.15	The parties shall, not later than ten (10) Business Days after the appointment of the expert, submit to the expert and to each other party written submissions of not more than ten (10) pages in length together with all supporting documentation, information and data which they wish to submit in respect of the dispute; and the parties may also submit a statement of facts which they have agreed between themselves to the expert.
		9.16	Each party may, not later than twenty (20) Business Days after the appointment of the expert, submit to the expert and each other party written submissions of not more than ten (10) pages in length, together with any additional supporting documentation, information and data, in reply to the submissions made under paragraph 9.15.
		9.17	The expert shall disregard any documentation, information, data or submissions supplied or made (other than pursuant to paragraph 9.22) by any party later than twenty (20) Business Days after their appointment unless the same are provided in response to a request from the expert.
		9.18	If the expert shall wish to obtain independent professional and/or technical advice in connection with the dispute:
			(a) they shall first provide the parties with details of the name, organisation and estimated fees of the professional or technical adviser; and
			(b) they may engage such adviser with the consent of the parties (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld) for the purposes of obtaining such professional and/or technical advice as they may reasonably require.
		9.19	The expert may at their discretion and at any time request information from any of the parties orally but shall only do so in the presence of the other parties.
		9.20	At any time after the period referred to in paragraph 9.16 expires, with the written consent of the parties, the expert may (but shall not be required to) convene a hearing upon giving the parties reasonable notice.
		9.21	The expert shall provide a draft of their determination, which shall be a report in writing giving reasons for the determination, to the parties not later than thirty-five

No	Subject	Terms	
			(35) Business Days following the expert's appointment.
		9.22	Each party may, within ten (10) Business Days following delivery of the draft determination, submit to the expert any documentation, information, data, submissions or comments not exceeding 5 pages in length on or in respect of the draft determination.
		9.23	The expert shall submit their final determination, which shall be a report in writing giving reasons for their determination of the dispute, to the parties not later than fifty (50) Business Days following the expert's appointment.
		9.24	If the expert fails to submit the final determination by the time required under paragraph 9.23, at the request of any party another expert may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph 8 and the appointment of the previous expert shall cease unless, before the appointment of the new expert, the previous expert shall have submitted their final determination hereunder, in which case the new expert shall be forthwith informed that their services will not be required.
			Effect of determination
		9.25	The expert's final determination shall be final and binding on the parties except in the event of fraud or where it is so clearly erroneous on its face that it would be unconscionable for it to stand, in which case another expert may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph 9.
		9.26	Except in respect of the application of paragraph 9.25, no party shall commence proceedings in respect of or refer to any court any finding by the expert, whether made at any time after the expert's appointment or in his determination, as to the dispute or the construction of or otherwise in respect of the Code, the Code Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement.
			Conflict of interest
		9.27	The expert shall confirm to the parties before the expert's appointment that they do not hold any interest or duty which would or potentially would conflict with the performance of their duties under their contract with the parties.
			Confidentiality
		9.28	Subject to paragraphs 8.8 and 8.9 parties and the expert shall keep the fact that the Expert Determination is taking place and its outcome confidential.

No	Subject	Terms	
			Costs
		9.29	Each party shall bear its own costs including, without limitation, costs of providing documentation, information, data, submissions or comments and all costs of and expenses of all witnesses and other persons retained by it.
		9.30	The expert's fees and expenses shall be payable by the parties in equal amounts, unless the expert (having regard to the conduct of the parties with respect to the dispute in question) shall direct in their final determination that such costs and expenses should be borne by one or some only of the parties, in which case the parties shall pay such fees and expenses in accordance with such direction.
10.	Mediation	10.1	A dispute which is to be referred to mediation shall be referred to a single mediator who shall explore the interests of the parties to the dispute and encourage the parties to resolve the dispute in light of such interests.
			Appointment of mediator
		10.2	Within five (5) Business Days after agreeing to refer a dispute to mediation the parties shall meet and use their best endeavours to agree upon a person to act as mediator.
		10.3	Where the parties agree upon a mediator they shall request such person to accept appointment as mediator, and shall use all reasonable endeavours to agree (between themselves and with the mediator) upon the terms of their appointment.
		10.4	A person shall be treated as appointed as a mediator f when they have confirmed their acceptance to act as mediator in accordance herewith.
			Procedure and timetable
		10.5	Within five (5) Business Days following their appointment, the mediator shall require each party to provide them with a written summary of the dispute, which written summary shall not exceed 5 pages.
		10.6	The mediator may in their discretion:
			(a) request any party to provide them with copies of any documentation or information which the mediator believes will assist to explain any such summary; and
			(b) provide any such written summary and/or any information or copy documentation received

No	Subject	Terms	
			under paragraph (a) to the other party(ies) to the dispute.
		10.7	Within ten (10) Business Days following their appointment, the mediator shall contact the parties and shall arrange to meet them.
		10.8	Each party shall attend the meeting with the mediator with a maximum of three representatives, one of whom shall be a person with decision making authority in relation to the subject matter of the dispute and one of whom may be the legal adviser of that party.
		10.9	No additional persons shall attend without the prior written consent of the mediator.
		10.10	The mediator may convene more than one meeting with the parties but shall not convene any meetings later than forty (40) Business Days following their appointment, unless the parties agree otherwise.
		10.11	The mediator may at their discretion meet each party on their own whether during a meeting attended by the other parties or otherwise, but they shall not disclose to any other party matters disclosed to the mediator in such circumstances without the consent of the disclosing party.
		10.12	At any meeting attended by the parties, the mediator may require each party to make a brief presentation of its case and the mediator may also require the other parties to reply to another party's presentation.
		10.13	The mediator shall not act as an arbitrator (and accordingly the provisions of the Arbitration Acts shall not apply).
			Result of mediation
		10.14	No party shall be bound to adopt the views or advice expressed or provided by the mediator.
		10.15	If the dispute is resolved or the parties accept the views and advice of the mediator, the parties shall use their best endeavours, within five (5) Business Days after such resolution or acceptance, to enter into a settlement agreement which shall:
			(a) set out the terms accepted by the parties or on which the dispute was resolved; and
			(b) contain provisions of confidentiality.
			Confidentiality
		10.16	The parties shall keep confidential the fact that the

No	Subject	Terms	
			mediation is taking place.
			Costs
		10.17	The parties shall unless they agree otherwise bear their own costs and expenses of whatsoever nature of the mediation.
			The parties shall bear the fees and expenses of the mediator and all administrative costs arising from the mediation equally.

SECTION C: CONNECTION

No	Subject	Terms
1.	Introduction	1.1 This Section C:
		(a) describes how Initial Users connected to a T&S Network;
		(b) confirms the process for Prospective T&SCos to accede to the Code; and
		(c) sets out the process for connection to a T&S Network by prospective Users who seek to apply to connect to a T&S Network or, in the case of existing Users, to modify an existing Delivery Point after the Code Implementation Date where:
		(i) a T&SCo is already a party to the Code at the time a prospective User becomes an Eligible Applicant; and
		(ii) a T&SCo is a Prospective T&SCo at the time a prospective User becomes an Eligible Applicant.
		1.2 This Section C (including the connection dispute provisions in paragraph 10) is intended to apply to applications for connection to a T&S Network until:
		(a) the UK Government discontinues the Selection Process; or
		(b) a new connection process is developed under the Code,
		whichever is the earlier.
		Note : in the early stages of the development of the CCUS industry the Government has been leading the process for the allocation of new connections and network capacity to different types of users. It is expected that this will change over time, as the industry matures. The definition of "Selection Process" remains under review and development.
<u>2.</u> 1.	Initial Users	2.1 1.1 It is acknowledged that at the Code Implementation Date:
		(a) certain Users (the "Initial Users") have agreed to connect to thea T&S Network and a T&SCo has agreed to allow these Users to connect to thea T&S Network as part of the Government's CCUS Cluster Sequencing Process;
		(b) each of these Initial Users has entered into orwill accede to athe Code Agreement, a Construction Agreement and a Connection Agreement, or will do so as soon as it has reach

			<u>financial investment decision</u> ; and
			(c) each of these Initial Users holds Registered Capacity or has been provisionally allocated Network Capacity (pending entry into the documents referred to in paragraph 2.1(b) and becoming a User).
		2.2	For the avoidance of doubt, it is acknowledged that as these Initial Users applied for a connection to a T&S Network before the Code Implementation Date, the provisions of the balance of Section C do not apply to these Initial Users, except for paragraph 10 (Connection disputes).
<u>3.</u>	Prospective T&SCos	3.1	From the Code Implementation Date a Connection Application may be made to a Prospective T&SCo notwithstanding the fact that a Prospective T&SCo is not a party to the Code.
		<u>3.2</u>	A Prospective T&SCo shall have the right to accede to the Code, in accordance with the provisions of the Code Agreement, upon being granted a Licence.
		3.3	In paragraphs 4 to 10 of this Section C a reference to a T&SCo includes a reference to a Prospective T&SCo, unless otherwise specified.
4 -	New and modified	Note:	provisions addressing the process for applying for and
<u>4.</u> 2.	ConnectionsPre-Sel ection due diligence	connect Date) a given to	ting to a T&S Network (after the Code Implementation or to be developed. Note: further consideration is being to any due diligence input needed from T&SCo (under the etwork Code/Licence) as part of any Selection Process.
<u>4.</u> 2.	Connections Pre-Sel	connect Date) a given to	ting to a T&S Network (after the Code Implementation are to be developed. Note: further consideration is being o any due diligence input needed from T&SCo (under the
	Connections Pre-Sel ection due diligence	connect Date) a given to	ting to a T&S Network (after the Code Implementation are to be developed. Note: further consideration is being to any due diligence input needed from T&SCo (under the etwork Code/Licence) as part of any Selection Process.
	Connections Pre-Sel ection due diligence	connect Date) a given to CCS Ne	ting to a T&S Network (after the Code Implementation are to be developed. Note: further consideration is being any due diligence input needed from T&SCo (under the etwork Code/Licence) as part of any Selection Process. Eligibility for application for connection A prospective User (or an existing User, in the case of applications for a modification of an existing Delivery Point) is an "Eligible Applicant" for the purposes of this Section C where the prospective User or existing User
	Connections Pre-Sel ection due diligence	connect Date) a given to CCS No	ting to a T&S Network (after the Code Implementation or to be developed. Note: further consideration is being to any due diligence input needed from T&SCo (under the etwork Code/Licence) as part of any Selection Process. Eligibility for application for connection A prospective User (or an existing User, in the case of applications for a modification of an existing Delivery Point) is an "Eligible Applicant" for the purposes of this Section C where the prospective User or existing User has been Selected and has not been Deselected.
	Connections Pre-Sel ection due diligence	connect Date) a given to CCS No	ting to a T&S Network (after the Code Implementation are to be developed. Note: further consideration is being any due diligence input needed from T&SCo (under the etwork Code/Licence) as part of any Selection Process. Eligibility for application for connection A prospective User (or an existing User, in the case of applications for a modification of an existing Delivery Point) is an "Eligible Applicant" for the purposes of this Section C where the prospective User or existing User has been Selected and has not been Deselected. An Eligible Applicant may apply for: (a) a connection to a T&S Network at a new (as yet
	Connections Pre-Sel ection due diligence	connect Date) a given to CCS No	ting to a T&S Network (after the Code Implementation are to be developed. Note: further consideration is being to any due diligence input needed from T&SCo (under the etwork Code/Licence) as part of any Selection Process. Eligibility for application for connection A prospective User (or an existing User, in the case of applications for a modification of an existing Delivery Point) is an "Eligible Applicant" for the purposes of this Section C where the prospective User or existing User has been Selected and has not been Deselected. An Eligible Applicant may apply for: (a) a connection to a T&S Network at a new (as yet unbuilt) Delivery Point;

<u>6.</u>	Application process		Conne	ection Application
		<u>6.1</u>	Where	e an Eligible Applicant wishes to request:
			<u>(a)</u>	a connection to the T&S Network at a new (as yet unbuilt) Delivery Point; or
			<u>(b)</u>	the modification of an existing Delivery Point;
			to T&S	the Eligible Applicant shall complete and submit SCo an application (in the form prescribed by from time to time) (the "Connection cation") and comply with the terms of it.
		<u>6.2</u>	_	e the Connection Application relates to a new ry Point, it shall specify:
			<u>(a)</u>	the nature and location of the User Facility to be connected to the T&S Network at the Delivery Point;
			<u>(b)</u>	the proposed size and location of the Delivery Point being applied for;
			<u>(c)</u>	the date when the Eligible Applicant proposes to start using the Delivery Point to deliver its carbon dioxide into the T&S Network;
			<u>(d)</u>	the quantity of Network Capacity provisionally allocated to the Eligible Applicant through the Selection Process; and
			<u>(e)</u>	any other information that T&SCo may reasonably require.
		<u>6.3</u>		e the Connection Application relates to a cation of an existing Delivery Point, it shall y:
			<u>(a)</u>	the nature and location of the User Facility at the Delivery Point;
			<u>(b)</u>	details of the existing Delivery Point and the modifications being applied for;
			<u>(c)</u>	the date when the Eligible Applicant proposes to start using the modified Delivery Point to deliver its carbon dioxide into the T&S Network;
			<u>(d)</u>	the quantity of additional Network Capacity (if any) provisionally allocated to the Eligible Applicant through the Selection Process; and
			<u>(e)</u>	any other information that T&SCo may reasonably require.
		<u>6.4</u>	The C	onnection Application shall also be accompanied

	<u>by:</u>	
	<u>(a)</u>	evidence that the Eligible Applicant has been Selected; and
	<u>(b)</u>	copies of any documents/information relating to the proposed connection to the T&S Network or modification of an existing Delivery Point (as the case may be) that were submitted by the Eligible Applicant as part of its application through the Selection Process.
	<u>Valid</u>	Connection Application
<u>6.5</u>		nnection Application shall be a "Valid Connection cation" where:
	<u>(a)</u>	the application form has been correctly and fully completed, and is consistent in all respects with the details which formed the basis of the Eligible Applicant's application through the Selection Process and subsequent Selection; and
	<u>(b)</u>	the Eligible Applicant has provided the evidence referred to in paragraph 6.4(a).
<u>6.6</u>	T&SC	o shall:
	<u>(a)</u>	as soon as reasonably practicable, and in any case no more than five (5) Business Days from the date of receipt of the Connection Application, acknowledge receipt of such Connection Application;
	<u>(b)</u>	within twenty (20) Business Days of receipt of the Connection Application:
		(i) confirm that it is a Valid Connection Application; or
		(ii) advise the Eligible Applicant that the Connection Application is not a Valid Connection Application and specify the reasons that the Connection Application is not a Valid Connection Application; and
	<u>(c)</u>	where it considers that further information is required in order for it to consider or progress the Connection Application, request such further information from the Eligible Applicant.
<u>6.7</u>	reque practi Busin	Eligible Applicant shall provide any additional sted information as soon as reasonably cable and in any case no more than fifteen (15) ess Days after the date of receipt of the request T&SCo.
<u>6.8</u>	Where	e a submitted Connection Application is not a

		\/a	id Connection Application, the Eligible Applicant			
			y resubmit, amend or supplement the Connection			
			olication.			
7	Post-Selection due	Note: furth	per consideration is being given to any due diligence			
<u>Z.</u>	diligence		input needed from T&SCo (under the CCS Network			
			ce) as part of any Selection Process.			
		_	67 W 100			
<u>8.</u>	<u>Initial Offer</u>	<u>Iss</u>	sue of Initial Offer			
		<u>8.1</u> <u>Wi</u>	thin three (3) months of the date on which T&SCo			
			<u>ifies the Eligible Applicant that the relevant</u>			
			nnection Application is a Valid Connection olication, T&SCo shall either:			
		<u>Α</u> μ	bilcation, 183Co shall either.			
		<u>(a)</u>	subject to paragraph 8.2, advise the Eligible			
			Applicant that the Connection Applicant's Valid Connection Application has been rejected; or			
			Connection Application has been rejected, or			
		<u>(b)</u>	issue an Initial Offer to the Eligible Applicant.			
			SCo can only reject an Eligible Applicant's Valid			
			nnection Application where the Eligible Applicant has			
		<u>bee</u>	en Deselected.			
		<u>Co</u>	Contents of Initial Offer			
		<u>8.3</u> <u>An</u>	8.3 An Initial Offer shall include the following:			
		<u>(a)</u>	a draft Construction Agreement, including:			
			(i) a draft Construction Programme; and			
			(ii) <u>a draft Commissioning Programme;</u>			
		<u>(b)</u>	a draft Connection Agreement; and			
		<u>(c)</u>	<u>a draft Accession Agreement (if the Eligible Applicant is not already a User under the Code).</u>			
		Ac	ceptance or refusal of Initial Offer			
		8.4 <u>The</u>	e Eligible Applicant will have one (1) month to			
			cept or refuse the Initial Offer.			
		<u>8.5</u> <u>If</u>	the Eligible Applicant decides to accept the Initial			
			er then the Eligible Applicant shall return to T&SCo			
		<u>a s</u>	igned copy of the Initial Offer.			
		<u>8.6</u> <u>An</u>	Eligible Applicant's acceptance of the Initial Offer			
			all not give rise to a legally binding contract between			
		<u>the</u>	Eligible Applicant and the T&SCo.			
<u>9.</u>	Connection Offer	<u>Is</u>	suing of a Connection Offer			
		0.1	ore on Eligible Applicant has accounted an Tallial			
		Off	ere an Eligible Applicant has accepted an Initial er, T&SCo shall, subject to paragraph 9.4, issue a nnection Offer to the Eligible Applicant as soon as it			

			nably practicable having regard to the work red to be undertaken by T&SCo to prepare the
		Conne	ection Offer.
	9.2	T&SC each	ort of the process to prepare a Connection Offer, o and the Eligible Applicant shall cooperate with other and provide each other with any additional nation or clarification as may be reasonably red.
			ent of Connection Offer
	<u>9.3</u>		nnection Offer shall include the following:
		<u>(a)</u>	a final Construction Agreement, including:
			(i) the Construction Programme; and
			(ii) the Commissioning Programme;
		<u>(b)</u>	a final Connection Agreement; and
		<u>(c)</u>	a final Accession Agreement (if the Eligible Applicant is not already a User under the Code).
	<u>Obliga</u>	tion to	issue Connection Offer
	<u>9.4</u>	Eligib	SCo is required to issue a Connection Offer to an le Applicant unless the Eligible Applicant has been ected.
	Accept	ance o	or refusal of Full Connection Offer
	<u>9.5</u>		Eligible Applicant will have three (3) months to to or refuse the Connection Offer.
	<u>9.6</u>		ne Eligible Applicant decides to accept the ection Offer then the Eligible Applicant shall:
		<u>(a)</u>	return to T&SCo a duly executed copy of the Connection Offer; and
		<u>(b)</u>	at the same time, commit to entering into:
			(i) the Accession Agreement;
			(ii) the Construction Agreement; and
			(iii) the Connection Agreement,
			subject to conditions precedent to the financial
			investment decision of both T&SCo and the Eligible Applicant, as referenced in the Connection Offer.
	<u>9.7</u>	make shall	e T&SCo is a Prospective T&SCo at the time it s a Connection Offer, then that Connection Offer be conditional on the Prospective T&SCo ming a party to the Code upon being awarded a

			Licence and acceding to the Code Agreement.
<u>10.</u>	Connection disputes		<u>Mediation</u>
		10.1	Where a dispute arises between a User or a prospective User and a T&SCo in relation to a Connection Application, the directors or other senior representatives of the parties with authority to settle the dispute shall, following a written request from one party to the other, attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute.
		10.2	If the dispute cannot be resolved within 10 Business Days of the request referred to in paragraph 10.1, then the parties agree to refer the dispute to mediation in accordance with the mediation procedure set out in paragraph 10 of Section B of the Code. The Storage of Carbon Dioxide (Access to
		10.3	Infrastructure) Regulations The process for the parties seeking to resolve a dispute in accordance with paragraphs 10.1 and 10.2 shall be without prejudice to the right of a User or a prospective User under the Storage of Carbon Dioxide (Access to Infrastructure) Regulations 2011 or the Storage of Carbon Dioxide (Access to Infrastructure) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015.

SECTION D: NETWORK STRUCTURE AND PLANNING

No	Subject	Terms	
1.	Network Classification		Overview of T&S Network
	Classification	1.1	Each T&S Network owned and operated by each T&SCo is made up of the following:
			(a) the Onshore Transportation System;
			(b) the Offshore Pipeline Infrastructure; and
			(c) the Storage Complex.
			Note: the relevant T&S Network and Delivery Points etc. will be specifically defined in the relevant Connection Agreement.
2.	Network Planning	2.1	Subject to paragraph 2.3, for the purposes of assisting T&SCo in planning the operation and future development of the T&S Network, all Users shall, by 31 October May of each Charging Year provide to T&SCo a forecast of:
			(a) the mass of carbon dioxide to be delivered to the T&S Network through the User's Delivery Point; and
			(b) the User's capacity requirements,
			for the following (20) twenty Charging Years.
		2.2	The data provided pursuant to paragraph 2.1 shall be presented in a form to be specified by T&SCo, including a periodic breakdown of [period to be specified] forecast figures.
		2.3	Subject to paragraph 2.4, any forecast provided by a User to T&SCo pursuant to paragraph 2.1 shall not be binding on the User and each T&SCo acknowledges that any such forecast shall be used by the T&SCo for planning purposes only.
		2.4	Users shall use reasonable endeavours to provide accurate forecasts when providing information to T&SCo under this paragraph 2 and all such forecasts must be provided on a bona fide basis.
		2.5	Users shall respond promptly to any queries from T&SCo regarding such forecasts.
3.	Interface between Onshore System and Offshore System	3.1	Note: if the onshore and offshore components of the T&S Network are, in the future, under separate ownership and control, then the CCS Network Code will need to include some provisions dealing with the interface between the two systems and overall operation of the total system. It is not envisaged that this will apply under the initial CCS Network Code.

SECTION E: NETWORK USE AND CAPACITY

No	Subject	Terms	
1.	Network use		Use of Network
		1.1	Users may use the T&S Network by delivering carbon dioxide to the Onshore Transportation System or Offshore Transportation and Storage System at a Delivery Point for permanent sequestrationstorage in the Storage Complex.
			Note: each User's Connection Agreement will identify (by description or a diagram or both) the Delivery Point to which that User will deliver carbon dioxide.
			Title and risk
		1.2	Title and risk in carbon dioxide delivered to the T&S Network at a Delivery Point in accordance with paragraph 1.1 shall pass to T&SCo at that Delivery Point.
			Network Capacity
		1.3	Users may apply for and register as holding capacity in the T&S Network (" Network Capacity ") at Delivery Points.
		1.4	Network Capacity is expressed in tCO ₂ /hour.
		1.5	T&SCo will beis required to make available a minimum mass of Network Capacity ("Obligated Network Capacity") in accordance with the terms of theits Licence. The Obligated Network
			Registered Capacity available shall be determined by the Most Restricted Communal Element of the T&S Network, with the
		<u>1.6</u>	The maximum Network Capacity available for registration that can be allocated to a User and registered as being held by that User at a Delivery Point being subject to the Maximum Eligible Capacity physical limits established by the size of the User's connection at the User's Delivery Point, as defined by the Delivery Point Size set out in the User's Connection Agreement.
		<u>1.7</u>	1.6-A User's "Registered Capacity":
			(a) is the Network Capacity which the User is registered (in accordance with this Section E) as holding at a Delivery Point; and
			(b) constitutes a User's entitlement to deliver carbon dioxide at a <u>given rateDelivery Point measured</u> in tCO ₂ /hour <u>and constituting the</u>

No	Subject	Terms	
			maximum instantaneous flow rate.
			Scope of Registered Capacity
		1.8	1.7 Where an Onshore User holds Registered Capacity, then (unless otherwise specified) that Registered Capacity constitutes Network Capacity in the following parts of the T&S Network:
			(a) the Onshore Transportation System;
			(b) the Offshore Transportation and Storage System.
		<u>1.9</u>	1.8-Where an Offshore User holds Registered Capacity, then (unless otherwise specified) that Registered Capacity constitutes Network Capacity in the Offshore Transportation and Storage System.
2.	Categories of		Categories of Network Capacity
	Network Capacity 2	2.1	Network Capacity may be allocated to and registered as held by Users as:
			(a) Long-term Network Capacity which may be applied for by a User and become Registered Capacity for each Hour of each Day in a period of between one (1) Charging Year and fifteen (15) Charging Years; or
			(b) Annual Network Capacity which may be applied for by a User and become Registered Capacity by a User for <u>each Hour of</u> each Day in a particular Charging Year.
			Note: it is expected that shorter-term capacity products and interruptible capacity will be introduced by modification when there is demand.
3.	Allocation of		<u>Initial allocations of Network Capacity</u>
	Network Capacity	3.1	It is acknowledged that each certain Initial User holds the Registered Capacity specified in [to confirm where Registered Capacity is recorded] Users have been allocated Network Capacity outside of the process set out in this Section E, where that allocation has taken place prior to the Code Implementation Date, as described in paragraph 2 of Section C.
			Network Capacity publication requirements
		3.2	T&SCo shall:
			(a) publish on its T&S Network Portal:
			(i) information about the amount of Network

No	Subject	Terms			
					Capacity available to Users on the basis of Obligated Network Capacity and, in particular;
				<u>(ii)</u>	this CCS Network Code as well as any relevant procedures prepared and published pursuant to the provisions of the Code;
				<u>(iii)</u>	any other technical and operating requirements relating to connection to and use of the T&S Network; and
				<u>(iv)</u>	a statement advising Users and prospective Users that they should apply for Network Capacity through the Selection Process;
			<u>(b)</u>		the information referred to in paragraph dated at all times.
			<u>Capac</u>	ity all	<u>ocation</u>
		<u>3.3</u>	shall b	e invit	rospective Users ("Capacity Applicants") red to apply for Network Capacity during application Window, which through the scess.
			3.3 w alread reference could	ill not y bee nced i apply t	llocation process referred to in paragraph apply to the Network Capacity that has an allocated to the Initial Users (as an paragraph 3.1 above). Initial Users though this process for additional Network were this is available).
		<u>3.4</u>	Capac	ity Ar	k Capacity that may be allocated to oplicants may be Long-term Network Annual Network Capacity.
		3.3		_	ity Application Window" shall be and of [x] from [x] to [x].
			apply Users Existina apply	so tha and po ng Use for Ne	ngle "Capacity Application Window" will- t the future capacity requirements of new- ptential Users can be considered together. rs and potential Users will all be able to- twork Capacity at the same time during a- phication Window.
		3.4	An apı	olicatio	n for Network Capacity shall specify:
			(a)	the ide	entity of the User;
			(b)	the De	livery Point;
			(c)	the po	e riod for which the Network Capacity is

No	Subject	Terms
		applied for; and
		(d) the amount (not less than the Minimum Eligible-Amount and not more than the Maximum Eligible-Amount for that User) of Network Capacity being applied for.
		Note: in the future Network Capacity will be allocated by T&SCo through different mechanisms, such as set capacity allocation windows. During the early stages of the CCUS industry, the Government has been taking the lead on the allocation of network capacity. The definition of "Selection Process" remains under review and development.
		3.5 Where a <u>UserCapacity Applicant</u> already holds Registered Capacity, the <u>UserCapacity Applicant</u> can apply for additional Network Capacity <u>during a Capacity Application Window</u> provided that:
		(a) the User complies with all other requirements under the Code relating to allocation of Network Capacity; and
		(b) by acquiring the addition Network Capacity, the UserCapacity Applicant's total Registered Capacity does not extend for a period of time beyond fifteen (15) Charging Years (not including any Registered Capacity that has already been used up before the relevant Capacity Application Window).
		3.6 T&SCo shall only be entitled to refuse the application for additional Network Capacity if:).
		(a) the application does not comply with paragraph 3.4 and the User fails to rectify such non-compliance within five (5) Business Days of a notice from the T&SCo requesting such rectification; or
		(b) the requested Network Capacity is not available and T&SCo, having applied the principles set out in paragraph 3.7, has determined that:
		(i) no Network Capacity can be allocated to the User; or
		(ii) the amount of Network Capacity that be- allocated to the User is less than the- amount that the User has applied for.
		Recording of Registered Capacity
		3.7 Where paragraph 3.6(b) applies, the available Network Capacity will be allocated in accordance with the following principles: Where Network Capacity has been

No	Subject	Terms	
			allocated to a Capacity Applicant in accordance with the CCUS Cluster Sequencing Process or another Selection Process, then, subject to paragraph 3.7, upon the offer and acceptance of that Network Capacity it shall become that Capacity Applicant's Registered Capacity.
			[principles to be developed]
			Note: the Initial Code will include principles for the allocation of capacity where all capacity applications cannot be accommodated. These principles are being developed alongside the principles that will apply to new connection applications, which will be set out in Section C (Connection).
		3.6	3.8 T&SCo will inform the User of the Network Where a Capacity which Applicant is a prospective User then then any Network Capacity that has been allocated to it and registered as being held then offered and accepted by that the prospective User within [x] of the closing of the Capacity Application Windowshall become Registered Capacity upon that prospective User becoming a User.
			Application for prospective Users
			Note: it is expected that the process to be developed under Section C (Connection) for prospective Users applying to connect to the T&S Network will include applications for Network Capacity to be determined within the single Capacity Application Window.
		<u>3.7</u>	Registered Capacity shall be recorded in:
			(a) the T&S Network Portal; and
			(b) for Capacity Applicant's acquiring Registered Capacity for the first time in relation to their Delivery Point, in their Connection Agreement.
4.	<u>Financial</u> Security		Note: in the future Users may be required to provide additional financial security (in addition to the financial security required under Section H) to secure post-termination liabilities for Long-term Network Capacity. The However, the level of financial security that may be required has been set for the time being is under reviewzero.
5.	NominationForecast ing procedure		Nominations - General Purpose of forecasts
	<u>mg</u> procedure		Note : this paragraph 5 of Section E sets out some- high level principles relating to nominations. However, this is an area that is subject to further development.
		Users v	vill nominate forecast quantities of carbon dioxide for

No	Subject	Terms	
			delivery at a Delivery Point for each hour Day or for each Hour of each Day in accordance with this paragraph 5 for the purposes of enabling T&SCo to plan and carry out the operation of the T&S Network. The nominations both longer term and shorter term operational planning.
			<u>Types of Forecasts</u>
		<u>5.1</u>	The Forecasts that Users are required to make are as follows:
			(a) Annual Nominations Forecasts;
			(b) Rolling Quarterly Forecasts;
			(c) (b) [Monthly/ Forecasts; and
			(d) Weekly Nominations];
			(c) Daily Nominations, Forecasts,
			collectively referred to as "Nominations Forecasts".
			Note : the details of the nominations process are to be developed. Paragraphs 5.10 onwards set out some high level principles that will apply to Daily Nominations. To avoid duplication of information being provided, it is envisaged that Annual Nominations will be provided together with other forecasting information under Section H.
		<u>5.2</u>	5.2 A User shall submit separate Nomination(s)Forecasts in respect of each Delivery Point.
		<u>5.3</u>	A User-shall not submit a Nomination in respect of a's Forecast must not exceed:
			(a) the User's Registered Capacity in relation to the Delivery Point and time period that the Forecast relates to; and
			(b) 5.3 the maximum amount of carbon dioxide that can be delivered to that Delivery Point at which, for that Day or any Hour of that Day, under the prevailing Maintenance Programme or because of some other notified Capacity Constraint, carbon dioxide is not to be delivered to the T&S Network from that Delivery Point on the Day.
		5.4	The User shall submit a Nomination on the basis of its good faith estimated quantity of carbon dioxide to be delivered on the relevant Day.
		5.4	The aggregate of the Nominated Quantities specified

No	Subject	Terms	
			by a User in a Nomination shall not be greater than the Maximum Eligible Capacity for the period covered by the Nomination. Where a User's Forecast specifies the amount of carbon dioxide being forecast for any Day within the Forecast, that amount must not exceed the User's Registered Capacity totalled over the number of hours in that Day, and the forecast must be based on estimates for each Hour within that Day which do not exceed the User's Registered Capacity in tCO ₂ /Hour for that Hour.
			Approval and rejection
		5.5	T&SCo may reject or (in its discretion) approve a Nomination which is not submitted in accordance with, or does not comply with, Where a User's Forecast specifies the requirements amount of the Code carbon dioxide being forecast for any Hour within the Forecast, that amount must not exceed the User's Registered Capacity in tCO ₂ /Hour for that Hour.
		<u>5.6</u>	A User shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure that:
			(a) each Forecast constitutes an accurate representation of the User's expected delivery of carbon dioxide during the time periods to which the Forecast relates to; and
			(b) as the time period between the provision of each relevant Forecast and the Day or Hour in a Day to which the Forecast relates is progressively reduced, the relevant Forecasts also become progressively more accurate.
			Annual Nominations Forecasts
		<u>5.7</u>	5.7—A User shall provide an Annual Nominations shall-be provided Forecast (as part of the forecasting information required to be provided by Users in-accordance withprocess under paragraph 5 of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment)) for each Year t to-whichby the forecast relates 31 October of Year t-1.
		<u>5.8</u>	5.8-Each Annual NominationForecast shall specify:
			(a) the Year t that it relates to;
			(b) the identity of the User;
			(c) the Delivery Point; and
			(d) the quantity of carbon dioxide nominated forecast for delivery for each Day of

No	Subject	Terms	
			that Year t.
			[Monthly/Weekly Nominations]
		5.9	Note: principles that will apply to Monthly and/or Weekly Nominations are under review.
			Daily Nominations
			Rolling Quarterly Forecasts
		<u>5.9</u>	A User shall provide a Rolling Quarterly Forecast covering a period of three calendar months ("quarter") five (5) Business Days before the start of that quarter.
		<u>5.10</u>	5.10 Each Daily NominationRolling Quarterly Forecast shall specify:
			(a) the Day three calendar months that it relates to;
			(b) the identity of the User;
			(c) the Delivery Point; and
			(d) the quantity of carbon dioxide nominated forecast for delivery for each hour of the Day ("the Nominated Quantity"). of that quarter.
			Monthly Forecast
		<u>5.11</u>	A User shall provide a Monthly Forecast for each calendar month five (5) Business Days before the start of that month.
			Re-nominations
		5.11	Note: the initial Code may include a process to allow Users to amend their original Daily Nomination through a re-nomination procedure after the daily deadline for nominations has passed.
			Over-nomination and deviation from Nominated Quantity
		5.12	Note: the initial Code may include a process to address Users nominating quantities greater than their Registered Capacity and consequences for Users delivering carbon dioxide in quantities substantially deviating from their Nominated Quantities.
			Nomination timetable
		5.12	A Daily Nomination in relation to each Day shall be made by [x] on the preceding Day (the "Nomination Close Time"). Each Monthly Forecast shall specify:
<u> </u>		İ	70

No	Subject	Terms	
			(a) the calendar month that it relates to;
			(b) the identity of the User;
			(c) the Delivery Point; and
			(d) the quantity of carbon dioxide forecast for delivery for each Day of that calendar month.
			Weekly Forecast
		<u>5.13</u>	A User shall provide a Weekly Forecast for each Calendar Week by 12.00 o'clock on Thursday of the preceding Calendar Week.
		<u>5.14</u>	Each Weekly Forecast shall specify:
			(a) the Calendar Week that it relates to;
			(b) the identity of the User;
			(c) 5.14 If in respect of anythe Delivery Point:
			(a) a User has not submitted a Daily Nomination by the Nomination Close Time; or ; and
			(b) T&SCo has rejected a Daily Nomination submitted by a User,
			(d) the User shall be deemed to have failed to make a Daily Nomination quantity of carbon dioxide forecast for delivery for each Hour of that Calendar Week.
		5.15	A Daily Nomination submitted to T&SCo which has not been approved within [x] shall be deemed to have been rejected.
6.	Transfer of		Purpose of Nominations
	Registered Capacity Nomination s procedure	<u>6.1</u>	Users will nominate quantities of carbon dioxide for delivery at a Delivery Point for each Hour of each Day in accordance with this paragraph 6 for the purposes of enabling T&SCo to:
			(a) optimise the use of the T&S Network; and
			(b) operate the T&S Network in a safe and efficient manner.
			<u>Daily Nominations</u>
		<u>6.2</u>	A User shall provide a Daily Nomination for each Day by the Nomination Close Time, where the Nomination Close Time is 13:00 hours on the Day before the Day to which the Daily Nomination relates.
			-73

No	Subject	Terms	
		<u>6.3</u>	At any time before the Nomination Close Time, a User may change an earlier Daily Nomination already made, provided that the last Daily Nomination that is made before the Nomination Close Time shall be treated as the User's Daily Nomination for the purposes of this Section E.
		<u>6.4</u>	Each Daily Nomination shall specify:
			(a) the Day it relates to;
			(b) the identity of the User;
			(c) the Delivery Point; and
			(d) the quantity of carbon dioxide nominated for delivery for each Hour of the Day ("the Nominated Quantity").
			General principles applying to Daily Nominations and Renominations
		<u>6.5</u>	A User's Daily Nomination (or Renomination) must be the User's best estimate, made in good faith, of the amount of carbon dioxide that the User intends to deliver at the Delivery Point for each Hour of the Day to which the Daily Nomination (or Renomination) relates.
		<u>6.6</u>	A User's Nominated Quantity must not exceed:
			(a) the User's Registered Capacity for the Hour and Delivery Point to which the Nominated Quantity relates;
			(b) the maximum amount of carbon dioxide that can be delivered to that Delivery Point, for that Hour, under the prevailing Maintenance Programme or because of some other notified Capacity Constraint.
			Note: it is expected that a process for Users trading their capacity could be introduced by modification when there is demand. intended that where a User is notified of a Capacity Constraint quite close to the Nomination Close Time – e.g. between 12:00 hours and 13:00 hours – meaning that its Daily Nomination (that it has made or is about to make) no longer complies with paragraph 6.6(b), the User will be given additional time to amend its Daily Nomination so that it complies with paragraph 6.6(b). This will be addressed in the full-form of the Code.
		6 7	Failure to nominate If in respect of any Delivery Beint a Hear has not
		<u>6.7</u>	If in respect of any Delivery Point a User has not

No	Subject	Terms	
			submitted a Daily Nomination that complies with the requirements of paragraphs 6.2, 6.4 and 6.6 by the Nomination Close Time then:
			(a) the User shall be deemed to have failed to make a Daily Nomination; and
			(b) the Nominated Quantity for each Hour of the Day in relation to which the User has failed to submit a Daily Nomination shall be deemed to be zero.
			Confirmation
		<u>6.8</u>	T&SCo shall confirm to the User by no later than the Confirmation Close Time whether the User's Daily Nomination has been accepted or rejected.
		<u>6.9</u>	Where T&SCo has not notified the User by the Confirmation Close Time whether the User's Daily Nomination has been accepted or rejected, then the Daily Nomination shall be deemed to have been accepted.
		<u>6.10</u>	The Confirmation Close Time is 15:00 hours on the Day before the Day to which the Daily Nomination relates.
		6.11	Where T&SCo has accepted (or is deemed to have accepted) the User's Daily Nomination then each Nominated Quantity included in the Daily Nomination shall be the Confirmed Nominated Quantity .
			Rejection of Daily Nomination
		<u>6.12</u>	T&SCo may reject a User's Daily Nomination only where:
			(a) as at Nomination Close Time, the Daily Nomination does not comply with the requirements of paragraphs 6.2, 6.4 and 6.6; or
			(b) after Nomination Close Time, a Capacity Constraint affects the ability of T&SCo to accept the whole or part of any Nominated Quantity.
		<u>6.13</u>	Where T&SCo rejects the whole or part of a User's Daily Nomination because of a Capacity Constraint pursuant to paragraph 6.12(b) or for some other reason, other than pursuant to paragraph 6.12(a), then:
			(a) the extent to which T&SCo rejects the nomination shall be deemed to be a reduction in the User's Registered Capacity in accordance

No	Subject	Terms		
				with paragraph 12.11;
			<u>(b)</u>	where any whole Nominated Quantity included in the User's Daily Nomination has been rejected, then such a rejected Nominated Quantity is deemed to be a Curtailed Nomination ;
			<u>(c)</u>	where any part of a Nominated Quantity included in the User's Daily Nomination has been rejected and is subject to reduction pursuant to paragraphs 12.11 of this Section E, then the Curtailed Nomination shall be the difference between the Nominated Quantity included in the User's Daily Nomination and any Renominated Constrained Quantity.
			6.21) (paradused availa T&SCo of the	"Curtailed Nominations" (paragraphs 6.13 and and "Constrained Registered Capacity" graph 12.10) are both quantity values that will be under T&SCo's Licence to determine the bility adjustment to the Allowed Revenue of a under the Licence. On that basis, some aspects relevant provisions will also (or instead) be dealt in the conditions of the Licence.
			<u>Reno</u>	<u>minations</u>
		<u>6.14</u>	vary	ving the Confirmation Close Time, a User may the Nominated Quantities set out in its Daily nation by submitting a Renomination.
		<u>6.15</u>	Nomir	enomination can vary one or more of the nated Quantities set out in the User's Daily nation, provided that:
			<u>(a)</u>	the Renomination is submitted by the User at least 30 minutes prior to the Hour in relation to which a Nominated Quantity is being amended; and
			<u>(b)</u>	any Nominated Quantity included in the Renomination does not exceed the restrictions that applied to the User's Daily Nomination:
				(i) pursuant to clause 6.6 as at Nomination Close Time; or
				(ii) subsequently, pursuant to clause 12.11.
		<u>6.16</u>	User Renor by T8	e T&SCo has received a Renomination from a in accordance with paragraph 6.14, that mination shall be deemed to have been accepted a SCo unless T&SCo has notified the User that it een rejected.

No	Subject	Terms	
		6.17	Where T&SCo has accepted (or is deemed to have accepted) the User's Renomination then each revised Nominated Quantity included in the Renomination shall be the new Confirmed Nominated Quantity.
		6.18	A User may make more than one Renomination in relation to the same Day (or part of a Day) provided that the Renomination complies with the requirements of this paragraph 6.
			Rejection of Renomination
		<u>6.19</u>	T&SCo may reject a User's Renomination only where:
			(a) the Renomination does not comply with the requirements of paragraph 6.15; or
			(b) a Capacity Constraint affects the ability of T&SCo to accept the whole or part of any new Nominated Quantity.
		<u>6.20</u>	When the T&SCo rejects a Renomination on the basis of paragraph 6.19(a), the prevailing Daily Nomination or Renomination shall remain in place.
		<u>6.21</u>	Where T&SCo rejects the whole or part of a Renomination because of a Capacity Constraint pursuant to paragraph 6.19(b) or for some other reason, other than pursuant to paragraph 6.19(a), then:
			(a) the extent to which T&SCo rejects the nomination shall be deemed to be a reduction in the User's Registered Capacity in accordance with paragraph 12.11;
			(b) where the whole Renomination has been rejected, then such a rejected Renomination is deemed to be a Curtailed Nomination;
			where any part of a Nominated Quantity included in the User's Renomination has been rejected and is subject to reduction pursuant to paragraph 12.11 of this Section E, then the Curtailed Nomination shall be the difference between the Nominated Quantity included in the User's Renomination and any Renominated Constrained Quantity.
			Delivery of carbon dioxide in accordance with nomination
		6.22	A User's final Confirmed Nominated Quantity, as varied in accordance with any Renomination (including any Renomination made, or deemed to be made, in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 12.11),

No	Subject	Terms			
			shall b	be the I	Final Confirmed Nominated Quantity.
		6.23	the ar	mount is eq	use reasonably endeavours to ensure that of carbon dioxide it delivers at a Delivery ual to the Final Confirmed Nominated
			Non-o		mity with Final Confirmed Nominated
		<u>6.24</u>			er has Materially or Persistently failed to the requirements of paragraph 6.23 then:
			<u>(a)</u>		o may service a notice on the User ninations Non-conformity Notice")
				<u>(i)</u>	requires the User to desist from failing to comply with the requirements of paragraph 6.23; and
				<u>(ii)</u>	includes details of how the User has Materially or Persistently failed to comply with the requirements of paragraph 6.23;
			<u>(b)</u>	14 Da	ser shall be permitted a "grace period" of ays to implement measures to assist the n complying with paragraph 6.23;
			<u>(c)</u>	with grace shall	e avoidance of doubt, any non-compliance paragraph 6.23 by the User during the period referred to in paragraph 6.24(b) not entitle T&SCo to serve another nations Non-conformity Notice on the User.
		<u>6.25</u>	compl having	ly with g rece	er has Materially or Persistently failed to the requirements of paragraph 6.23 sived two Nominations Non-conformity n the preceding 12 months, then:
			<u>(a)</u>		nay service a notice on the User n-Delivery Notice") which:
				<u>(i)</u>	requires the User to cease delivering carbon dioxide at the Delivery Point within 24 Hours of receipt of the Non-Delivery Notice; and
				<u>(ii)</u>	includes details of how the User has Materially or Persistently failed to comply with the requirements of paragraph 6.23;
			<u>(b)</u>	carbo reaso	ser shall not be entitled to delivery any n dioxide at the Delivery Point until it has nably satisfied T&SCo that it will cease to ially or Persistently breach paragraph

No	Subject	Terms		
				6.23; and
			<u>(c)</u>	where the User is unable to remedy the breach as contemplated under paragraph (b) within 14 Days, then T&SCo may issue a Default Notice to the User in accordance with Section J.
		<u>6.26</u>	For th	ne purposes of paragraphs 6.24 and 6.25:
				erially" means a variation of more than [5%] the course of a Day, calculated by:
			<u>(a)</u>	allocating a percentage figure (the "Percentage Variation") for each Hour in the Day (other than Zero Hours), which percentage figure represents the absolute variation (i.e. whether over or under) by which the User has deviated from its Final Confirmed Nominated Quantity; and
			<u>(b)</u>	adding up all the Percentage Variations for that Day and dividing them by the number of Hours in the Day (other than Zero Hours),
			where	<u>2:</u>
			<u>(c)</u>	"Zero Hour" means any Hour in that Day in relation to which the User's Final Confirmed Nominated Quantity is zero and in which the User has not delivered any carbon dioxide; and
			<u>(d)</u>	"Percentage Variation" for an Hour is calculated according to this formula:
			FCNQ	$\frac{-Actual\ Amount}{FCNQ} \times 100$
			where	2:
				(i) FCNQ is the Final Confirmed Nominated Quantity for that Hour (expressed in tCO ₂);
				(ii) Actual Amount is the actual amount of carbon dioxide delivered in that Hour (expressed in tCO ₂); and
				(iii) the numerator in the formula is an absolute value.
			have could need	: where both the FCNQ and the Actual Amount a relatively low value, equally small variations result in a high Percentage Variation. This may further consideration. In addition, further ng will be required in relation to situations where

No	Subject	Terms	
			the FCNQ is zero and the Actual Amount is not.
			"Persistently" means a variation of more than [3%] for any Day (calculated using the methodology equivalent to that referenced in the definition of Materially), where that variation happens more than three times or more in any period of 14 Days.
		<u>6.27</u>	The User shall be required to continue paying any Capacity Charges or Network Charges relating to the time period during which it has been required to desist from delivering carbon dioxide pursuant to paragraph 6.25.
			Impact of Capacity Constraints on User ability to conform with Final Confirmed Nominated Quantity
		<u>6.28</u>	Where a User is unable to comply with paragraph 6.23 as a result of:
			(a) the circumstances set out in paragraph 12.13 (relating to where a User has insufficient notice of its Reduced Capacity); or
			(b) other circumstances where T&SCo has issued a direction to the User at short notice, requiring the User to change the amount of carbon dioxide it is delivering,
			then such deviation from the requirements of paragraph 6.23 shall not be taken into consideration when applying the "Materially" and "Persistently" triggers set out in paragraph 6.26.
<u>Z.</u>	Communication of Forecasts and Nominations	<u>7.1</u>	Users shall make all Forecasts and Nominations through the T&S Network Portal.
<u>8.</u> 7.	Surrender of	<u>8.1</u>	7.1 Users may offer to surrender Registered Capacity:
	Registered Capacity		(a) for a Year; or
			(b) for the remainder of the period of the User's Registered Long-term Network Capacity,
			provided that a User may not surrender more than 10% in aggregate of the original quantity of the Registered Capacity.
		<u>8.2</u>	7.2 An offer (" Capacity Offer ") to surrender Registered Capacity pursuant to paragraph 7.18.1 shall specify:
			(a) the identity of the User;

Subject	Terms	
		(b) the Delivery Point;
		(c) the period for which Registered Capacity is offered for surrender;
		(d) the amount (not less than the Minimum Eligible Amount) of Registered Capacity offered for surrender; and
		(e) the minimum amount (not less than the Minimum Eligible Amount) of Registered Capacity for which the User is willing to have the offer accepted;
		7.3 T&SCo shall only be obliged to accept a Capacity Offer where such Registered Capacity can be re-allocated to a User in accordance with paragraph 3 after all available Obligated Network Capacity which is not the subject of a Capacity Offer has been allocated.
	<u>8.3</u>	7.4 A User can make a Capacity Offer at any time, but it will that Capacity Offer shall only be:
		(a) considered by T&SCo at the first Capacity Application Windowas part of Network Capacity allocation during the first Selection Process relating to that T&S Network that follows the making of the Capacity Offer by the User; and
		(b) accepted where such Registered Capacity can be re-allocated to another User or prospective User.
	<u>8.4</u>	7.5 A User shall remain liable for Capacity Charges for any surrendered Registered Capacity until such capacity becomes registered to another User.
Underutilisation		Note: "Use it or Lose it" provisions may be introduced by modification where available capacity in T&S Networks becomes limited.
Maintenance		Decisions on maintenance planning
· rammy	9.1	T&SCo will plan the maintenance of the T&S Network and prepare Maintenance Programmes in good faith with a view to, so far as is practicable having regard to:
		(a) the nature and urgency of the requirements for such maintenance;
		(b) any Legal Requirements applying to the operation of the T&S Network; and
	Underutilisation Underutilisation	8.3 Winderutilisation Maintenance Planning

No	Subject	Terms	s
			(c) T&SCo's normal working practices,
			coordinating the timing of such maintenance to maximise the quantity of carbon dioxide, produced by Users, that can be transported and stored that is produced by Users.
			Maintenance
		9.2	References in the Code to maintenance (of a T&S Network or any part of it) include:
			(a) maintenance, inspection, repair, replacement, reinstatement and recommissioning of a T&S Network or such part of it;
			(b) Network Expansion Works; and
			(c) any inspection, testing and commissioning of works within paragraphs (a) and (b), and works preparatory thereto, and any works required for bringing any new or existing part of the T&S Network into or back into service.
			Users' planning and forecasting information
		9.3	In each year each User shall provide to T&SCo, not later than

No	Subject	Terms		
			may Delive carbo	ammed Maintenance of the T&S Network which affect the delivery of carbon dioxide to the ery Point in order to maximise the quantity of a dioxide, produced by Users, that can be ported and stored that is produced by Users.
10.	Maintenance		T&SC	o Maintenance Programme
	Programme	10.1	theres and p Mainte ahead	ct to paragraph 10.2, T&SCo will within [x] of a T&SCo's accession to the Code and after, not later than [x] each year, shall prepare publish on its T&S Network Portal an updated enance Programme for the Planning Period 1, by 16 October of the Charging Year diately before the start of the Planning Period.
		10.2	yet c Netwo Progra	e a T&SCo has acceded to the Code and has not ommenced commercial operation of the T&S ork, it shall publish its first Maintenance amme within 24 weeks from the date on which it ed to the Code
		10.3	parag Planni for the annua	The Maintenance Programme referred to in raph 10.1 is intended to always cover the ng Period ahead, but the information published at Planning Period is to be updated when the next all Maintenance Programme is published, such for example:
			(a)	a Maintenance Programme is published for Charging Years t, t+1, t+2, t+3 and t+4;
			(b)	when the next Maintenance Programme is published for Charging Years t+1 to t+5, the information originally published for Charging Years t+1 to t+4 will be updated in accordance with the requirements of this Section E.
			Conte	ent of Maintenance Programme
		<u>10.4</u>	10.3 /	A Maintenance Programme will identify:
			(a)	the Delivery Points at which the ability of T&SCo to accept delivery of carbon dioxide will be constrained by planned maintenance of the T&S Network;
			(b)	the periods for which such Delivery Points will be so affected;
			(c)	whether T&SCo expects that it will continue within such period (or part thereof) to be able to accept delivery of carbon dioxide at any such Delivery Point, but (by reason of such maintenance) on a restricted basis, and if so, fan indicative estimate of the maximum rate at

No	Subject	Terms		
				which T&SCo expects to be able to accept delivery of carbon dioxide;
			(d)	relevant maintenance activities to be performed by Users in accordance with information provided under paragraph 9.3; and
			(e)	such other information as T&SCo shall reasonably decide to include.
			Publi	ication of draft Maintenance Programme
		<u>10.5</u>		Before publishing the Maintenance Programme in dance with paragraph 10.1, T&SCo shall:
			(a)	publish on its T&S Network Portal a draft of the Maintenance Programme by [x]29 May ; and
			(b)	convene, on not less than [x] Weeks' notice, a meeting ("Annual Maintenance Meeting"), for review of the timing of planned maintenance of the T&S Network under such draft Maintenance Programme, the date of which:
				(i) shall be no later than 18 September (to allow T&SCo to first consider information provider by Users pursuant to paragraph 10.6); and
				(ii) is communicated to Users with not less than eight (8) weeks' notice.
		10.6	Week Meeti T&SC plann and/c plann	-Users may, up to but not later than eight (8) s before the date of the Annual Maintenance on (or first such meeting) by 24 July submit to to details of the dates and periods of maintenance and in respect of any relevant User Facilities or comments in relation to the timing of any meed maintenance under the draft Maintenance ramme.
		<u>10.7</u>	Meeti exten comn	Before holding the Annual Maintenance ing(s) T&SCo will discuss with each User, to such it as it deems appropriate, the details and ments submitted to it by that User under graph 10.510.6.
		10.8	Maint T&SC	—Subject to paragraphs 9.1 and 10.810.9, tenance Programme decisions shall be taken by to in its sole discretion, after liaising with Users in dance with paragraphs 10.410.5, 10.510.6 and 10.7.
			Co-o T&S	rdination of maintenance between different Cos

No	Subject	Terms	
		10.9	10.8—In preparing the draft Maintenance Programme, the T&SCos shall consult each other with a view, to minimising any adverse impacts on T&SCos and Users (collectively) of maintenance activities.
			Carrying out maintenance
		10.10	10.9—Subject to paragraphs 10.10 and 10.11 and 10.12, T&SCo will, so far as is reasonably practicable, carry out all maintenance of the T&S Network in accordance with the dates and periods provided for in the applicable Maintenance Programme, as updated on an annual basis.
		10.11	10.10 If T&SCo identifies the need to carry out Reactive Maintenance then it shall:
			(a) notify any Affected Users as soon as it identifies the need to carry out the Reactive Maintenance; and
			(b) schedule the carrying out of the Reactive Maintenance with a view to giving the Affected Users as much notice as is reasonably possible in the circumstances.
		<u>10.12</u>	$\frac{10.11}{10.11}$ The notice given to Affected Users in accordance with paragraph $\frac{10.10}{10.11}$ shall include the following information:
			(a) the date on which the Reactive Maintenance is to commence and its likely duration; and
			(b) the impact of the Reactive Maintenance on the Affected Users.
			Changes to Programmed Maintenance
		10.13	10.12 If T&SCo becomes aware that the commencement date or duration of any Programmed Maintenance needs to be changed, outside of the annual review of the Maintenance Programme, then T&SCo shall give the Affected Users not less than twenty (20) Business Days' notice (or such lesser period as the Affected Users may agree) of the changes to the Programmed Maintenance.
		10.14	$\frac{10.13}{10.13}$ T&SCo shall use reasonable endeavours to avoid making in changes to Programmed Maintenance under paragraph $\frac{10.12}{10.13}$.
			Notification requirements
		10.15	10.14 T&SCo will notify Affected Users, by way of reminder, of the carrying out of Programmed Maintenance (as revised under paragraph 10.1210.13)

not less than 5 Business Days before commencement of such maintenance, provided the accidental failure to notify a User shall prejut T&SCo's rights to carry out maintenance. 10.16 10.15 T&SCo will comply with notification/report obligations to ensure that Affected Users have one visibility of the progress of any activities under Maintenance Programme and when any Cap Constraint arising from maintenance will conclude. 11. Capacity Introduction to Capacity Constraints	the
	rting joing the
11.1 A "Capacity Constraint" is a constraint in or affe any part of the T&S Network at any time, as a rest which carbon dioxide flows in any part of the Network are, (or but for anything done by T& would be), less than the affected UserUs Registered Capacity, whether such constraint refrom:	ult of T&S &SCo ers' s
(a) the size of any part of the T&S Network; or	
(b) the operation or failure to operate any part of the Network.	T&S
11.2 A Delivery Point is "affected" by a Capacity Const where T&SCo is, or (but for anything done by T&SCo) would be unable to accept delivery of Registered Capacity of carbon dioxide at that Del Point, or its ability to do so is impaired, by reason Capacity Constraint.	that the very
11.3 A Capacity Constraint includes (but is not limited constraint which arises by reason of:	to) a
(a) Programmed Maintenance;	
(b) Reactive Maintenance; or	
(c) Emergency.	
Record keeping	
11.4 In addition to T&SCo's notification requirements up paragraphs 12.1 and 12.2, T&SCo shall keep wr records of any Capacity Constraints that have to place, after the fact, including information relating	itten aken
(a) the nature and cause of the Cap Constraint;	acity
(b) the Delivery Points affected by the Cap Constraint;	acity
(c) the action which T&SCo has taken to add	Iress

No	Subject	Terms	
			the Capacity Constraint; and
			(d) the magnitude and duration of the Capacity Constraint.
			Note: T&SCo's obligations to maintain records of Capacity Constraints will also be addressed in the Licence, as there is a direct link between Capacity Constraints and the availability adjustment under the Licence.
12.	Response to		Notification
	Capacity Constraints	12.1	To the extent not already provided in accordance with paragraph 10, as soon as is practicable after T&SCo becomes aware that a Capacity Constraint has arisen or will arise, T&SCo shall take the following actions:
			(a) T&SCo shall publish information about the Capacity Constraint on the T&S Network Portal;
			(b) T&SCo shall send notification of the Capacity Constraint to all Users of Delivery Points affected by the Capacity Constraint; and
			(c) T&SCo shall keep the information referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) reasonably updated, including in respect of the anticipated conclusion of the Capacity Constraint.
		12.2	The information about the Capacity Constraint, which T&SCo must publish and notify to Users in accordance with paragraph 12.1 includes:
			(a) the nature and cause of the Capacity Constraint;
			(b) the Delivery Points affected by the Capacity Constraint;
			(c) the action which T&SCo is intending to take to address the Capacity Constraint; and
			(d) the magnitude and expected duration of the Capacity Constraint.
			Response
		Subject	to paragraph 12.6, where Where a Capacity Constraint arises T&SCo shall respond to:
			(e) identify the Capacity Constraint by reducing the Network Capacity at the Users whose Delivery Points are affected by the Capacity Constraint (the "Constrained Users"); and

No	Subject	Terms	
			(f) unless the Capacity Constraint arises by reason of an Emergency (under paragraph 12.6) or where paragraph 12.8 applies, T&SCo shall apply the Pro-rata Reduction to the Registered Capacity of those Constrained Users.
			Pro-rata Reduction
		12.3	Pro-rata Reduction, where it is triggered pursuant to paragraph 12.3, means that the Registered Capacity of a Constrained User is reduced on a pro _rata basis, such that the reduced amount of Registered Capacity allocated to the Constrained User (the "Reduced Capacity") is calculated according to the following formula:
			$\frac{Available\ Capacity}{\Sigma CURC} \times RURC$
			where:
			Available Capacity is the amount of Network Capacity still available during the Capacity Constraint;
			CURC is the Registered Capacity of all the Constrained Users; and
			RURC is the Registered Capacity of the particular Constrained User.
			<u>Surplus Available Capacity after Pro-Rata Reduction</u>
		<u>12.4</u>	Where:
			(a) T&SCo has reduced the Registered Capacity of Constrained Users using Pro-rata Reduction; and
			(b) one or more Constrained Users have notified T&SCo that they are unable to utilise the Reduced Capacity (or part of it),
			then T&SCo shall seek to allocate the Reduced Capacity referred to in paragraph 12.5(b) (being the "Surplus Available Capacity") in accordance with the Constrained Capacity Optimisation Principles set out in paragraph 12.7. For the avoidance of doubt, such Surplus Available Capacity may be allocated to any Constrained User, even if it would mean that the proportion of Available Capacity allocated to that Constrained User is greater than that of other Constrained Users, provided T&SCo has applied the

No	Subject	Terms		
			Consti	trained Capacity Optimisation Principles.
				uction of Registered Capacity during
		<u>12.5</u>	Where Emercian T&SCoto im Registrall Emercian Em	re a Capacity Constraint is caused by an agency then, unless it is safe and practicable for co, acting as a Reasonable and Prudent Operator, amediately apply a Pro-Rata Reduction to the attered Capacity of Constrained Users, then T&SCo respond to the Emergency by applying the agency Procedure (where relevant to the agency in question) and the Constrained Capacity inisation Principles set out in paragraph 12.7.
			Const	strained Capacity Optimisation Principles
		<u>12.6</u>	the cir surplu 12.5, to Co princip Princi Capac	re T&SCo is unable to apply Pro-rata Reduction in ircumstances set out in paragraph 12.6 or there is us Available Capacity as set out in paragraph then T&SCo shall allocate the Available Capacity Constrained Users, by applying the following iples (the "Constrained Capacity Optimisation ciples") to determine the reduced Registered city (the "Reduced Capacity") that can be atted to each Constrained User:
			<u>(a)</u>	T&SCo shall act with the primary objective to:
				(i) only reduce a Constrained User's ability to deliver carbon dioxide at the Constrained User's Delivery Point as a last resort;
				(ii) allow the maximum amount of carbon dioxide to be stored;
			<u>(b)</u>	in achieving the primary objective referred to in paragraph (a) above, T&SCo shall:
				(i) endeavour to maximise the number of Constrained Users that are able to deliver carbon dioxide into the T&S Network;
				(ii) take into consideration the operational features and requirements of individual Constrained Users, including (but not limited to) each Constrained User's Minimum Turndown Rate, Minimum and Maximum Ramp Rates, any requirements for a minimum amount of Network Capacity over a minimum period of time, and any maintenance that will be carried out by the Constrained User; and
			<u>(c)</u>	T&SCo shall actively communicate with all

No	Subject	Terms	
			Constrained Users, to allow principles (a) to (b) to be effectively implemented.
			Note: T&SCo has a general obligation of non-discrimination under its Licence.
		<u>12.7</u>	Where:
			(a) a Capacity Constraint arises by reason other than an Emergency; and
			(b) the circumstances are such that responding to the Capacity Constraint by applying Pro-rata Reduction to the Registered Capacity of Constrained Users would be likely to jeopardise the safety, integrity or operability of the T&S Network,
			then T&SCo can respond to the Capacity Constraint by applying the Constrained Capacity Optimisation Principles to reduce the Registered Capacity of Constrained Users.
		<u>12.8</u>	Where T&SCo applies the Constrained Capacity Optimisation Principles to reduce the Registered Capacity of Constrained Users, either pursuant to paragraph 12.6 (to respond to an Emergency) or pursuant to paragraph 12.8 (other circumstances where Pro-rata Reduction cannot be immediately utilised to respond to a Capacity Constraint) then:
			(a) T&SCo shall transition to applying Pro-rata Reduction to continue to respond to the Capacity Constraint as soon as it is reasonably practicable; and
			(b) after Pro-rata Reduction is applied, T&SCo shall allocate any Surplus Available Capacity in accordance with paragraph 12.5.
			Constrained Registered Capacity
		<u>12.9</u>	Where, in the period up to Nomination Close Time, a Constrained User's Registered Capacity has been reduced:
			(a) by a Pro-Rata Reduction; or
			(b) in accordance with the Constrained Capacity Optimisation Principles,
			then the difference between the Constrained User's Registered Capacity and the Reduced Capacity is the Constrained Registered Capacity.
			Note: the principles that will apply to pro rata

No	Subject	Terms	
			reductions of capacity are being developed. Note: it is intended that where there is a Capacity Constraint, it may give rise to an availability adjustment under T&SCo's Licence, on the following basis:
			(a) before Nomination Close Time by way of Constrained Registered Capacity; and
			(b) after Nomination Close Time by way of Curtailed Nomination,
			so that the availability adjustment can be correctly calculated and there is no "double counting" when a capacity constraint arises.
			Renominated Constrained Quantity
		<u>12.10</u>	Where a Constrained User's Registered Capacity is reduced after Nomination Close Time, then:
			(a) the Constrained User shall amend any Daily Nomination or Renomination, through a Renomination, so that no Nominated Quantity exceeds the Constrained User's Reduced Capacity;
			(b) T&SCo shall accept or reject the Renomination in accordance with the principles set out in paragraph 6; and
			(c) any amended Nominated Quantity nominated under paragraph 12.11(a) shall be the Constrained User's Renominated Constrained Quantity.
		12.11	Where a Constrained User has failed to amend any Daily Nomination or Renomination, through a Renomination in accordance with paragraph 12.11(a), then the Constrained User shall be deemed to have done so and the Constrained User's Renominated Constrained Quantity shall be deemed to be equal to the Constrained User's Reduced Capacity.
		<u>12.12</u>	Where a Constrained User has insufficient notice of its Reduced Capacity in order to be able to comply with the requirements of paragraph 12.11, then:
			(a) T&SCo and the User shall in good faith communicate and cooperate, both acting as Reasonable and Prudent Operators, and the User shall endeavour to comply as soon as it is reasonably possible; and
			(b) the User's actual flow of carbon dioxide for that Hour shall be deemed to be the Renominated Constrained Quantity and Final Confirmed

No	Subject	Terms	
			Nominated Quantity for the purposes of calculating the Curtailed Nomination under paragraph 6.13 or paragraph 6.21.
			General obligations of Users to follow T&SCo directions
		<u>12.13</u>	12.4—A User must stop delivering or reduce the quantity of carbon dioxide being delivered to a Delivery Point in accordance with:
			(a) any Maintenance Programme; or
			(b) any direction given by T&SCo to do so in accordance with the provisions of the Code.
		12.5 If	a User fails to comply with any direction given by T&SCo in accordance with paragraph 12.412.14, T&SCo may take steps to prevent the User from delivering carbon dioxide to the Delivery Point, acting as a Reasonable and Prudent Operator to minimise any adverse impact on User Facilities.
			Consequences of Capacity Constraints
		12.6	Where a Capacity Constraint is caused by/arises in connection with an act, omission, breach or default of a User under the Code T&SCo shall prioritise the reduction of that User's Registered Capacity under paragraph 12.3 over the reduction of any other User's Registered Capacity.
			No obligation to accept delivery of carbon dioxide
		12.14	12.7—Without prejudice to any other right T&SCo may have under the Code to reject the delivery of carbon dioxide (including under Section F), T&SCo will be relieved of its obligations to accept delivery of carbon dioxide of Registered Capacity to the extent that it is not feasible to do so by reason of a Capacity Constraint.
			Payment of Charges during Capacity Constraints
		12.15	12.8 For the avoidance of doubt a Subject to paragraph 12.18, a Constrained User will remain liable to pay Capacity Charges and Network Charges in respect of its Registered Capacity notwithstanding that the T&SCo is unable to take delivery of carbon dioxide at the quantity of its Registered Capacity at such delivery point its Delivery Point by reason of a Capacity Constraint.
			Note: while T&SCo will continue to recover these charges, capacity constraints will affect its availability

Section E: networkNetwork use and capacity

No	Subject	Terms	
			incentives under the TRI model.
		<u>12.16</u>	Where:
			(a) a Capacity Constraint arises for reasons other than Planned Maintenance;
			(b) a Constrained User is unable to utilise the whole or any part of its Registered Capacity by reason of the Capacity Constraint, for a continuous period of more than [x Days]; and
			(c) the event that caused the Capacity Constraint is [covered by T&SCo's Business Interruption Insurance for Asset Damage],
			Note : details of the mechanism for the suspension of Capacity Charges and Network Charges where covered by business interruption insurance remain subject to review.
			then from that point in time until the Capacity Constraint is resolved, the Constrained User shall only be liable to pay Capacity Charges and Network Charges [in relation to the amount of Registered Capacity that the Constrained User is able to utilise.]

SECTION F: NETWORK DESIGN AND SPECIFICATION

No	Subject	Terms	3
1.	Introduction		Introduction to specifications
		1.1	The provisions of this Section F shall apply in respect of the delivery of carbon dioxide to the T&S Network at Delivery Points.
		1.2	Users delivering carbon dioxide to any part of the T&S Network at a Delivery Point shall comply with the relevant requirements of this Section F.
			User Facilities
		1.3	For the purposes of this Section F a "User Facility" is a single facility or several facilities (where such facilities share a single Delivery Point) connected to the T&S Network at a Delivery Point.
			Existence of Connection Agreement
		1.4	A User may not deliver carbon dioxide into the T&S Network at any Delivery Point unless there is in force a Connection Agreement between the User and T&SCo which, among other things:
			(a) identifies the User Facility;
			(b) identifies the Delivery Point; and
			(c) specifies the Entry Provisions applicable to that Delivery Point.
2.	Entry		Content of Entry Provisions
	Provisions	2.1	The Entry Provisions for each Delivery Point are:
			(a) the Carbon Dioxide Specifications, as defined in paragraph 2.4;
			(b) the Measurement Requirements, as defined in paragraph 2.5; and
			(c) the Local Requirements, as defined in paragraph 2.9.
			Carbon Dioxide Specifications
		2.2	The Carbon Dioxide Specifications shall at all times conform to the following key principles:
			(a) the primary purpose of the Carbon Dioxide Specification is to ensure the safety, protection and operability of the T&S System;
			(b) the Carbon Dioxide Specification shall achieve the

No	Subject	Terms			
				follow	ving aims:
				(i)	protection of health and safety;
				(ii)	corrosion management and avoidance;
				(iii)	environmental protection;
				(iv)	operational control assured by maintaining predictable flow conditions;
				(v)	management of reservoir impacts.
		2.3	the C	Carbon	achieve the aims set out in paragraph 2.2(b) Dioxide Specifications shall as a minimummes comply with the requirements set out in
		2.4			Dioxide Specifications are specific to each &S Network and are set out:
			(a)		nnexure B for the [Insert name] Northern rance Partnership T&S Network; and
			(b)	in An Netwo	nexure C for the [Insert name] HyNet T&S ork.
			Meas	ureme	ent Requirements
		2.5	the include which meas and p	require ding bo n cor uremer parame ol syste	on, "Measurement Requirements" means ments for the Measurement Equipment, that the procedures methods and standards by mpositional analysis and flow rate newill be measured, sampled and analysed ters regarding accuracy/regularity of checks, ems, operation data transmission and quality
		2.6			rement Requirements shall at all times he following principles:
			(a)	quant	leasurement Equipment must determine the city (measured in tCO_2) of all the carbon de delivered by a User at a Delivery Point;
			(b)	monit	mpurities within the CO ₂ stream shall be cored to ensure that compliance with the on Dioxide Specifications is maintained;
			(c)	should other in an includ	pressure, temperature and water content d be measured continuously, together with impurities where an exceedance may result a imminent downstream impact. This may de oxygen NOx, SOx, H2S, ammonia and, for e and multi-phase applications, hydrogen and

No	Subject	Terms		
				nitrogen;
			(d)	other impurities should be measured regularly at a frequency to be agreed with the T&SCo, which may be four times every hour, and could follow a risk assessment process;
			(e)	the calibration range, accuracy and measurement uncertainty of the measuring equipment shall be appropriate to the permissible levels of impurity, and with sufficient capacity to provide information to enable subsequent investigation in the event of an exceedance;
			(f)	the CO_2 content within the stream should be measured continuously and to an accuracy consistent with any fiscal requirements;
			(g)	monitoring data should be available simultaneously to both the User and the T&SCo, and records retained for sufficient length of time to enable trends to be identified and for historical information to be interrogated in the event of an impact on the T&S Network infrastructure being identified.
		2.7		Measurement Requirements which are specific to individual T&S Network and are set out:
			(a)	in Annexure D for the [Insert name]Northern Endurance Partnership T&S Network; and
			(b)	in Annexure E for the <code>[Insert name]HyNet</code> T&S Network.
			single	Further consideration to be given to whether a form of Measurement Requirements could apply to S Networks.
			Loca	l Requirements
		2.8	requi that	nis section, "User Requirements" means the rements in respect of the Measurement Equipment arise from legal or contractual obligations of the [including requirements under support contracts].
		2.8	a Us Equip	rements including User Requirements, that apply to ser's Delivery Point and/or the Measurement oment at the User's Delivery Point which shall be fied in a User's Connection Agreement, and may
			(a)	any User-specific CO ₂ Specification requirements; and

No	Subject	Terms		
			(b)	any User-specific measurement requirements.
		<u>2.9</u>	2.10	The T&SCos acknowledge that:
			(a)	Users are required to comply with the User Requirements; and
			(b)	the T&SCo shall adapt the Local Requirements in order to accommodate the User Requirements.
			Comp	oliance with Regulatory Requirements
		2.10	2.11	The Users acknowledge that:
			(a)	T&SCo is required to comply with the Regulatory Requirements in relation to the T&S Network; and
			(b)	in developing the Entry Provisions, T&SCo has had regard to the Regulatory Requirements.
		2.11	F, if a	Notwithstanding any other provision in this Section my aspect of the Entry Provisions cause T&SCo to be each of the Regulatory Requirements, then:
			(a)	T&SCo will give notice to each User specifying any changes required to the Entry Provisions to ensure that T&SCo is compliant with the Regulatory Requirements; and
			(b)	each User must use best endeavours to comply with the notice received pursuant to paragraph 2.122.11(a) forthwith.
3.	Compliance		Comp	oliance with Carbon Dioxide Specifications
		3.1	Entry Netwo inform T&SC	e carbon dioxide which does not comply with the Provisions is tendered for delivery to the T&S ork at a Delivery Point then T&SCo shall promptly in the relevant User about the non-compliance, and o may, from time to time until such time as the ent non-compliance is rectified, in its discretion ::
			(a)	refuse to accept delivery or continued delivery of such carbon dioxide; or
			(b)	accept such delivery or accept such delivery as to part only of what is tendered for delivery.
		3.2	to lim delive	o shall be entitled to take any steps available to it all the rate at which non-compliant carbon dioxide is ered to the T&S Network or to secure that such a dioxide is not so delivered.
4.	General Measurement		Meas	urement Equipment

No	Subject	Terms	
	Provisions	4.1	In this section, "Measurement Equipment" means all equipment and installations, including metering, sampling and analysis equipment, inlet and outlet pipework, instruments—and, structures within which such equipment is housed and related communication systems used to:
			(a) determine mass flow of CO ₂ for fiscal purposes; and/or
			(b) measure the critical components, gas quality and characteristics of carbon dioxide delivered at a Delivery Point as against the Carbon Dioxide Specifications for integrity purposes.
			Installation of Measurement Equipment
		4.2	A User may not deliver any carbon dioxide at a Delivery Point until and unless Measurement Equipment which complies with the requirements of this section has been installed by the User at the Delivery Point.
			Note : Asas part of the application process for a new-connection CCUS Cluster Sequencing Process or another Selection Process the User will be required to provide assurance to T&SCo as to its capabilities/competence in relation to its responsibilities under this Section F.
		4.3	The User shall at its own cost install, commission, operate and maintain the Measurement Equipment in accordance with the requirements of this Section F.
		4.4	The User shall obtain T&SCo's prior approval in relation to the siting, specifications and installation of the Measurement Equipment and any such installation and commissioning shall, to the extent relevant, comply with the Measurement Requirements.
			Validation of Measurement Equipment
		4.5	The Measurement Equipment shall be validated by an- independent third party verifier the Independent Verifier in accordance with, and for compliance with, the Measurement Requirements:
			(a) prior to any carbon dioxide being allowed to be delivered at a Delivery Point to flow in the T&S Network; and
			(b) at least annually thereafter.
		4.6	The identity and terms of reference of the independent third party verifier shall be agreed between the parties, provided that the independent third party verifier shall carry out the verification and the activities required by the parties with the aim of providing a verification report-

No	Subject	Terms		
			Meası	concludes with reasonable assurance that the urement Equipment complies with the Measurement rements.
		4.7		osts of the independent third party verifier shall be equally between each User and T&SCo.
			Meas	uring Carbon Dioxide Specifications
		4.6	opera deteri Dioxid delive Equip	the User shall at its own cost install, commission, te and maintain Measurement Equipment to mine the characteristics defined in the Carbon de Specifications of any carbon dioxide that is ered at a Delivery Point. Such Measurement ment shall comply with the Measurement rements and shall meet the following criteria:
			(a)	all measurement biases shall as far as is practicable be eliminated or compensated for;
			(b)	the uncertainty of measurement shall be such that the risk is minimised to both the User and T&SCo that there may be carbon dioxide flowing of which either or both of them are unaware;
			(c)	the sampling system used to obtain the composition sample of carbon dioxide for quality measurements shall ensure that the sample is representative of the carbon dioxide delivered at a Delivery Point and that no change to the carbon dioxide composition occurs between the sample point and the analytical instrument or that compensation or correction for any such change is fully accommodated within the Measurement Equipment; and
			(d)	measurements and validation of equipment to make such measurement shall, where feasible, be traceable to national or international standards and be in accordance with the Measurement Requirements.
			Meas	uring quantity of carbon dioxide
		<u>4.7</u>	opera deteri	the User shall at its own cost install, commission, te and maintain flow Measurement Equipment to mine the quantity of CO ₂ (measured in tCO ₂) flowing the T&S Network at a Delivery Point such that:
			(a)	all mass flows into the T&S Network shall comply with this paragraph; and
			(b)	the measurement of quantity of mass shall be without bias and with an uncertainty of better than $+ [insert] \le +/-1.0\%$ of readingthe measured value (at 95% confidence interval) over the specified

No	Subject	Terms	
			flow range.
			Operation of Measurement Equipment
		4.8	4.10 The operation and maintenance of Measurement Equipment shall include:
			 (a) all activities associated with meter-reading, including, reading, calibration, and filing of all data provided by the Measurement Equipment;
			(b) provision of access to real time data to the T&SCo fin accordance with the Data Transfer Procedures.
		<u>4.9</u>	4.11 The User shall:
			(a) ensure that T&SCo is provided with sufficient operator permissions to enable it to exercise its rights as set out under this Code to reject or refuse the delivery of Carbon Dioxide at a User's Delivery Point; and
			(b) inform the T&SCo promptly and accurately regarding any changes to the Measurement Equipment.
<u>5.</u>	Access to Measurement		Access to inspect Measurement Equipment
<u>6.</u> 5.	Measurement Measurement Equipment Errors	6.1	Where any part of the Measurement Equipment is located at a site owned or controlled by the User, the User shall, upon reasonable notice and subject to any site safety or other rules regarding access, grant the T&SCo and its agents, subcontractors and representatives access to such Measurement Equipment to inspect (any part of) such Measurement Equipment and obtain samples of the User's CO ₂ .
		6.2	If and to the extent that the User's site is not owned by the User, the User shall use its best endeavours to ensure that the relevant owner grants T&SCo a right of access in accordance with paragraph 5.1.
		6.3	If any Measurement Equipment is found to not comply with the requirements of this Section F, T&SCo can require the User to immediately cease delivery of carbon dioxide at the User's Delivery Point.
		<u>6.4</u>	The User shall, at its own cost and expense, repair or replace (any part of) the Measurement Equipment that is not functioning in accordance with the Measurement Requirements or otherwise in accordance with this Section F.
		<u>6.5</u>	Where a T&SCo has reasonable doubts as to the correct operation or a User believes that there has been a

No	Subject	Terms	
			Measurement Equipment Error:
			(a) that Party shall notify the other Party of the same;
			(b) the Parties shall meet to discuss the matter; and
			(c) the Parties shall seek to agree any Measurement Adjustment.
		<u>6.6</u>	If the Parties are unable to reach agreement under paragraph 6.1 as to any Measurement Adjustment within 30 Days then, subject to paragraph 7.2, either Party shall be entitled to have (any part of) the Measurement Equipment, T&SCo shall be entitled at all reasonable hours inspected by the Independent Verifier, upon reasonable notice and in consultation withto the User, to engage an independent third party to inspect (any part of) the Measurement Equipmentother Party, and the Userother Party shall be entitled to have its employees, agents or representatives present during any such inspection.
		<u>6.7</u>	5.4 The Parties parties shall accept the result of any inspection and by the Independent Verifier as a final determination of any Measurement Equipment Error (including the Independent Verifier's decision regarding any Measurement Adjustment).
		<u>6.8</u>	The costs of the inspection in paragraph 6.2 shall be borne by T&SCothe party requiring the inspection, unless the inspection demonstrates that (the relevant part of) the Measurement Equipment was not functioning in accordance with the Measurement Requirements or otherwise in accordance with this Section F, in which case the costs shall be borne by the User.
		<u>6.9</u>	5.5 If any Measurement Equipment is found to not comply with the requirements of this section, T&SCo can-require the User to immediately cease delivery of carbon-dioxide at the User's Delivery Point.
		<u>6.10</u>	5.6 The User shall, at its own cost and expense, repair or replace (any part of) the Measurement Equipment that is not functioning in accordance with the Measurement Requirements or otherwise in accordance with this Section F.
		5.7	If the inspection carried out pursuant to paragraph 5.3-demonstrates that (a part of) the Measurement-Equipment was not functioning in accordance with the Measurement Requirements or otherwise in accordance with this Section F, T&SCo will establish the relevant quality or quantity of CO ₂ -during the relevant period on the basis of the results of the inspection. Recalculation will be performed by T&SCo with retroactive effect over

No	Subject	Terms	
		5.8	the period that (the relevant part of) the Measurement-Equipment was not functioning in accordance with the Measurement Requirements or otherwise in accordance with this Section F. If the inspection does not produce a practicable standard-for establishing the relevant quality or quantity of CO ₂ -in-the relevant period, the T&SCo is entitled to estimate the quality or quantity of CO ₂ -according to the best data-available to T&SCo, including data provided by the User(if-any).
<u>Z.</u>	Flow Meter	<u>7.1</u>	Where any Measurement Adjustment in respect of a Flow
	<u>Errors</u>		Meter Error is agreed or determined under paragraph 6.1 or 6.2, such agreement or determination shall set out: (a) the period within which any adjustments to the flow rate measurement are to be made ("Adjustment Period");
			(b) the amount by which it is agreed or determined that the Flow Meter has over- or under-registered the volume of CO ₂ delivered at the relevant Delivery Point;
			(c) the adjusted raw data for the Adjustment Period; and
			(d) the adjusted Daily Quantity for the Adjustment Period.
		7.2	Where a Flow Meter Error results from a total failure of the Flow Meter such that there is no available Flow Rate data for a period, provided that the Parties have failed to reach agreement as to the Measurement Adjustment to be applied during such period under paragraph 6.1(c), the Measurement Adjustment for the relevant period shall substitute the Flow Rate data for the relevant period with the User's Registered Capacity for that period.
		<u>7.3</u>	T&SCo will provide the results of any Flow Meter Adjustment to the CDS for the purposes of paragraph 11.8 of Section H.
<u>8.</u>	Re-use Service		Nature of Re-use Service
		<u>8.1</u>	Carbon dioxide re-use (the " Re-use Service ") involves a User:
			(a) taking delivery of carbon dioxide from the T&S Network, at a Re-use Delivery Point; and
			(b) subject all other provisions of the Code relating to the User's rights to deliver carbon dioxide at the User's Delivery Point, re-delivering an equivalent quantity of carbon dioxide into the T&S Network at

No	Subject	Terms
		the User's Delivery Point,
		where the taking delivery of the carbon dioxide pursuant to paragraph (a) above is:
		(c) for a Re-use Purpose; and
		(d) only temporary,
		on the basis that the User's objective is that any carbon dioxide it has taken delivery of should be returned into the T&S Network in accordance with paragraph (b).
		User right to request Re-use Service
		8.2 A User (including a prospective User applying for a connection under Section C) may request T&SCo to provide a Re-use Service to the User.
		8.3 Where a User wishes to request T&SCo to provide the Re-use Service, the User shall provide the request to T&SCo in writing, setting out the technical and operational reasons why it is requesting the Re-use Service.
		<u>Circumstances where T&SCo shall offer the Re-use</u> <u>Service</u>
		8.4 Where T&SCo has received a request from a User in accordance with paragraph 8.3, T&SCo shall offer the Re-use Service to the User where T&SCo, acting as a Reasonable and Prudent Operator, considers that:
		(a) it is technically possible to install the required Re-use Service Infrastructure and provide the Re-use Service to the User; and
		(b) the installation of the Re-use Service Infrastructure and provision of the Re-use Service to the User will not adversely impact the operation of the T&S Network and/or the ability of other Users to deliver carbon dioxide at their Delivery Points.
		Carrying out of Works
		Where a User has requested the Re-use Service in accordance with paragraph 8.3 and T&SCo has offered to provide the Re-use Service, then the User shall be responsible for the cost of the Re-use Service Infrastructure and the Re-use Service Infrastructure Works.
		8.6 The carrying out of the Re-use Service Infrastructure Works shall be governed by the Construction Agreement and the parties shall agree which parts of the Re-use

No	Subject	Terms				
			Service	ce Infrastructure Works shall be:		
			<u>(a)</u>	carried out by T&SCo, and therefore be T&SCo Works for the purposes of the Construction Agreement; and		
			<u>(b)</u>	<u>Carried out by the User, and therefore the User</u> <u>Works for the purposes of the Construction</u> <u>Agreement.</u>		
		<u>8.7</u>	agree	e any Re-use Service Infrastructure Works are d to be T&SCo Works for the purposes of the ruction Agreement, then:		
			<u>(a)</u>	the Construction Agreement shall include a provision requiring the User to pay for the cost of T&SCo carrying out such Re-use Service Infrastructure Works; and		
			<u>(b)</u>	such cost shall be determined on a cost reflective basis (applied consistently to all Users) and set out in the Construction Agreement.		
<u>9.</u>	Terms for		Application of Code to the Re-use Service			
	provision of the Re-Use Service	<u>9.1</u>		e the Re-use Service is being provided to a User, rovisions of the Code shall apply as follows:		
			<u>(a)</u>	title and risk (including carbon dioxide compositional risk) in carbon dioxide delivered to the User Facility at a Re-use Delivery Point shall pass to the User at that Re-use Delivery Point;		
			<u>(b)</u>	the provisions of Section J relating to liabilities between the parties shall apply;		
			<u>(c)</u>	the provisions of Section F relating to Measurement Equipment shall apply to the Re-use Meter at the Re-use Delivery Point in the same way as the Flow Meter at the User's Delivery Point;		
			<u>(d)</u>	the quantity of carbon dioxide being delivered back to the User at the Re-use Delivery Point shall be measured using the Re-use Meter in accordance with Section F and that quantity, expressed in tCO ₂ /Day, is referred to as the "Re-use Daily Quantity";		
			<u>(e)</u>	when the Onshore Flow Charge and the Offshore Flow Charge payable by the User are calculated in accordance with Section H, the User's Re-use Daily Quantity shall be subtracted from the User's Daily Quantity;		
			<u>(f)</u>	the User shall pay for the operating costs of the		

No	Subject	Terms		
				provision of the Re-use Service by paying the Re-use Service Charge, which shall be calculated by multiplying the Re-use Service Charge Rate by the User's Re-use Daily Quantity; and
			<u>(a)</u>	when the User takes delivery of a quantity of carbon dioxide at the Re-use Delivery Point and then re-delivers an equivalent quantity of carbon dioxide at the User's Delivery Point, the User must have sufficient Registered Capacity for that quantity and must ensure that quantity is included in the Daily Nominations and Re-nominations made by the User in accordance with Section E.
			Re-us	se Service Charge Rate
		9.2	Charg	methodology for calculating the Re-use Service e Rate shall be on a on a cost reflective basis ed consistently to all Users).
				the nature of the Re-use Service Charge Rate is ct to further review.
			Conn	ection Agreement
		<u>9.3</u>	the fo	e the Re-use Service is being provided to the User, llowing details shall be set out in Schedule 4 of the Connection Agreement:
			<u>(a)</u>	the description of the Re-use Delivery Point, including a schematic showing the location of the Re-use Delivery Point;
			<u>(b)</u>	details of the Re-use Meter;
			<u>(c)</u>	the Re-use Service Charge Rate;
			<u>(d)</u>	any details of the size of the Re-use Delivery Point and any restrictions on how much can be taken out for re-use and the process for notifying T&SCo of when the User intends to take delivery of carbon dioxide; and
			<u>(e)</u>	where any part of the equipment/infrastructure associated with the Re-use Service is located at a site owned or controlled by the T&SCo, provision for the T&SCo to grant, upon reasonable notice and subject to any site safety or other rules regarding access, the User and its agents, subcontractors and representatives access to such equipment/infrastructure to inspect it.

SECTION G: INDUSTRIAL PROCEDURES

No	Subject	Terms			
1.	Key Principles		Key P	rincip	oles
		1.1			ial Procedures shall at all times conform to key principles:
			(a)	the Ir	ndustrial Procedures shall be designed to:
				(i)	ensure safe conduct of all operations;
				(ii)	protect of the environment;
				(iii)	minimise disruption to the operation of the T&S Network;
				(iv)	meet the needs of both T&SCo and Users; and
				(v)	support the economic and efficient capture, transport and storage of CO ₂ ;
			(b)		Industrial Procedures shall comply with cable law and regulation;
			(c)	the Ir	ndustrial Procedures shall be:
				(i)	transparent; and
				(ii)	non-discriminatory; and
			(d)	aims	ndustrial Procedures shall be aligned with the of the CCUS Network Code and Government tions for CCUS in the UK.
2.	Compliance	2.1	Indust	rial P	nd T&SCos are required to comply with the rocedures set out in orto be developed in with the provisions of this section.
<u>3.</u>	<u>List</u> of	<u>3.1</u>			ng procedures shall comprise the Industrial
	<u>Procedures</u>		Proced	<u>dures:</u>	
			<u>(a)</u>	<u>Emer</u>	gency Procedure;
			<u>(b)</u>	Comr	missioning; and
			<u>(c)</u>	<u>Isolat</u>	<u>cion.</u>
		<u>3.2</u>	The In	-	entation Date for each Industrial Procedure is
			<u>(a)</u>	Emer Date;	gency Procedure: Commercial Operations
			<u>(b)</u>	Comr	missioning: Handover Date; and

Subject	Terms	
		(c) <u>Isolation – Commercial Operations Date.</u>
Preparation		Core Industrial Procedures Drafting Principles
	3.1	The Core Industrial Procedures are set out in Appendix [X] to this section.
		Supplementary Industrial Procedures
	<u>4.1</u>	3.2 Each T&SCo shall develop, finalise, maintain and from time to time review, Supplementarythe Industrial Procedures for the applicable T&S Network.
	<u>4.2</u>	3.3 As a minimum, In developing the Industrial Procedures in accordance with paragraph 4.1 each T&SCo is required to develop the following Supplementary Industrial Procedures:
	<u>4.3</u>	(a) Note: it is expected that T&SCos will develop a list of Supplementaryensure that the Industrial Procedureswhich should be subject to a less onerous procedure:
		(a) comply with the key principles in set out in paragraph 1.1; and
		(b) comply with the Terms of Reference for each Industrial Procedure as set out in Annexure F to Annexure H.
	<u>4.4</u>	No later than <u>6 months prior to the Modification Implementation Date for each Industrial Procedure.</u>
	3.4	At least [x] weeks before the first delivery of any CO ₂ at a Delivery Point, the T&SCo shall deliver to:
		(a) each User; and
		(b) the Authority,
		the draft Supplementary—Industrial Procedures required to be developed pursuant to paragraph $\frac{3.3}{3.1}$ for review and comment in accordance with paragraphs $\frac{4.1}{6.1}$ to $\frac{4.5}{6.6}$.
	3.5	Paragraph 3.4 shall also apply to any new Supplementary Industrial Procedures which are subsequently developed by T&SCo, save that:
		(a) the T&SCo shall also include the proposed implementation date; and
		(b) the relevant time to submit drafts of any such procedure will be [x] weeks before the proposed implementation date.
		Preparation 4.1 4.3 4.4 3.4

No	Subject	Terms	
<u>5.</u>	New Industrial	<u>5.1</u>	Where, after the Code Implementation Date, a T&SCo wishes to introduce a further procedure that:
	<u>Procedures</u>		(a) is likely to affect more than one User in the relevant T&S Network;
			(b) places obligations onto Users; and
			(c) is likely to materially impact a User's cost base, maintenance or other operational processes
			(in each case, a "Proposed Industrial Procedure"),
			paragraph 6.1 shall also apply to any Proposed Industrial Procedures, save that:
			(d) the T&SCo shall also include the proposed Implementation Date;
			(e) the relevant time to submit drafts of any such procedure to Users will be 6 calendar months before the proposed Implementation Date; and
		<u>5.2</u>	Provided that any comments on the Proposed Industrial Procedure are resolved in accordance with the process set out in paragraph 6.6, the T&SCo which introduced the procedure shall be entitled to raise a Self-Governance Modification Proposal pursuant to paragraph 2.26 of Section B (Governance) to update the list of Industrial Procedures in paragraph 3.1.
		<u>5.3</u>	A User may, at any time after the Code Implementation Date, request a T&SCo to introduce a Proposed Industrial Procedure under paragraph 5.1 and the T&SCo shall, give reasonable consideration to all such requests.
<u>6.</u> 4.	Review Procedure	6.1	4.1 As soon as reasonably practicable and in any event within [x]20 Business Days of receipt of any draft SupplementaryIndustrial Procedure or Proposed Industrial Procedure, each User shall notify the T&SCo of any comments on the draft SupplementaryIndustrial Procedure or Proposed Industrial Procedure.
		<u>6.2</u>	4.2 When providing comments to the T&SCo in accordance with paragraph 4.16.1, each User shall be required to provide the following:
			(a) information about the User (company, registered office, etc.) and about at least one reference person (name, telephone number, fax number, e-mail address, etc.) who can be contacted with respect to the User comments;
			(b) the reasons why the User believes the User comments should be incorporated; and

No	Subject	Terms			
			(c) any documentation (analyses, reports, etc.) to support the request.		
		6.3	4.3 InBefore preparing the final version of any Supplementary Industrial Procedure or Proposed Industrial Procedure, the T&SCo shall convene a meeting with Users in order to discuss any User comments provided in accordance with paragraph 6.1, the date of which shall be communicated to Users with not less than 10 Business Days' notice.		
		<u>6.4</u>	In preparing the final version of any Industrial Procedure or Proposed Industrial Procedure, the T&SCo shall:		
			(a) give reasonable consideration to any comments provided by a User pursuant to paragraphs 6.1 and 6.3; and		
			(b) prepare a report to be circulated to all Users collectively prior to delivery of the final version of the Industrial Procedure or Proposed Industrial Procedure pursuant to paragraph 4.1; and 6.6 detailing:		
			(i) where the T&SCo has taken on board or incorporated any comments provided by Users pursuant to paragraphs 6.1 and 6.3; and/or		
			(ii) (b)—where the T&SCo does not take on board or incorporate any comments provided by a User pursuant to paragraphparagraphs 4.16.1 and 6.3,- provide an explanation to the User of the reasons for this decision.		
		<u>6.5</u>	4.4-For the avoidance of doubt, it shall be reasonable for the T&SCo to not incorporate comments made by a User in relation to a draft SupplementaryIndustrial Procedure or Proposed Industrial Procedure where such comments, if incorporated, would affect the safe operation of the T&S Network.		
		<u>6.6</u>	4.5-Subject to paragraph 6.28.2, once all comments have been received and considered pursuant to the process set out in paragraph 4.3 paragraphs 6.1 to 6.5, the T&SCo shall deliver to:		
			(a) each User; and		
			(b) the Authority,		
			the final version of the Supplementary Industrial Procedure or Proposed Industrial Procedure, as the case may be, along with the proposed implementation		

No	Subject	Terms		
		dateconfirmation of the Implementation Date.		
<u>Z.</u> 5.	Revisions	7.1 5.1 The T&SCo may review and/or revise the Supplementary Industrial Procedures:	the	
		(a) when the T&SCo considers it is necessary to so;	do	
		(b) upon request by a User; or		
		(c) in order to resolve a dispute under paragraph 75	<u>8</u> ,	
		provided that any such revision shall be subject to to procedure set out in paragraph 46, and subject always paragraph 5.27.2.		
		7.3 5.2 The T&SCo shall not be required to follow to procedure set out in paragraph 4 in relation to revision to Supplementary Industrial Procedures in the following circumstances where any such revision is:	ons	
		(a) Note: It is expected there will be a limited list circumstances whereby the T&SCo will be excus from consulting on changes to Supplementa Industrial Procedures. of a routine nature;	sed	
		(b) does not place new obligations onto Users; and		
		(c) does not have a material impact on a User's contained base, maintenance or other operational processes		
		out in Paragraph 3.1, shall be addressed as	<u>Self-Governance Modification Proposal</u> via the	
		by the T&SCo in accordance with paragraph 7.1 shown not have been made then such matter may be referred.	Where a majority of Users consider that a revision made by the T&SCo in accordance with paragraph 7.1 should not have been made then such matter may be referred by the Users to dispute resolution in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 8 of Section B (Governance).	
<u>8.</u> 6.	Disputes	<u>8.1</u> 6.1 Where:		
		(a) a User comment provided pursuant to paragraph 4.16.1 and 4.26.2 of this section was not include by T&SCo in the final Supplementary Industry Procedure; and	ded	
		(b) a majority of Users considers that such comme should have been incorporated by the T&SCo,	ent	
		then such matter may be referred by the User who ma the original comment to dispute resolution in accordar with the provisions of paragraph 8 of Section	nce	

No	Subject	Terms
		(Governance).
		8.2 6.2 Where any matter is referred to dispute resolution under paragraph 6.18.1, the T&SCo shall not implement the Supplementary Industrial Procedure until such dispute has been resolved in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 8 of Section B (Governance).

SECTION H: CHARGES, INVOICING AND PAYMENT

Various concepts set out in these indicative terms are likely to overlap with the provisions of the Licence and it may ultimately be the case that some of these indicative terms will instead be included in the Licence.

No	Subject	Term	s					
1.	Charges		Payment of charges					
		1.1	This Section H sets out the Charging Methodology decestablished by the T&SCos pursuant to the Licence for determination the Charges.					
			Note: any changes to the Charging Methodology will need to be made in accordance with the Modification Rules in Section B.					
			Note: There may also be some aspects of the Charging Methodology set out here is a generic Charging Methodology that applies to all T&S Networks. Its application to specific T&S Networks (see comments below in relation to Onshore Transportation Systems) will need to be considered furtherneed to be addressed in the conditions of the Licence of T&SCo.					
		1.2	The User agrees to pay to T&SCo the Charges calculated in accordance with this Section H.					
			Note : the approach to capacity and Charges relating to carbon dioxide flows required during Commissioning is still being considered.					
		1.3	The Charges shall be calculated on the basis of: (a) the Onshore Flow Charge, calculated using the rate determine in accordance with paragraph 2.1;					
			(b) the Offshore Flow Charge, calculated using the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 2.2;					
			(c) the Onshore Capacity Charge, calculated using the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 3.1;					
			(d) the Offshore Capacity Charge, calculated using the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 3.2;					
			(e) the Onshore Network Charge, calculated using the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 4.1; and					
			(f) the Offshore Network Charge, calculated using the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 4.5.					
			Note: it is intended that there will be separate Charges for each T&S Network. Also, where a T&S Network includes more than one distinct Onshore Transportation System, separate Charges will apply to each such distinct Onshore Transportation System.					
			Flow Charges					
		1.4	A User shall pay to deliver carbon dioxide to the T&S Network each Day on the following basis:					

No	Subject	Terms	6		
			(a)	an On	shore User shall pay:
				(i)	the Onshore Flow Charge Rate multiplied by the User's Daily Quantity (the " Onshore Flow Charge "); and
				(ii)	the Offshore Flow Charge Rate multiplied by the User's Daily Quantity (the " Offshore Flow Charge "); and
			(b)		fshore User shall pay the Offshore Flow Charge Rate blied by the User's Daily Quantity (the " Offshore Flow ge").
			or ar Char Onsh	n "Offsh ges pay nore Tra	acknowledged that whether a User is an "Onshore User" nore User" (see definitions) will have implications for the vable by that User. Therefore the boundary between the unsportation System and the Offshore Transportation and tem is an issue that is still being further considered.
		1.5			aily Quantity" is the quantity of carbon dioxide that the seach Day at the Delivery Point expressed in tCO ₂ /Day,:
			<u>(a)</u>		easured in accordance with Section F (Network design specification); and
			<u>(b)</u>		et out in the Processed Flow Meter Data Statement ared by the CDS for each Billing Period.
			Capa	acity Cl	harges
		1.6	A Us	er shall	pay for its Registered Capacity on the following basis:
			(a)	an Or	nshore User shall pay:
				(i)	the Onshore Capacity Charge Rate multiplied by the User's Registered Capacity (the "Onshore Capacity Charge"); and
				(ii)	the Offshore Capacity Charge Rate multiplied by the User's Registered Capacity (the "Offshore Capacity Charge"); and
			(b)	multi	ffshore User shall pay the Offshore Capacity Charge Rate plied by the User's Registered Capacity (the " Offshore Icity Charge ").
		1.7			egistered Capacity" is as defined in Section E (Network acity allocation).
		1.8	Char utilis	ges sha	erwise provided in this Code or agreed, the Capacity all be payable by a User irrespective of whether the User Registered Capacity by delivering carbon dioxide at its nt.
			Note Char		or pay principle applies to Capacity Charges but not Flow

No	Subject	Terms			
		1.9	A new User connecting to the T&S Network shall not be liable to pay for its Registered Capacity until Commissioning has been completed in accordance with its Construction Agreement. Note: as noted above, details of the arrangements relating to flows		
			of carbon dioxide during Commissioning are to be confirmed.		
			Network Charges		
		1.10	A User shall pay charges in respect of <u>certain residual</u> amounts of <u>the proportion of the Allowed Revenue which willis recoverable from the User, but which is not be recovered under the Flow Charges or Capacity Charges but which are recoverable from Users, on the following basis:</u>		
			(a) an Onshore User shall pay:		
			the Onshore Network Charge Rate multiplied by the User's Delivery Point Size ("Onshore Network Charge"); and		
			(ii) the Offshore Network Charge Rate multiplied by the User's Delivery Point Size ("Offshore Network Charge"); and		
			(b) an Offshore User shall pay the Offshore Network Charge Rate multiplied by the User's Delivery Point Size (the " Offshore Network Charge ").		
		1.11	A User's " Delivery Point Size " is the physical size of the, in relation to a User's Delivery Point, the maximum possible throughput of carbon dioxide at that Delivery Point-connecting, based on the User's Facility to the T&S Networkinstalled assets, as set out in the User's Connection Agreement, expressed in tCO ₂ /hour.		
			Charges relating to the Storage Complex		
		1.12	For the avoidance of doubt, the Offshore Capacity Charge, the Offshore Flow Charge and the Offshore Network Charge cover any costs relating to the Storage Complex.		
			Onshore Users and Offshore Users		
		1.13	When a prospective User applies for a connection under Section C, T&SCo shall determine, in accordance with the Code, whether the User is an Onshore User or an Offshore User, and this shall be recorded in the User's Connection Agreement.		
2.	Charging		Onshore Flow Charge Rate		
	Methodology - Flow Charges	2.1	The Onshore Flow Charge Rate for a Charging Year is calculated as follows:		
			$\frac{AOnFRt}{TFOnFt}$		

No	Subject	Terms				
		W	rhere:			
		(a) "AOnFR _t " is the " Allowed Onshore Flow Revenue " being the amount allowed for Variable Opex for the Onshore Transportation System within the determination of the Allowed Revenue under the Licence for the Charging Year; and			
		0 T	Note : these costs are intended to be those costs that reflect the operational costs imposed by a User in using the Onshore Transportation System to transport and store each unit of carbon dioxide.			
		(b) "TFOnFt" is the total forecast flow of carbon dioxide to be delivered to and transported through the Onshore Transportation System in the Charging Year using the forecasts provided by Users in accordance with paragraph 5,			
		е	xpressed as $£[x]/tCO_2$.			
		C	ffshore Flow Charge Rate			
			he Offshore Flow Charge Rate for a Charging Year is calculated as bllows:			
			$\frac{AOfFRt}{TFOfFt}$			
		W	here:			
		(a	"AOfFRt" is the " Allowed Offshore Flow Revenue " being the amount allowed for Variable Opex for the Offshore Transportation and Storage System within the determination of the Allowed Revenue under the Licence for the Charging Year; and			
		0 T	lote: these costs are intended to be those costs that reflect the perational costs imposed by a User in using the Offshore transportation and Storage System to transport and store each unit f carbon dioxide.			
		(b) "TFOfFt" is the total forecast flow of carbon dioxide to be delivered to and transported through the Offshore Transportation and Storage System in the Charging Year using the forecasts provided by Users in accordance with paragraph 5,			
		е	xpressed as $\pounds[x]/tCO_2$.			
3.	Charging Methodology -	C	Inshore Capacity Charge Rate			
	Capacity Charges		The Onshore Capacity Charge Rate for a Charging Year is calculated as follows:			
			AOnCRt RCEOnt			

No	Subject	Terms				
		wl	here:			
		(a)	"AOnCRt" is the " Allowed Onshore Capacity Revenue " being the amount allowed for Depreciation and WACC for the Onshore Transportation System within the determination of the Allowed Revenue under the Licence for the Charging Year; and			
			Note: these costs are intended to be those capital costs that reflect the costs imposed by a User in reserving capacity in the Onshore Transportation System.			
		(b)	"MRCEOnt" is the capacity of the Most Restricted Communal Element of the T&S Network for the relevant Charging Year expressed as $tCO_2/hour$,			
		exp	pressed as $E[x]/tCO_2/hour$.			
		O	ffshore Capacity Charge Rate			
			ne Offshore Capacity Charge Rate for a Charging Year is calculated follows:			
			Of CRt RCEOft			
		wl	here:			
		(a)	"AOfCRt" is the " Allowed Offshore Capacity Revenue " being the amount allowed for Depreciation and WACC for the Offshore Transportation and Storage System within the determination of the Allowed Revenue under the Licence for the Charging Year; and			
			Note: these costs are intended to be those capital costs that reflect the costs imposed by a User in reserving capacity in the Offshore Transportation and Storage System.			
		(b)	"MRCEOft" is the capacity of the Most Restricted Communal Element of the Offshore Transportation and Storage System for the relevant Charging Year expressed as $tCO_2/hour$,			
		exp	pressed as $E[x]/tCO_2/hour$.			
4.	Charging Methodology – Network Charges	Us	ote : the Network Charge is proposed to collect the remainder of a ser's share of Allowed Revenue provided such charge does not sceed the relevant caps.			
	Charges	Ca	alculation of Onshore Network Charge Rate			
			ne Onshore Network Charge Rate for a Charging Year is calculated s follows:			
		Or	OnPNCRt + OnMNCRt			
		wh	ere:			

No	Subject	Terms		
		(Rat	PNCRt" is the " Onshore Proportionate Network Charge e" for the Charging Year calculated in accordance with agraph 4.2; and
		(Rat	MNCRt" is the " Onshore Mutualised Network Charge e" for the Charging Year calculated in accordance with graph 4.3.
			Calculation	on of Onshore Proportionate Network Charge Rate
		4.2	The Onsh follows:	ore Proportionate Network Charge Rate is calculated as
			$\frac{AOnNCRt}{OnNDP}$	
		,	where:	
				NCR_t is the Allowed Onshore Network Charge Revenue for Charging Year being:
			Allo	ved Onshore Revenue for the Charging Year – AOnFRt – AOnCRt _ŧ
			whe	re:
			(i)	the Allowed Onshore Revenue for the Charging Year is the amount of Allowed Revenue for the Onshore Transportation System affirmed as determined by the Authority in accordance with T&SCo's Licence;
				Note : the Allowed Revenue will be affirmed by the Authority in accordance with the T&SCo's licence and will include mutualisation from year t-2 for underutilisation and bad debt.
			(ii)	"AOnFR $_{t}$ " has the meaning given in paragraph 2.1(a);
			(iii)	Revenue expected to be recovered from Users on the
				basis of total Registered Capacity calculated as- follows: "AOnCRt" has the meaning given in paragraph 3.1(a).
				where:
				(A) "OnCC _t " is the Onshore Capacity Charge Rate for the Charging Year calculated in accordance with paragraph 3.1; and
				(B) "TFOnRC _t " is the total Registered Capacity in the Onshore Transportation System in the Charging Year; and
				Note : the difference in fees on the basis of

No	Subject	Terms					
				actual Registered Capacity and the fees actually recovered will form part of the adjustments to determine the Allowed Revenue in Year $t+2$ pursuant to $T\&SCo's$ Licence.			
				Note : the Capacity Charges for Year t will be calculated on the basis of actual Registered Capacity. Because capacity will only be allocated during annual Capacity Application-Windowsthrough a "Selection Process" (see Section E), it will not need to be forecast for Year t.			
		(1	(b) "OnNDP" is the aggregate sizeof the Delivery Point Sizes of Delivery Points to the Onshore Transportation System that the Onshore Transportation System can accommodate, where the aggregate sizeof the Delivery Point Sizes of Delivery Points to the Onshore Transportation System that the Onshore Transportation System can accommodate is equal to MRCEOntMRCEOnt when there are no interruptible or flexible connection agreements,				
		•	expressed as	s £[x]/tCO ₂ /hour.			
		•	Calculation	of Onshore Mutualised Network Charge Rate			
		t	The Onshore Mutualised Network Charge Rate for a Charging Year is the lesser of the Onshore Network Charges Cap and the amount calculated as follows:				
			UAOnRt OnUDPt				
		,	where:				
		(4	Revenu throug <u>Onsho</u>	NCRUAOnRt" is the Allowed Onshore Network Charge- ue for the Charging Year which will not be recovered the the application of the Onshore Flow Charge, the re Capacity Charge and the Onshore Proportionate rk Charge Rate, to be calculated as follows:			
			AOnRt -	$-AOnFRt - (OnCCt \times TFOnRCt) - (OnPNCRt \times OnUDPt)$			
			where	:			
			(i)	"AOnNCRAOnRt" is the Allowed Onshore NetworkRevenue and has the meaning given in paragraph 4.2(a)(i);			
			<u>(ii)</u>	"AOnFRt" has the meaning given in paragraph 2.1(a);			
			<u>(iii)</u>	"OnCCt" is the Onshore Capacity Charge RevenueRate for the Charging Year calculated in accordance with paragraph 4.2(a)3.1;			
			<u>(iv)</u>	"TFOnRCt" is the total Registered Capacity in the			

Subject	Terms			
				Onshore Transportation System in the Charging Year;
			<u>(v)</u>	$\frac{\text{(ii)}}{\text{"OnPNCR}_{t}}$ " is the Onshore Proportionate Network Charge Rate calculated in accordance with paragraph 4.2; and
			<u>(vi)</u>	(iii)—"OnUDPt" is the aggregate sizeof the Delivery Point Sizes of UserUsers's Delivery Points to the Onshore Transportation System in the Charging Year,
		expre	ssed as	s $\pounds[x]/tCO_2/hour$.
	4.4			re Network Charges Cap is [insert proposed rate]. Onshore Proportion of the Mutualisation Cap, where:
		price	for ea ss and	otal mutualisation cap will be based on the UK carbon- ch Charging Year. The source of the price, calculation- split between onshore and offshore elements are to be
		<u>(a)</u>		ore Proportion, expressed as a percentage, is ated as follows:
				ed Onshore Revenue for Charging Year t $ imes 100$
			<u>is</u> th	the Allowed Onshore Revenue for the Charging Year ne amount of Allowed Revenue for the Onshore sportation System as determined by the Authority in dance with T&SCo's Licence; and
		<u>(b)</u>	expre avera March Futur	alisation Cap for Charging Year t means a cap, essed in £[x]/tCO ₂ /hour, equal to the average of the daily ge price observed for the March t-1, December t, and a t UK Emissions Trading Scheme futures contract (UKA es Contract), published by ICE Futures Europe, over the ding three-month period.
		Calcu	ılation	of Offshore Network Charge Rate
	4.5			e Network Charge Rate for a Charging Year is calculated
		OfPNO	CRt + O	f MNCRt
		where	:	
		(a)	Rate"	CR_t " is the " Offshore Proportionate Network Charge for the Charging Year calculated in accordance with raph 4.6; and
		(b)	Rate"	CR_t " is the " Offshore Mutualised Network Charge for the Charging Year calculated in accordance with raph 4.7.
	Subject	4.4	expre 4.4 The Cequal Note price-proced devel (a) (b) Calcu 4.5 The Cas followhere (a)	(vi) (vi) expressed as 4.4 The Onshot equal to the the toprice for early process and developed. (a) Onshot calculation Allows Allows according to the toprice for early process and developed. (b) Muture expression according to the toprice for early process. Calculation 4.5 The Offshore as follows: Of PNCRt + Oy where: (a) "OfPNCR Rate" paraging (b) "OfMN Rate"

No	Subject	Terms				
		4.6 Calculation of Offshore Proportionate Network Charge Rate				
		AOfNCRt				
		OfNDP				
		where:				
		(a) "AOfNCR _t " is the Allowed Off the Charging Year being:	shore Network Charge Revenue for			
		Allowed Offshore Revenue for	the Charging Year – AOfFRt – AOfCRt			
		where:				
		the amount of All Transportation and	e Revenue for the Charging Year is owed Revenue for the Offshore d Storage System affirmed as e Authority <u>in accordance with</u>			
		Authority in accorda	Revenue will be affirmed by the ance with the T&SCo's licence and alisation from year t-2 for bad debt.			
		(ii) "AOfFR _t " has the me	aning given in paragraph 2.2(a);			
		Revenue expected to basis of total forecas	ount of Allowed Offshore Capacity o be recovered from Users on the it Registered Capacity calculated as the meaning given in paragraph			
		where:				
		(A) "OfCC ₄ " is the Offsho in accordance with p	re Capacity Charge Rate calculated- aragraph 3.2; and			
			otal Registered Capacity in the- tion and Storage System in the-			
		actual Registe recovered wil determine th	ifference in fees on the basis of ered Capacity and the fees actually I form part of the adjustments to e Allowed Revenue in Year t+2 ₌ &SCo's Licence.			
		Delivery Points to the Offs System that the T&S Netwo the aggregate size of the De to the Offshore Transporta	size of the Delivery Point Sizes of shore Transportation and Storage ork couldcan accommodate, where livery Point Sizes of Delivery Points tion and Storage System that the Storage System can accommodate			

No	Subject	Terms		
		is equal to MRCEOft when there are no interruptible or flexible connection agreements,		
		expressed as $£[x]/tCO_2/hour$.		
		Calculation of Offshore Mutualised Network Charge Rate		
		4.7 The Offshore Mutualised Network Charge Rate for a Charging Year is the lesser of the Offshore Network Charges CAPCap and the amount calculated as follows:		
		$rac{UAOfRt}{OfUDPt}$		
		where:		
		(a) "UAOfRR: UAOfRt" is the Allowed Offshore Network Charges Revenue for the Charging Year which will not be recovered through the application of the Offshore Flow Charge, the Offshore Capacity Charge and the Offshore Proportionate Network Charges Rate, to be calculated as follows:		
		$AOfRt - AOfFRt - (OfCCt \times TFOfRCt) - (OfPNCRt \times OfUDPt)$		
		where:		
		(i) "AOfRt" is the Allowed Offshore Revenue calculated in accordance with 4.6(a)(i);		
		(ii) "AOfFRt" has the meaning given in paragraph 2.2(a);		
		(iii) "OfCCt" is the Offshore Capacity Charge Rate to be for the Charging Year calculated as follows: in accordance with paragraph 3.2;		
		where:		
		(i)		
		"AOfNCR: TFOfRCt" is the Allowed total Registered Capacity in the Offshore Network Charges Revenue calculated in accordance with 4.2(a)Transportation System in the Charging Year;		
		(iv) (ii)—"OfPNCR _t " is the Offshore Proportionate Network Charges Rate calculated in accordance with paragraph 4.6; and		
		(v) (iii)—"OfUDPt" is the aggregate size—of the UserDelivery Point Sizes of the Users's Delivery Points to the Onshore Transportation System and the Offshore Transportation and Storage System in the Charging Year,		

No	Subject	Terms	
			expressed as $\pounds[x]/tCO_2/hour$.
		4.8	The Offshore Network Charges Cap is [insert proposed rate]. equal to the Offshore Proportion of the Mutualisation Cap, where:
			Note : the total mutualisation cap will be based on the UK carbon- price for each Charging Year. The source of the price, calculation- process and split between onshore and offshore elements to be developed.
			(a) Offshore Proportion, expressed as a percentage, is calculated as follows:
			$\frac{Allowed\ Off shore\ Revenue\ for\ Charging\ Year\ t}{Allowed\ Revenue\ for\ Charging\ Year\ t}\times 100$
			where the Allowed Offshore Revenue for the Charging Year is the amount of Allowed Revenue for the Offshore Transportation and Storage System as determined by the Authority in accordance with T&SCo's Licence; and
			(b) Mutualisation Cap for Charging Year t means a cap, expressed in £[x]/tCO ₂ /hour, equal to the average of the daily average price observed for the March t-1, December t, and March t UK Emissions Trading Scheme futures contract (UKA Futures Contract), published by ICE Futures Europe, over the preceding three-month period.
5.	Charging	5.1	T&SCo will use forecasts provided by Users in relation to:
	Methodology: forecasting		(a) the mass of carbon dioxide to be delivered to the T&S Network through the User's Delivery Point; and
			(b) the User's expected and/or booked Registered Capacity;
			to calculate the Charges, in accordance with the Charging Methodology, for each Year (Year t).
			Note : it is intended that the administrative burden of providing information under different provisions of the Code is to be minimised to the extent possible, and is therefore still under review.
		5.2	By 1 October of Year t-1, T&SCo shall send the Forecasting Pro Forma to Users.
		5.3	Users shall:
			(a) complete the Forecasting Pro Forma by providing the required information for Year t, Year t+1 and Year t+2; and
			(b) send the completed Forecasting Pro Forma to T&SCo by 31 October of Year t-1.
			Notes:
			• forecasts for Years t+1 and t+2 will be used to provide Users

No	Subject	Terms	
			 with estimates of the rates to apply in those years. However, as there will be a single annual capacity booking available the annual Capacity Application Window a new set of charges rates based on actual Registered Capacity will be able to be calculated Year t+1 ahead of that Charging Year; it is assumed that T&SCo's obligations relating to sending information to the Authority and related matters will be dealt with in the licence conditions; and
			 forecast requirements to be reconciled with other forecasting/information sharing-requirements as the Code develops to limit duplication/potential inconsistencies.
		5.4	Users shall use reasonable endeavours to provide accurate forecasts when providing information to T&SCo under this paragraph 5 and all such forecasts must be provided on a bona fide basis.
		5.5	Users shall respond promptly to any queries from T&SCo regarding such forecasts.
6.	Preparation and publication of Charges Statement	6.1	For any Charging Year (Year t), T&SCo shall prepare a statement of the rates for each of the Charges that apply in Year t, as calculated in accordance with the Charging Methodology ("Charges Statement").
		6.2	The Charges Statement shall be prepared using a template approved by the Authority.
		6.3	The Charges payable by Users during each Charging Year shall be calculated by reference to the rates set out in the Charges Statement published by T&SCo in accordance with its Licence and this paragraph 6.
			Note : it is only the rates for calculating the Charges that will be publicly published. The Charges Statement will not include the actual Charges payable by individual Users.
		6.4	T&SCo shall prepare and publish the Charges Statement by 30 November of <u>Charging</u> Year t-1.
		<u>6.5</u>	T&SCo shall also prepare and publish a draft Charges Statement for Charging Years t+1 and t+2, by 30 November of Charging Year t-1, which shall:
			(a) set out estimates of the rates for each of the Charges that apply in Charging Years t+1 and t+2, as calculated in accordance with the Charging Methodology; and
			(b) be subject to revision and is being provided to Users for information purposes only.
7.	Required Security	7.1	The User must provide the Required Security by 31 January of each year and thereafter maintain the Required Security.
			Note: the obligation to maintain the security shall include the

No	Subject	erms	
		circumstances in which T&SCo has had security (i.e. the User is required to recircumstances).	2
		The " Required Security " shall be a:	
		(a) Letter of Credit; or	
		(b) Deposit Deed,	
		which:	
		(c) is for the value of the aggregate of value Invoice Documents for the rele	_
		(d) provides for the rights of T&SCo required	uired by paragraph 12.
		If at any time a User fails to comply with issue a notice ("Security Default Notice rectify such non-compliance within 5 Busing 1988).	ce") requiring the User to
		Where a User has not rectified its non-co Days of its receipt of a Security Defaul entitled to reject or refuse to accept all or relevant User:	t Notice T&SCo shall be
		(a) delivery of carbon dioxide at the Use	er's Delivery Point; or
		(b) an application for Registered Capac Capacity at any Delivery Point und and capacity),	
		with effect until such time as the relevance Required Security.	ant User has provided the
		A User shall remain liable to pay any Cap Charges during any period in which paragr	
8.	Meter readings Issue of Invoice Document	The parties agree and acknowledge the Processed Flow Meter Data set out in the Statement, prepared by the CDS in a Contract, for the purposes of calculating and the Offshore Flow Charge.	Processed Flow Meter Data accordance with the CDS
		Note : provision will be made for fixed dec the CDS Contract and the Data Transfer I to determining the levels of metering accu	Procedures. This is subject
		2 8.1 Within three [ten (310) Business Days] Period, T&SCo must submit to each User:	of the last Day of a Billing
		(a) the Processed Flow Meter Data S Processed Flow Meter Data which:	tatement, setting out the
		(i) (a) provide the meter read mass of carbon dioxide deliv	

No	Subject	Terms	
			the T&S Network during that Billing Period ("User's Meter Reading") to the Authority and the relevant User; and ; and
			(ii) has been used to calculate the Onshore Flow Charge and the Offshore Flow Charge (if applicable) payable by the User in relation to that Billing Period; and
			(b) submit the Invoice Documents to the User.
			Note: provision will be made for fixed decimalisation and rounding. This is subject to determining the levels of metering accuracy Document.
			Note : the obligations relating to the provision of meter readings will be reviewed once issues relating to metering arrangements have been further considered and developed.timing for the issue of the Invoice Document remains subject to review in the context of both the CDS Contract process and User Requirements.
		<u>8.3</u>	Where a User delivers carbon dioxide at more than one Delivery Point then T&SCo shall issue to that User a separate Invoice Document in relation to each Delivery Point.
9.	Invoicing Content of Invoice	9.1	For each Billing Period, T&SCo will submit anthe Invoice Document submitted by T&SCo to theeach User under paragraph 8.2 shall separately identifying the following:
	<u>Document</u>		(a) Onshore Flow Charge (if applicable);
			(b) Onshore Capacity Charge (if applicable);
			(c) Onshore Network Charge (if applicable);
			(d) Offshore Flow Charge;
			(e) Offshore Capacity Charge;
			(f) Offshore Network Charge; and
			(g) any other charges or amounts that may become due and payable under the Code or any Ancillary Agreement.
		9.2	Each Invoice Document willshall be issued on T&SCo letterhead and shall specify:
			(a) the identity of the User;
			(b) the Delivery Point to which the Invoice Document relates;
			(c) (b) the Billing Period to which the Invoice Document relates;
			(d) (c)-the Invoice Amount;
			(e) (d) the unique number by which the Invoice Document may

No	Subject	Terms	
			be identified; and
			(f) (e) the amount of VAT (if any) payable-:
			(g) the VAT registration number of both the User and T&SCo
			(h) the date of the Invoice Document;
			(i) the credit terms and beneficiary bank details; and
			(j) the currency of the Invoice Amount
		9.3	An Invoice Document may contain an adjustment by way of a credit_or a debit in respect of:
			(a) an Invoice Amount in another Invoice Document; and
			(b) any other amount which is agreed or determined to be payable by a User to T&SCo or by T&SCo to a User under or in connection with this Code.
		9.4	Any amounts payable by T&SCo to a User under or in connection with this Code, as set out in paragraph 9.3(b), shall be paid by way of an adjustment to the next Invoice Document due to be submitted after the amount becomes payable, and where any balance is still payable to the User, then that amount shall be paid by T&SCo to the User when that amount is due or at the same time as the Invoice Document is submitted to the User, whichever is the later.
		<u>9.5</u>	9.4—Invoice Documents will be submitted to Users by [details of invoicing platform to be inserted].
		Note:	platform for submission of invoices to be confirmed through the T&S Network Portal.
		<u>9.6</u>	9.5 All amounts expressed as payable pursuant to the Code shall be exclusive of VAT (unless expressly stated otherwise).
10.	Invoice payment	10.1	The Invoice Amount under the Invoice Document shall be paid (by the User to T&SCo or by T&SCo to the User):
			(a) on or before the Invoice Due Date; and
			(b) by wire transfer of immediately available funds.
		10.2	The Invoice Due Date shall be the date falling [twenty-thirty-five (2035) Business Days after the date of receiptend of the relevantBilling Period to which the Invoice Document relates .
			Note : the time period for payment of the invoice once it is received by the User is under review.
		10.3	Amounts payable under the Code shall be paid:
			(a) free and clear of any restriction, reservation or condition; and
			(b) except to the extent (if any) required by law, without

No	Subject	Terms	
			deduction or withholding in respect of tax or on account of any amount due or to become due to the paying party, whether by way of set off counterclaim or otherwise, other than by way of adjustment as set out in paragraph 9.3(b) and 9.4.
11.	Invoice Disputes and		Note: provisions relating to invoice queries and disputes are to be developed. Resolution of Invoice Disputes
	amended Invoice Documents	11.1	For the purposes of this Section H an "Invoice Dispute" is any question or dispute as to the proper calculation of any amount shown as payable by a User under an Invoice Document or as to whether any such amount is or was properly payable, where that question or dispute is not a CDS Data Dispute or in relation to a Flow Meter Error.
		11.2	References to the amount of an Invoice Dispute are to the amount by which the User submitting the Invoice Dispute considers the Invoice Amount to be incorrect.
		<u>11.3</u>	Where an Invoice Dispute has been raised:
			(a) the User shall provide to T&SCo in writing all relevant details of the Invoice Dispute, including the amount of the Invoice Dispute; and
			(b) T&SCo and the relevant User will endeavour to resolve the Invoice Dispute by agreement.
		<u>11.4</u>	Without prejudice to any obligation of Users pursuant to this Section, T&SCo agrees that it will make available such resources as are in its reasonable opinion reasonably adequate to deal reasonably promptly with the Invoice Dispute.
		<u>11.5</u>	Where a User raises an Invoice Dispute it shall pay the amount of the Invoice Dispute on the Invoice Due Date notwithstanding the Invoice Dispute.
		11.6	Where the parties are unable to resolve the Invoice Dispute within 30 Days of the Invoice Dispute being raised, the parties shall refer to Invoice Dispute for resolution by Expert Determination in accordance with Section B.
		11.7	As soon as reasonably practicable after any Invoice Dispute is resolved, and in any event within 20 Business Days, T&SCo will prepare and submit to the relevant User an appropriate Invoice Document in respect of the amount (if any) agreed or determined to be payable or repayable by T&SCo or the relevant User, in accordance with paragraph 8 of this Section H.
			Consequences of resolution of Flow Meter Errors and CDS <u>Data Disputes</u>
		11.8	Where:
			(a) a CDS Data Dispute has been finally resolved in accordance with Expert Determination under Paragraph 9 of Section B

No	Subject	Terms	
			(Governance); or
			(b) a Flow Meter Error has been finally resolved in accordance with Section F (Network design and specification),
			T&SCo shall instruct the CDS to re-process the applicable data (including any new data provided pursuant to paragraphs 6.3, 7.1 or 7.2 of Section F) for the relevant Billing Period and re-issue the Processed Flow Meter Data Statement for the relevant Billing Period(s) within ten (10) Business Days of being notified of the outcome of the CDS Data Dispute or the Flow Meter Adjustment, as the case may be.
		11.9	Upon being re-issued with a Processed Flow Meter Data Statement pursuant to paragraph 11.8, T&SCo shall, within 10 Days, re-submit the Invoice Document(s) to the User in accordance with Paragraph 8 of Section H.
			Payment of Invoice Amounts which may be impacted by another dispute
		11.10	Where a User considers that the Invoice Amount payable under an Invoice Document may be incorrect because of matters which are the subject of a CDS Data Dispute or because of a Flow Meter Error, the User shall pay the Invoice Amount on the Invoice Due Date notwithstanding the CDS Data Dispute or the alleged Meter Flow Error (as the case may be).
12.	Late payment	12.1	Where any amount payable under an Invoice Document is not paid on or before the <code>{5th}</code> Business Day after the Invoice Due Date, T&SCo shall be entitled to issue a notice of demand for payment of the outstanding amount ("Late Payment Notice").
		12.2	Where a party has not made payment of an amount the subject of a Late Payment Notice within five (5) Business Days of such Late Payment Notice:
			(a) without prejudice to any other rights of T&SCo under the Code, T&SCo shall be entitled to reject or refuse to accept all or any of the following by the relevant User:
			(i) delivery of carbon dioxide at the User's Delivery Point; or
			(ii) an application for Registered Capacity or increased Registered Capacity at any Delivery Point under Section E (<i>Network use and capacity</i>),
			with effect from the day after the due date for payment until such time as the relevant User has paid the amount due for payment in full; and
			(b) T&SCo shall be entitled to have recourse to the Required Security.
			Note: it is expected that the Licence will require a T&SCo to

No	Subject	Terms	
			access the late paying User's collateral before accessing the bad debt allowance.
		12.3	A User shall remain liable to pay Capacity Charges and Network Charges during any period in which paragraph 12.2 applies.
		12.4	Where any amount payable under an Invoice is not paid on or before the Invoice Due Date, the User shall pay interest, after as well as before judgment, at the Applicable Interest Rate, on the unpaid amount from the Invoice Due Date until the Day on which payment is made.
		12.5	The " Applicable Interest Rate " is the rate of interest, expressed as a percentage rate per annum, payable in respect of amounts overdue for payment, or subject to repayment, under the Code.
		12.6	The Applicable Interest Rate shall be the rate of interest set for the relevant period as the statutory interest rate for the purposes of the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998.

SECTION I: GENERAL

No	Subject	Terms	
1.	Information sharing	1.1 Where any provision of the Code requires or entitles a T&SCo (or the T&SCos) to "publish" any information or document, the T&SCo will provide such information or document to each Party, any other person to whom the T&SCo may (pursuant to its Licence or any other Legal Requirement or any provision of the Code) be required to provide such information and (subject to any confidentiality restrictions under the Code) such other persons as the T&SCo shall think fit.	
2.	Categories of Data	User Specific Data	
		2.1 In this Section, " User-Specific Data " means all data:	
		(a) held by a T&SCo in relation to a specific User, including:	
		(i) User's Maximum Eligible Capacity;	
		(ii) User's Registered Capacity;	
		(iii) accepted and rejected Nominations;	
		(iv) invoices;	
		(v) metered quantities;	
		(vi) outages affecting specific Users;	
		(vii) information required to be provided by the User to a Support Contract counterparty (pursuant to its Support Contract) or any other body pursuant to legal requirements; and	
		(viii) User's Measurement Equipment;	
		(ix) User Type; and	
		(x) User contact details.	
		(b) held by a User about User networks including:	
		(i) details of planned maintenance/outages in relation to User facilities;	
		(ii) forecast flow data;	
		(iii) actual flow data;	
		(iv) nominations;	
		(v) capacity bookings; and	
		(vi) any information which is required to be	

No	Subject	Terms
		provided by T&SCo to the Authority- (pursuant to its licence), the North Sea- Transition Authority (pursuant to its- licence/permit) or any other body- pursuant to legal requirements.
		Measurement Data
		2.2 In this section, "Measurement Data" means all data- generated by Measurement Equipment installed- pursuant to paragraph 5 of Section F which is not- User-Specific Data.
		CCS Network Data
		2.3 In this Section, " CCS Network Data " means all data- related to the CCS Network which is not User Specific- Data or Measurement Data.
3.	Access to Data	Data Transfer Procedures
		3.1 Each T&SCo shall establish, document, implement and maintain written procedures to address exchange of and access to User-Specific Data and Measurement-Data between the T&SCo and Users ("Data Transfer-Procedures").
		3.2 The Users and each T&SCo shall be required to complywith the Data Transfer Procedures.
		3.3 The Data Transfer Procedures shall, as a minimum-cover the following in relation to different User-Specific Data and Measurement Data:
		(a) methods of data acquisition (e.g. SCADA, email- accounts, web-based platforms etc);
		(b) template format for data provision and reporting;
		(c) minimum data transfer intervals;
		(d) level of granularity within datasets;
		(e) naming protocols for specific datasets;
		(f) means of transfer (e.g. email, telemetry etc)
		3.4 The Data Transfer Procedures shall comply with the requirements for format, naming, and minimum transfer intervals in relation to the User Specific Data and the Measurement Data set out in Annexure A.
		Note: These provisions are intended to provide flexibility for individual T&SCos to formulate their owndetailed data acquisition and storage procedures but to

No	Subject	'erms	
		provide a level of uniformity across the relation to certain data sets which will not the requirements of a number of stakeholders. 3.5 Any revisions or amendments to the Dipercedures will be implemented by Toreasonable notice to enable each User to systems (if required). CCS Network Data	eed to meet of different ata Transfer &SCo upon
		Each T&SCo shall procure that amongst following CCS Network Data is accessible all times via the Network Capacity Porta operational availability, and in case of its the T&SCo shall endeavour to provide this by other means available to the T&SCo:	to Users at , subject to unavailability
		(a) existing connections and new applications;	connections
		(b) Network Capacity available (in according the requirements of paragraph 3.2 (network use and capacity));	
		(c) annual Maintenance Programme;	
		(d) information on Capacity Cons accordance with the requirements of 12.1(a) of Section E (network capacity));	of paragraph
		(e) network expansion and (information;	development
		(f) process and timelines for capacity re	eases;
		(g) aggregate Registered Capacity of all	Users;
		(h) daily aggregate physical flow (gross)	;
		(i) aggregate metered quantities of a calendar month;	Il Users per
		(j) Charges;	
		(k) certain historic data in respect of the	above.
		The publication of CCS Network Data in with paragraph 3.6 shall comply with the and frequency requirements set out in Anni	e formatting
4.	Storage of Data	Each T&SCo shall keep records of all releving information, including information as listed	

No	Subject	Terms
		C, for at least ten (10) years.
5.	Data ownership	5.1 Subject to paragraph 5.2(a), all data which is processed by a T&SCo shall belong for the purposes of the Code to the T&SCo which owns or operates the T&S Network (or part of the T&S Network) to which such data relates; and subject to paragraph 5.3 T&SCo may, but without prejudice to paragraph 7 or any other requirement of the Code, use and deal with such data as it thinks fit.
		5.2 Where pursuant to the Code a User provides or arranges for the provision of data to a T&SCo:
		(a) such data (as provided to T&SCo by the User)-shall belong to the User;
		5.3 the User hereby grants to T&SCo (its successors, assigns, agents and contractors) a perpetual, non-exclusive, royalty-free licence (which shall survive the User Discontinuance Date) in respect of such data and all intellectual rights therein to use, copy, adapt and deal with such data for the purposes of performance and implementation of the Code and for other purposes contemplated by the Code, but not otherwise.
6.	Liability	6.1 Save as expressly provided elsewhere in the Code, no- Party shall have any liability to any other Party in the event that any data or information exchanged or provided pursuant to this Code is found to be inaccurate, in the absence of wilful misconduct by the Party providing such information or data.
7.	Information and confidentiality	7.1 T&SCo shall ensure that Protected Information is not:
		(i) an officer or employee of T&SCo who is required to have access to the information to carry out their duties; or (ii) a professional adviser of or consultant to the T&SCo or (iii) operators appointed by the T&SCo to operate the T&S network. (b) used by T&SCo for any purpose other than carrying its activities in relation to the T&S Network in accordance with the Code and the Licence.

No	Subject	Terms
		User obligation
		7.2 Each User shall ensure that Protected Information is not:
		(a) disclosed to any person other than:
		(i) an officer or employee of the User who is required to have access to the information to carry out their duties; or
		(ii) a professional adviser of or consultant to that User; or
		(b) used by such User for any purpose other than one expressly contemplated by the Code or any Ancillary Agreement to which such User is party.
		Protected Information
		7.3 In this section "Protected Information" means:
		(a) for the purposes of the T&SCo's obligations under paragraph 7.1:
		(i) any information relating to the affairs of a User which is obtained by T&SCo-pursuant to or in the course of the negotiation, implementation or performance of the Code, the Code-Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement to which that User is party;
		(ii) the terms of any Ancillary Agreement;
		(b) for the purposes of a User's obligations under- paragraph 7.2:
		(i) any information relating to the affairs of T&SCo or of another User which is obtained by the User pursuant to or in the course of the negotiation, implementation or performance of the Code, the Code Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement to which the User and (in relation to another User) that other User are party;
		(ii) the terms of any Ancillary Agreement to which that User is party.
		Terms of permitted disclosure
		7.4 Where Protected Information is disclosed by T&SCo aspermitted under paragraph 7.1(a) or by a User aspermitted under paragraph 7.2(a), the Disclosing Party

No	Subject	Terms
		shall (without prejudice to its obligations under paragraph 7.1 or 7.2) take all reasonable steps to secure that the person to whom the information is disclosed: (a) is aware of the Disclosing Party's obligations under paragraph 7.1 or 7.2 in relation thereto; and
		(b) does not use or disclose the information other than as is permitted for such Party in accordance with paragraph 7.1or 7.2.
		Exceptions
		7.5 For the purposes of this section, "Disclosing Party" and "Protected Party" shall be construed as follows:
		(a) for the purposes of T&SCo's obligations under- paragraph 7.1, the Disclosing Party is T&SCo and- the Protected Party is the User to whose affairs- any Protected Information relates;
		(b) for the purposes of a User's obligations under- paragraph 7.2, the Disclosing Party is such User- and the Protected Party is the Party (either- T&SCo or another User) to whose affairs any Protected Information relates.
		7.6 Nothing in paragraph 7.1 or 7.2 shall apply:
		(a) to the disclosure or use by the Disclosing Party of Protected Information to which the Protected Party has consented in writing;
		(b) to any Protected Information which:
		(i) before it is obtained by the Disclosing- Party is in the public domain; or
		(ii) after it is obtained by the Disclosing- Party enters the public domain
		(iii) in either case otherwise than as a result of a breach by the Disclosing Party of its obligations under paragraph 7.1 or 7.2;
		(c) to the disclosure of any Protected Information to any person if and to the extent that the Disclosing Party is required to make such disclosure to such person:
		(i) in compliance with the duties of the Disclosing Party under the Act or any other requirement of a Competent

No	Subject	Terms
		Authority; or
		(ii) in compliance with the conditions of the Licence held by the Disclosing Party or any document referred to in such Licence with which the Disclosing Party is required by virtue of the Act or such licence to comply; or
		(iii) in compliance with any other Legal- Requirement; or
		(iv) in response to a requirement of any stock- exchange or regulatory authority or the Panel on Take overs and Mergers; or
		(v) pursuant to any judicial or other arbitral- process or tribunal having jurisdiction in- relation to the Disclosing Party;
		(d) to the disclosure of Protected Information to any lending or other financial institution proposing to provide or arrange the provision of finance to the Disclosing Party, where and to the extent that the disclosure of such information is reasonably required for the purposes of the provision or arrangement of such finance, and provided that the person to whom the information is disclosed undertakes in writing to and in terms reasonably satisfactory to the Protected Party to maintain the confidentiality of such information;
		(e) to the disclosure of any Protected Information to the Regulator, where the Disclosing Party considers in good faith that the Protected Party may be in breach of a condition of the Licence, to the extent reasonably necessary to draw such possible breach to the attention of the Regulator;
		(f) to the disclosure of any Protected Information to any person proposing to make a connection to the T&S Network, where and to the extent that the disclosure of such information is reasonably required for the purposes of supporting T&SCo's charges or requirement to allow such proposed connection to the T&S Network to be made and provided that the person to whom the information is to be disclosed is informed in writing of the confidentiality of such information and that prior to disclosure, such person has entered into a confidentiality agreement with T&SCo which prohibits use or disclosure of such Protected Information in terms no less onerous than those contained in this section.

No	Subject	Terms
		Survival
		7.7 The provisions of paragraphs 7.1 to 7.6 shall continue, for a period of three (3) years after the User Discontinuance Date, to bind a Discontinuing User and (as respects the Discontinuing User) T&SCo and each other User, notwithstanding that the Discontinuing User has ceased to be a User and irrespective of the reason for such cessation.
		Licence
		7.8 Nothing in the Code, the Code Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement shall be construed as requiring T&SCo to disclose or use any information in breach of any requirement of T&SCo's Licence.
8.	Specific disclosure requirements	8.1 Without prejudice to the generality of paragraph 7, the parties acknowledge that:
		Note: The code will include specific provisions dealing with disclosure of information to the NSTA, the LCCC, etc.
9.	Notices and	9.1 Except where the means by which a particular
	communications	Communication is to be given is specified in the Code, such Communication shall be given by Conventional Notice.
		Note: It is expected that different means may be required for particular technical notifications (eg capacity availability and capacity constraints)
		9.2 References in this paragraph to "a notice" are to any Communication or other notice to be given by one Party to another under the Code or an Ancillary Agreement, other than one which is given as a [insert any special mode of communication for specific Communications (e.g. using an online portal system] or by telephone.
		9.3 Any notice shall be in writing and shall be addressed to the recipient Party at the recipient Party's address or e-mail address notified pursuant to paragraph 9.4 and marked for the attention of the representative identified in accordance with paragraph 9.4.
		9.4 The initial address, e mail address and details of the representative for whose attention notices are to be marked shall be as specified in a Connection Agreement and any changes shall be communicated by each Party to the other Party before taking effect.
		Note: the Code will include standard provisions relating to methods of delivery and when deemed

No	Subject	Terms
		receipt shall occur.
		Note: any technical issues relating to Communications
		to be developed further with input from industry.
10.	Liability between	10.1 For the purposes of this paragraph 10, each of:
	T&SCo and a User	(a) T&SCo and
		(b) the User that is a counterparty to the T&SCo- under a Connection Agreement,
		shall be a "Counterparty".
		Liability
		10.2 Subject to the remainder of this paragraph 10 and any other express provision to the contrary, no Party shall
		be liable to its Counterparty for any claims, losses,
		damages costs, expenses or liabilities arising from any default, negligence or breach of duty (whether
		statutory or otherwise) or the Party's performance of
		its obligations under this Code or an Ancillary Agreement, except for any such claims, losses,
		damages, costs, expenses or liabilities in respect of:
		(a) physical damage to the property of the Counterparty; and/or
		(b) the liability (in law) of the Counterparty to any third party.
		10.3 The amount or amounts for which a Party may be
		liable to a Counterparty pursuant to paragraph 10.2 in- respect of any one event or circumstance shall not
		exceed:
		(a) in respect of the liability of the T&SCo to any one-
		User or of any one User to T&SCo, £[insert]; or
		(b) in respect of the liability in aggregate of T&SCo- to more than one User, £[insert].
		to more than one oser, £[<i>mser</i>t].
		Exclusions and exceptions
		10.4 No Party shall in any circumstances be liable in respect
		of any breach of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement to any Counterparty for:
		(a) any loss of profit, loss of revenue, loss of use,
		loss of contract, loss of goodwill, or increased- cost of working; or
		(b) any indirect or consequential loss; or
		(c) except as provided in paragraphs 10.2(b) and

No	Subject	Terms
		10.5, loss resulting from the liability of any Counterparty to any other person howsoever and whensoever arising.
		10.5 Nothing in this Code or any Ancillary Agreement- excludes or limits the liability of any Party:
		(a) for death or personal injury resulting from the negligence of such Party; or
		(b) where such a limitation or exclusion would be contrary to applicable law.
		10.6 Paragraph 10.2 is without prejudice to any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement which provides for a Party to make a payment to a Counterparty.
		10.7 Nothing in this Code or any Ancillary Agreement shall-prevent any T&SCo or User from seeking injunctive-relief, specific performance or other equitable relief.
		The rights and remedies of the Parties pursuant to the Code and any Ancillary Agreement exclude and are in place of any rights or remedies of any Party in tort (including negligence and nuisance) or misrepresentation in respect of the subject matter of the Code or such Ancillary Agreement and accordingly, but without prejudice to paragraphs 10.5, each Party (to the fullest extent permitted by law):
		(a) waives any rights or remedies; and (b) releases the Counterparty from any duties or liabilities arising in tort or misrepresentation in respect of the subject matter of the Code or such Ancillary Agreement.
		10.9 Without prejudice to paragraph 10.8, where any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement provides for any amount to be payable by a Party uponor in respect of that Party's breach of any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement, each Party agrees and acknowledges that the remedy conferred by such provision is exclusive of and is in substitution for any remedy in damages in respect of such breach or the event or circumstance giving rise thereto.
		10.10 Nothing in this paragraph 10 shall prevent any Party- from or restrict it in enforcing any obligation owed to- under or pursuant to the Code, the Code Agreement or- any Ancillary Agreement.
11.	Liabilities between Users, between T&SCos and cross-network	11.1 Except as provided under paragraphs [x] [Note: In the development of the Code it may be necessary to provide for certain rights and liabilities such as in Part B (Governance)] nothing in the Code or any Ancillary

No	Subject	Terms
	liabilities	Agreement creates contractual rights or liabilities:
		(a) between Users inter se;
		(b) between T&SCos inter se; or
		(c) between Users of a T&S Network and the T&SCo- of another T&S Network.
		11.2 Each
		(a) T&SCo:
		(i) waives any rights or remedies against- any:
		(A) other T&SCo and
		(B) User other than the User which is- its Connection Agreement- counterparty; and
		(ii) releases:
		(A) each other T&SCo and
		(B) each User other than the User- which is its Connection Agreement- counterparty; and
		(b) User:
		(i) waives any rights or remedies against any:
		(A) other User; and
		(B) T&SCo other than the T&SCo- which is its Connection Agreement- counterparty; and
		(ii) releases:
		(A) each other User; and
		(B) T&SCo other than the T&SCo- which is its Connection Agreement- counterparty,
		from of any duties or liabilities arising in tort (including- negligence and nuisance) or misrepresentation in- respect of the subject matter of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement.
12.	Default and remedy	12.1 Where:

No	Subject	Terms
		(a) a User is in breach of the Code; and
		(b) such breach is not a Payment Default or Insolvency Default,
		T&SCo may give notice of such breach to the User-("Breach Notice).
		12.2 Within fourteen (14) Days of such notice the Usermust:
		(a) where the breach is reasonably capable of remedy within such period of fourteen (14) Days, remedy the breach in all material respects;
		(b) where the breach is capable of remedy but not- reasonably within fourteen (14) Days, provide to- T&SCo a remediation plan setting out the steps- to be taken by the User and the timetable for- taking such steps for the remedy of the breach- as soon as is reasonably practicable;
		(c) where the breach is not capable of remedy, provide a remediation plan setting out:
		(i) the steps to be taken by the User and the timetable for taking such steps to mitigate the impact of the breach so far as is reasonably practicable; and
		(ii) the steps to be taken to prevent the recurrence or re-occurrence of the relevant breach so far as is reasonably practicable.
		12.3 For the purposes of paragraphs 12.1(a) the following breaches are excluded:
		(a) a breach which results from a breach by T&SCo- of the Code or an Ancillary Agreement; or
		(b) a breach other than a wilful breach of a provision of the Code where the Code specifically provides some other remedy for such breach and such other remedy may reasonably be considered to be adequate in the circumstances.
13.	General Default	13.1 A 'General Default' occurs when a Breach Notice has been issued for a material breach and:
		(a) paragraph 12.2(a) applies and the breach- remains unremedied in any material respect- after the expiry of seven (7) Days after a further- notice by T&SCo to the User to the effect that- the User has not complied with paragraph

No	Subject	Terms
		12.2(a); or
		(b) paragraph 12.2(b) applies and the User doesnot:
		(i) remedy the breach in all material respects with all reasonable diligence and so far as reasonably practicable in accordance with the remediation plan provided under 12.2(b) or a revised remediation plan pursuant to paragraph 13.1(b)(ii) below; or
		(ii) where notwithstanding the reasonable diligence of the User it is not reasonably practicable for the User to remedy the breach in accordance with that remediation plan, provide to T&SCo a revised remediation plan,
		and such failure remains unremedied in any material respect after the expiry of seven (7) Days after a further notice by T&SCo to the User to the effect that the User has not complied with this paragraph 13.1(b);
		(c) paragraph 12.2(c) applies and:
		(i) the User does not :
		(A) comply in all material respects- with the remediation plan- provided under 12.2(c) or a- revised remediation plan pursuant- to paragraph below; or
		(B) where notwithstanding the reasonable diligence of the User it is not reasonably practicable for the User to comply in all material respects with that remediation plan, provide to T&SCo a revised remediation plan,
		and such failure remains unremedied in any material respect after the expiry of seven (7) Days after a further notice by T&SCo to the User to the effect that the User has not complied with this paragraph 13.1(c); or
		(ii) at any time within the period of twelve- (12) months following T&SCo's Breach- Notice, there occurs a further material- breach by the User of the same provision- of the Code; and T&SCo has given a

No	Subject	Terms
		notice of such further breach to the Userand a period of seven (7) Days has expired following such notice.
14.	Insolvency Default	14.1 An Insolvency Default occurs, save if and to the extent- the provisions of section 233B of the Insolvency Act- 1986 apply, when a User:
		(a) is unable to pay its debts (within the meaning of Section 123(I) or (2) of the Insolvency Act 1986, but subject to paragraph (x), or any voluntary arrangement is proposed in relation to it under Section I of that Act or it enters into any composition or scheme of arrangement (other than for the purpose of a bona fide solvent reconstruction or amalgamation); or
		(b) has a receiver (which expression shall include an administrative receiver within the meaning of Section 29 of the Insolvency Act 1986) of the whole or any material part of its assets or undertaking appointed; or
		(c) has an administration order under Section 8 of the Insolvency Act 1986 made in relation to it; or
		(d) passes any resolution for winding up (other than- for the purpose of a bona fide solvent- reconstruction or amalgamation); or
		(e) becomes subject to an order by the High Court- for winding-up; or
		(f) becomes subject to a bankruptcy order; or (g) becomes subject to an event made in a jurisdiction outside England and Wales, equivalent or analogous to any one or more of those events listed in paragraphs 14.1(a) to 14.1(f) above.
		14.2 For the purposes of paragraph 14.1(a), Section 123(1)(a) of the Insolvency Act 1986 shall have effect as if for '£750' there was substituted £10,000, and the User shall not be deemed to be unable to pay its debts for the purposes of that paragraph if any such demand as is mentioned in the said Section is being contested in good faith by the User with recourse to all appropriate measures and procedures.
15.	Payment Default	15.1 A Payment Default occurs where in relation to any amount (or amounts in aggregate) of not less than £[insert] which has become due for payment by the User under the Code:

No	Subject	Terms
		(a) the T&SCo has issued a notice of demand for payment of the outstanding amount (a "Late Payment Notice"); and (b) the User has not paid such amount in full by the [insert] Day after the date of the Late Payment Notice.
16.	Right to suspend	16.1 Without prejudice to any other rights of T&SCo underthe Code, during any period in which a Breach Notice or Late Payment Notice has been issued and such breach of the Code or failure to pay is subsisting, or during any period while an Insolvency Default is subsisting, T&SCo shall be entitled to reject or refuse to accept all or any of the following by the relevant User: (a) delivery of carbon dioxide at the User's Delivery Point; or (b) an application for Registered Capacity or increased Registered Capacity at any Delivery Point under Section E (network use and capacity).
		16.2 A User shall remain liable to pay Capacity Charges and Network Charges during any period in which paragraph 16.2 applies.
17.	Default Termination	17.1 Upon the occurrence of a User Default, T&SCo may give notice ("Termination Notice") to the User to the effect that the User shall cease to be a User of or in relation to the T&S Network with effect from the date (which may be any date on or after the date on which the notice is given) specified in the notice. 17.2 Where T&SCo gives a Termination Notice to a User,
		with effect from the date specified in the notice, the User will cease to be a User of the T&S Network and paragraph 19.2 shall apply:
		17.3 The giving of a Termination Notice and the application of paragraph 17.2 shall not affect the rights and obligations of T&SCo and the User under the Code or any Ancillary Agreement (including rights and obligations in respect of the User Default, and in respect of amounts including interest payable by either Party, and rights and obligations arising pursuant to any provision of the Code in respect of the User's ceasing to be a User) accrued up to the date referred to in paragraph 17.2, which shall continue to be enforceable notwithstanding that paragraph.
18.	User discontinuation	18.1 A User may by giving notice ("Discontinuance Notice") to T&SCo apply to cease to be a User of or in-

No	Subject	Terms
		relation to the T&SCo Network:
		(a) where it no longer intends to hold Registered Capacity; or (b) while a Construction Longstop Default is-
		subsisting in respect of a failure of T&SCo to complete the relevant T&SCo Works. 18.2 A User may not cease to be a User under this-
		paragraph 18 until such time as:
		(a) where paragraph 18.1(a) applies, the User's Registered Capacity has expired;
		(b) subject to paragraph 19.3(a), all amounts payable or (other than in respect of any recurrent charge becoming payable by reason only of the lapse of time after the date on which the last of the other requirements of this paragraph 18.2 is satisfied) which may become payable by the User to T&SCo pursuant to any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement have been paid in full;
		(c) any requirements under any Ancillary Agreement- in respect of termination have been complied with; and
		(d) any outstanding breach, being a breach capable of remedy and of which T&SCo has given notice to the User, by the User of any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement shall have been remedied.
		18.3 Where a User has given notice under paragraph 18.1, the User and T&SCo shall remain bound by the Code and any Ancillary Agreement to which the User is party-until the requirements of paragraph 18.2 are satisfied;
		18.4 Where a User has given notice under paragraph 18.1 after the satisfaction of the last of the requirements of paragraph 18.2 to be satisfied:
		(a) with effect from the 5th Business Day following such satisfaction, the User will cease to be a User;
		(b) without prejudice to paragraph 18.5, T&SCo will- as soon as reasonably practicable (and where- possible before such date) inform the User of the- date on which it ceases to be a User under- paragraph (a).
		18.5 Notwithstanding paragraph 18.3, T&SCo or (as the case may be) the User shall remain liable, subject to

No	Subject	Terms
		and in accordance with the Code, to the other and after the User Discontinuance Date:
		(a) for any amount which was or becomes payable- under the Code or any Ancillary Agreement in- respect of any period before the User- Discontinuance Date; and
		(b) in respect of any outstanding breach of any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement where such breach was not (for the purposes of paragraph 18.2(d)) capable of remedy or (notwithstanding that paragraph) was capable of remedy but was not remedied.
19.	Discontinuing Users and termination	19.1 A User may cease to be a User of or in relation to a T&S Network pursuant to paragraph 17 or 18 and for the purposes of the Code a "Discontinuing User" is a User who so ceases to be a User and the "User-Discontinuance Date" is the date with effect from which (in accordance with paragraph 17 or 18) a Discontinuing User ceases to be a User.
		19.2 Upon a User's ceasing to be a User:
		(a) subject to any provision of the Code expressed to survive termination and to paragraph 17.3, the Code Agreement shall cease to bind the Discontinuing User and (as respects the Discontinuing User) the T&SCo
		(b) each Ancillary Agreement to which a Discontinuing User is party shall, unless otherwise provided in such Ancillary Agreement, terminate as respects that User (but without prejudice to the continuance of that Agreement as respects any other User(s) party thereto) with effect from the User Discontinuance Date.
		19.3 A Discontinuing User's Registered Capacity shall not be- reduced or cancelled (and the User will remain liable- for payment of Capacity Charges in respect thereof but- may elect to make prepayment thereof) other than:
		(a) Long-term Registered Network Capacity after the date which is three years from the Discontinuance Date;
		(b) Registered Capacity from the Discontinuance- Date, where a Discontinuance Notice has been- issued under paragraph 18.1(b);or
		(c) by agreement with the T&SCo.
		19.4 A Discontinuing User will remain liable for payment of Network Charges for the period in which it is liable for

No	Subject	Terms
		Capacity Charges in accordance with paragraph 19.3. 19.5 Following the User Discontinuance Date, each party
		shall bear responsibility for: (a) the safe decommissioning of the connection-
		assets owned by that party; and (b) all decommissioning costs and liabilities
		(including any such liabilities arising under- relevant legal requirements) associated with the- decommissioning of such assets,
		based on the boundaries of ownership set out in the Connection Agreement between the T&SCo and the Discontinuing User.
20.	Governing law	20.1 The Code, the Code Agreement, every Accession Agreement and every Ancillary Agreement, and any dispute, controversy, proceedings or claim of whatever nature arising out of or in any way relating to the Code, the Code Agreement, any Accession Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement or their formation (including any non-contractual disputes or claims), shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law.
21.	Jurisdiction	21.1 Subject to the provisions providing for mediation and expert determination in Section B (Governance), all the Parties irrevocably agree that the courts of England shall have exclusive jurisdiction to hear, settle and/or determine any dispute, controversy or claim (including any non-contractual dispute, controversy or claim) arising out of or in connection with the Code, the Code Agreement, any Accession Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement, including any question regarding its existence, validity, formation or termination. For these purposes, each Party irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of the English courts.
22.	Third party rights	22.1 Unless expressly provided otherwise, no term of any Code Document is intended to be enforceable by third parties and the operation of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 is hereby excluded. Where an obligation is expressly stated to be enforceable by a third party, the consent of that third party will not be required to rescind or vary the relevant term.
23.	Severance	23.1 If any provision of this Code, the Code Agreement, any of the Accession Agreements or any of the Ancillary Agreements (the "Code Documents") is or becomes (whether or not pursuant to any judgment or otherwise) invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under the law of any jurisdiction:
		(a) the validity, legality and enforceability under the

No	Subject	Terms
		law of that jurisdiction of any other provision; and (b) the validity, legality and enforceability under the law of any other jurisdiction of that or any other provision,
		23.2 If any provision of any Code Document shall be held to be void or declared illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever, such provision shall be divisible from the Code Document and shall be deemed to be deleted from the Code Document and the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected.
24.	Entire agreement	24.1 Each of the Code Documents represents the entire-understanding, and constitute the whole agreement of the Parties in relation to their subject matter and supersede any previous agreement between the Parties with respect thereto and, to the fullest extent-practicable under the relevant law, and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, exclude any warranty, condition or other undertaking implied at law or by custom.
25.	Waiver	25.1 A waiver of any term, provision or condition of, or consent granted under, any Code Document shall be effective only if given in writing and signed by the waiving or consenting party and then only in the instance and for the purpose for which it is given.
		No failure or delay on the part of any party in exercising any right, power or privilege under any Code Document shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege.
		25.3 No breach of any provision of any Code Document shall- be waived or discharged except with the express- written consent of the parties.
		25.4 The rights and remedies herein provided are cumulative with and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.
26.	Language	26.1 Every communication or notice to be given by one- Party to another under any Code Document shall be in- the English language.
27.	Assignment	27.1 Neither Party shall assign its rights and obligations under this Code except in accordance with the

No	Subject	Terms	
			provisions of clauses 27.2 and 27.3.
		27.2	The User shall only be entitled to assign its rights and obligations under Code to a third party where:
			(a) the User assigns the ownership and operation of the User Facility to the third party;
			(b) the User has obtained the prior written consent of T&SCo, which shall not be unreasonably withheld; and
			(c) the third party becomes bound by the Code by entering into an Accession Agreement.
		27.3	T&SCo shall only be entitled to assign its rights and obligations under this Code to a third party where:
			(a) T&SCo assigns the ownership and operation of the T&S Network to a third party holding a Licence; and
			(b) the third party becomes bound by the Code by entering into an Accession Agreement.

ANNEXURE A - MINIMUM DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS

Note: It is expected that this Annexure will be populated with templates, naming protocols, transfer intervals and methods of acquisition for what are considered to be key datasets across the network, eg flow rates, nominations, compositional analysis etc.

ANNEXURE B INFORMATION PUBLICATION REQUIREMENTS

Note: it is expected that this Annexure will contain minimum requirements for granularity and frequency of data release in relation to information to be published by T&SCos.

ANNEXURE C RETAINED DATA

Note: It is expected that this Annexure will list the categories of data and information, which is required to be retained for at least ten (10) years.

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>
1.	Information sharing	1.1 Where any provision of the Code requires or entitles a T&SCo (or the T&SCos) to "publish" any information or document, the T&SCo will provide such information or document to each Party, any other person to whom the T&SCo may (pursuant to its Licence or any other Legal Requirement or any provision of the Code) be required to provide such information and (subject to any confidentiality restrictions under the Code) such other persons as the T&SCo shall think fit.
2.	<u>Liability</u>	2.1 Save as expressly provided elsewhere in the Code, no Party shall have any liability to any other Party in the event that any data or information exchanged or provided pursuant to this Code is found to be inaccurate, in the absence of wilful misconduct by the Party providing such information or data.
3.	Information and confidentiality	T&SCo obligation T&SCo shall ensure that Protected Information is not: (a) disclosed to any person other than: (i) an officer or employee of T&SCo who is required to have access to the information to carry out their duties; or (ii) a professional adviser of or consultant to the T&SCo or (iii) operators appointed by the T&SCo to operate the T&S network. (b) used by T&SCo for any purpose other than carrying its activities in relation to the T&S Network in accordance with the Code and the Licence. User obligation
		3.2 Each User shall ensure that Protected Information is not: (a) disclosed to any person other than: (i) an officer or employee of the User who is required to have access to the information to carry out their duties; or

Section I: general Data

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>			
			:	<u>a professiona</u> <u>that User; or</u>	l adviser of or consultant to
		<u>(</u>	<u></u>	e expressly conter	for any purpose other than mplated by the Code or any to which such User is party.
			<u>Protec</u>	ed Information	
		<u>3.3</u>	<u>In this</u>	ection "Protected In	nformation" means:
		<u>(</u>		the purposes oder paragraph 3.1:	of the T&SCo's obligations
				a User which pursuant to negotiation, performance	on relating to the affairs of the is obtained by T&SCo or in the course of the implementation or of the Code, the Code any Ancillary Agreement to the imparts;
			;	the terms of a	any Ancillary Agreement;
		1		the purposes of ragraph 3.2:	a User's obligations under
			;	T&SCo or contained by the course implementation Code, the Ancillary Agr	on relating to the affairs of of another User which is the User pursuant to or in of the negotiation, on or performance of the Code Agreement or any eement to which the User tion to another User) that e party;
				the terms of which that Us	any Ancillary Agreement to er is party.
			<u>Terms</u>	of permitted discl	<u>osure</u>
			permitt permitt shall paragra secure disclose	d under paragrap d under paragraph vithout prejudice oh 3.1 or 3.2) ta hat the person to l:	on is disclosed by T&SCo as th 3.1(a) or by a User as 3.2(a), the Disclosing Party to its obligations under ke all reasonable steps to whom the information is
		1	<u>u</u>		sclosing Party's obligations or 3.2 in relation thereto;
		4			close the information other for such Party in accordance

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>			
				with pa	aragraph 3.1 or 3.2.
			<u>Exce</u>	<u>ptions</u>	
		<u>3.5</u>			oses of this section, "Disclosing Party" and arty" shall be construed as follows:
			<u>(a)</u>	paragr the Pro	e purposes of T&SCo's obligations under aph 3.1, the Disclosing Party is T&SCo and otected Party is the User to whose affairs otected Information relates;
			<u>(b)</u>	paragrand the T&SCo	e purposes of a User's obligations under aph 3.2, the Disclosing Party is such User he Protected Party is the Party (either or another User) to whose affairs any ted Information relates.
		<u>3.6</u>	<u>Noth</u>	ing in pa	aragraph 3.1 or 3.2 shall apply:
			<u>(a)</u>	of Prot	disclosure or use by the Disclosing Party tected Information to which the Protected has consented in writing;
			<u>(b)</u>	to any	Protected Information which:
				<u>(i)</u>	before it is obtained by the Disclosing Party is in the public domain; or
				<u>(ii)</u>	after it is obtained by the Disclosing Party enters the public domain
				<u>(iii)</u>	in either case otherwise than as a result of a breach by the Disclosing Party of its obligations under paragraph 3.1 or 3.2;
			<u>(c)</u>	any p	disclosure of any Protected Information to verson if and to the extent that the sing Party is required to make such ure to such person:
				<u>(i)</u>	in compliance with the duties of the Disclosing Party under the Act or any other requirement of a Competent Authority; or
				<u>(ii)</u>	in compliance with the conditions of the Licence held by the Disclosing Party or any document referred to in such Licence with which the Disclosing Party is required by virtue of the Act or such licence to comply; or
				(iii)	in compliance with any other Legal Requirement; or

Section I: general Data

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>
		(iv) in response to a requirement of any stock exchange or regulatory authority or the Panel on Take-overs and Mergers; or (v) pursuant to any judicial or other arbitral process or tribunal having jurisdiction in relation to the Disclosing Party;
		(d) to the disclosure of Protected Information to any lending or other financial institution proposing to provide or arrange the provision of finance to the Disclosing Party, where and to the extent that the disclosure of such information is reasonably required for the purposes of the provision or arrangement of such finance, and provided that the person to whom the information is disclosed undertakes in writing to and in terms reasonably satisfactory to the Protected Party to maintain the confidentiality of such information;
		(e) to the disclosure of any Protected Information to the Regulator, where the Disclosing Party considers in good faith that the Protected Party may be in breach of a condition of the Licence, to the extent reasonably necessary to draw such possible breach to the attention of the Regulator;
		(f) to the disclosure of any Protected Information to any person proposing to make a connection to the T&S Network, where and to the extent that the disclosure of such information is reasonably required for the purposes of supporting T&SCo's charges or requirement to allow such proposed connection to the T&S Network to be made and provided that the person to whom the information is to be disclosed is informed in writing of the confidentiality of such information and that prior to disclosure, such person has entered into a confidentiality agreement with T&SCo which prohibits use or disclosure of such Protected Information in terms no less onerous than those contained in this section.
		<u>Survival</u>
		3.7 The provisions of paragraphs 3.1 to 3.6 shall continue, for a period of three (3) years after the User Discontinuance Date, to bind a Discontinuing User and (as respects the Discontinuing User) T&SCo and each other User, notwithstanding that the Discontinuing User has ceased to be a User and irrespective of the reason for such cessation.
		Licence 2.9 Nothing in the Code the Code Agreement or any
		3.8 Nothing in the Code, the Code Agreement or any

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>				
			T&SC	Ancillary Agreement shall be construed as requiring T&SCo to disclose or use any information in breach of any requirement of T&SCo's Licence.		
<u>4.</u>	Specific disclosure requirements	<u>4.1</u>	Without prejudice to the generality of paragraph 3, the parties acknowledge that a User may be required to make disclosures of Protected Information, User-Specific Data and T&S Network Data to the LCCC pursuant to the User Requirements.			
<u>5.</u>	Categories of Data		<u>User-Specific Data</u>			
		<u>5.1</u>	<u>In thi</u>	s Sectio	on, "User-Specific Data" means all data:	
			<u>(a)</u>	held b	y a T&SCo in relation to a specific User, ng:	
				<u>(i)</u>	<u>User's Registered Capacity;</u>	
				<u>(ii)</u>	accepted and rejected Nominations;	
				<u>(iii)</u>	invoices;	
				<u>(iv)</u>	metered quantities;	
				<u>(v)</u>	outages affecting specific Users;	
				<u>(vi)</u>	information required to be provided by the User to a Support Contract counterparty (pursuant to its Support Contract) or any other body pursuant to legal requirements; and	
				<u>(vii)</u>	<u>User's Measurement Equipment;</u>	
				<u>(viii)</u>	<u>User Type; and</u>	
				<u>(ix)</u>	<u>User contact details.</u>	
			<u>(b)</u>	held by	v a User about User networks including:	
				<u>(i)</u>	details of planned maintenance/outages in relation to User facilities;	
				<u>(ii)</u>	forecast flow data;	
				<u>(iii)</u>	actual flow data;	
				<u>(iv)</u>	nominations;	
				<u>(v)</u>	capacity bookings; and	
				<u>(vi)</u>	any information which is required to be provided by T&SCo to the Authority (pursuant to its licence), the North Sea Transition Authority (pursuant to its licence/permit) or any other body	
				156		

Section I: general Data

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>	
			pursuant to legal requirements.
			<u>Measurement Data</u>
		<u>5.2</u>	In this section, "Measurement Data" means all data generated by Measurement Equipment installed pursuant to paragraph 5 of Section F which is not User-Specific Data.
			T&S Network Data
		<u>5.3</u>	In this Section, "T&S Network Data" means all data related to the CCS Network which is not User Specific Data or Measurement Data.
<u>6.</u>	Access to Data		<u>Data Transfer Procedures</u>
		<u>6.1</u>	Each T&SCo shall establish, document, implement and maintain written procedures to address exchange of and access to User-Specific Data and Measurement Data between the T&SCo and Users ("Data Transfer Procedures").
		<u>6.2</u>	The Users and each T&SCo shall be required to comply with the Data Transfer Procedures.
		<u>6.3</u>	The Data Transfer Procedures shall be established no later than 6 months prior to the Commercial Operations Date and shall, as a minimum cover the following in relation to different User-Specific Data and Measurement Data:
			(a) methods of data acquisition (e.g. SCADA, email accounts, web-based platforms etc);
			(b) template format for data provision and reporting;
			(c) minimum data transfer intervals;
			(d) level of granularity within datasets;
			(e) naming protocols for specific datasets;
			(f) means of transfer (e.g. email, telemetry etc)
			Minimum content requirements
		<u>6.4</u>	The Data Transfer Procedures shall at all times comply with the requirements for format, naming, and minimum transfer intervals in relation to the User-Specific Data and the Measurement Data set out in Annexure I.
			<u>Preparation of Data Annexures</u>

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
		<u>6.5</u>	No later than 12 months prior to the Commercial Operations Date, the T&SCo shall jointly develop and deliver to:
			(a) each User; and
			(b) the Authority,
			the proposed draft of Annexure I and Annexure J (together, the " Draft Data Annexures ") for review and comment in accordance with paragraphs 6.6 to 6.8 below.
		<u>6.6</u>	As soon as reasonably practicable and in any event within 20 Business Days of receipt of the Draft Data Annexures, each User shall notify the T&SCos of any comments on the Draft Data Annexures.
		<u>6.7</u>	When providing comments to the T&SCos in accordance with paragraph 6.6, each User shall be required to provide the following:
			(a) information about the User (company, registered office, etc.) and about at least one reference person (name, telephone number, fax number, e-mail address, etc.) who can be contacted with respect to the User comments;
			(b) the reasons why the User believes the User comments should be incorporated; and
			(c) any documentation (analyses, reports, etc.) to support the request.
		<u>6.8</u>	In preparing the final versions of Annexure I and Annexure J, the T&SCos shall:
			(a) give reasonable consideration to any comments provided by a User pursuant to paragraph 6.6; and
			(b) where the T&SCos do not take on board or incorporate any comments provided by a User pursuant to paragraph
			explanation to the User of the reasons for this decision.
		<u>6.9</u>	For the avoidance of doubt, it shall be reasonable for the T&SCos to not incorporate comments made by a User in relation to the Draft Data Annexures into the final version where such comments, if incorporated, would affect the safe operation of the T&S Network.
		<u>6.10</u>	Subject to paragraph 6.14, once all comments have been received and considered pursuant to the process

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>	
			set out in paragraph 6.8, the T&SCos shall deliver to:
			(a) each User; and
			(b) the Authority,
			the final version of Annexure I and Annexure J and shall proceed to develop the Data Transfer Procedures for the relevant T&S Network in accordance with paragraph 6.1.
			Revisions
		<u>6.11</u>	Once the final versions of Annexure I and Annexure J have been delivered pursuant to paragraph 6.10, the T&SCos may review and/or revise the contents of Annexure I or Annexure J:
			(a) when the T&SCos consider it is necessary to do so;
			(b) upon request by a User; or
			(c) in order to resolve a dispute under paragraph 6.14,
			provided that any such revision shall be subject to the procedure set out in paragraph 6.6 to 6.10, and subject always to paragraph 6.14.
		<u>6.12</u>	The T&SCos shall not be required to follow the procedure set out in paragraph 6.11 in relation to revisions to Annexure I and/or Annexure J where any such revision is:
			(a) of a routine nature; and
			(b) does not have a material impact on a User's cost base, or other operational processes.
		<u>6.13</u>	Any revisions or amendments to the Data Transfer Procedures will be implemented by T&SCo upon reasonable notice to enable each User to adjust its systems (if required).
			<u>Disputes</u>
		<u>6.14</u>	Where:
			(a) a User comment provided pursuant to paragraph 6.6 of this section I was not included by T&SCos in the final Annexure I or final Annexure J; and
			(b) a majority of Users considers that such comment should have been incorporated by the

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>		
				T&SCo or
			(c)	a majority of Users consider that a revision made by the T&SCo in accordance with paragraph 6.12 should not have been made, such matter may be referred by a User to dispute
			resolu	ution in accordance with the provisions of araph 8 of Section B (Governance).
		<u>6.15</u>	under Data resolv	e any matter is referred to dispute resolution paragraph 6.14, the T&SCo shall not finalise the Transfer Procedures until such dispute has been yed in accordance with the provisions of graph 8 of Section B (Governance).
			<u>T&S</u>	Network Data
		<u>6.16</u>	times opera the T	T&SCo shall procure that amongst others, the ving T&S Network Data is accessible to Users at all via the T&S Network Portal, subject to tional availability, and in case of its unavailability &SCo shall endeavour to provide this information her means available to the T&SCo:
			<u>(a)</u>	<u>existing connections and new connections</u> <u>applications;</u>
			<u>(b)</u>	Network Capacity available (in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 3.2 of Section E (network use and capacity));
			<u>(c)</u>	annual Maintenance Programme;
			<u>(d)</u>	information on Capacity Constraints (in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 12.1(a) of Section E (network use and capacity));
			<u>(e)</u>	network expansion and development information;
			<u>(f)</u>	process and timelines for capacity releases;
			<u>(g)</u>	aggregate Registered Capacity of all Users;
			<u>(h)</u>	daily aggregate physical flow (gross);
			<u>(i)</u>	aggregate metered quantities of all Users per calendar month;
			<u>(j)</u>	<u>Charges;</u>
			<u>(k)</u>	certain historic data in respect of the above.
		<u>6.17</u>	The p	publication of T&S Network Data in accordance

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>	
			with paragraph 6.6 shall comply with the formatting and frequency requirements set out in Annexure J.
<u>Z.</u>	Storage of Data	<u>7.1</u>	Each T&SCo shall keep records of all relevant data and information, including information as listed in Annexure K, for at least ten (10) years.
<u>8.</u>	Data ownership	8.1	Subject to paragraph 8.2(a), all data which is processed by a T&SCo shall belong for the purposes of the Code to the T&SCo which owns or operates the T&S Network (or part of the T&S Network) to which such data relates; and subject to paragraph 8.2(b), T&SCo may, but without prejudice to paragraph 3 or any other requirement of the Code, use and deal with such data as it thinks fit.
		<u>8.2</u>	Where pursuant to the Code a User provides or arranges for the provision of data to a T&SCo:
			(a) such data (as provided to T&SCo by the User) shall belong to the User; and
			the User hereby grants to T&SCo (its successors, assigns, agents and contractors) a perpetual, non-exclusive, royalty-free licence (which shall survive the User Discontinuance Date) in respect of such data and all intellectual rights therein to use, copy, adapt and deal with such data for the purposes of performance and implementation of the Code and for other purposes contemplated by the Code, but not otherwise.
<u>9.</u>	<u>Central Data Service</u>		<u>Procurement</u>
		<u>9.1</u>	The T&SCos shall be required, acting jointly: (a) to procure an independent Central Data Service Provider ("CDS") under a contract ("CDS Contract").
			(b) to ensure that the CDS is appointed by the date which is 6 months prior to the earliest Commercial Operations Date.
			Note : the timing of this will need to be reviewed once the scheduled COD dates for each of the T&SCos have been confirmed.
		<u>9.2</u>	The scope of the CDS Contract shall include:
			(a) provision of a data processing and management service for the processing of raw data from the boundary flow meter;
			(b) delivery of a statement to T&SCos representing

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>	
			the quantity of actual mass of carbon dioxide delivered by each User into the T&S Network during a Billing Period ("Processed Flow Meter Data Statement"); and
			(c) coverage across all T&S Networks.
		<u>9.3</u>	The terms of the CDS Contract must comply with the terms of reference set out in Annexure L ("CDS Terms of Reference").
		<u>9.4</u>	The T&SCos shall be required to:
			(a) jointly manage the CDS Contract;
			(b) bear the fees incurred under the CDS Contract equally between each T&SCo and
			(c) ensure that a CDS is in place at all times.
		<u>9.5</u>	Where the CDS contract expires or is otherwise terminated in accordance with its terms, the T&SCos shall ensure that any replacement CDS is procured in accordance with paragraphs 9.2 and 9.3 above and so as to maintain continuous coverage in accordance with paragraph 9.4(c).
			CDS Data Disputes
		<u>9.6</u>	Where a Party wishes to dispute content of the Processed Flow Meter Data Statement ("CDS Data Dispute"), such dispute shall be referred to Expert Determination in accordance with paragraph 9 of Section B (Governance).
<u>10.</u>	<u>Independent</u>		<u>Procurement</u>
	<u>Verifier</u>	<u>10.1</u>	Each T&SCo shall be required:
			(a) to procure an independent third party verifier (the "Independent Verifier") under a contract (the "Independent Verifier Appointment") to carry out the validation activities required by paragraphs 4.5 and 6.2 of Section F (Network Design and Specification) with the aim of providing a verification report that concludes with reasonable assurance that the Measurement Equipment at each Delivery Point in the applicable T&S Network complies with the Measurement Requirements; and
			(b) to ensure that the Independent Verifier is appointed by the date which is no later than 6 months prior to its Commercial Operations Date.

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
		10.2	The terms of the Independent Verifier Appointment must comply with the terms of reference set out in Annexure M ("Independent Verifier Terms of Reference").
		<u>10.3</u>	Each T&SCo shall be required to:
			(a) manage the Independent Verifier Appointment;
			(b) subject to paragraph 6.4 of Section F (Network design and specification) bear the fees incurred under the Independent Verifier Appointment; and
			(c) ensure that an Independent Verifier is in place at all times.
		<u>10.4</u>	Where the Independent Verifier Appointment expires or is otherwise terminated in accordance with its terms, the T&SCos shall ensure that any replacement independent verifier is procured in accordance with paragraph 10.1 above and so as to maintain continuous coverage in accordance with paragraph. 10.4(c)
<u>11.</u>	T&S Network Portal		Procurement
		<u>11.1</u>	Each T&SCo shall be required:
			(a) to procure a T&S Network Portal provider (the "T&S Network Portal Provider") for its T&S Network under a contract (the "Network Portal Service Contract"); and
			(b) to ensure that the T&S Network Portal Provider is appointed by the date which is no later than 6 months prior to its Commercial Operations Date.
		<u>11.2</u>	The terms of the Network Portal Service Contract must comply with the terms of reference set out in Annexure N ("Network Portal Terms of Reference").
		<u>11.3</u>	Each T&SCo shall be required to:
			(a) manage the Network Portal Service Contract;
			(b) bear the fees incurred under the Network Portal Service Contract; and
			(c) ensure that a Network Portal is in place at all times.
		<u>11.4</u>	Where the Network Portal Service Contract expires or is otherwise terminated in accordance with its terms, the T&SCos shall ensure that any replacement Network

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
			Portal Service Contract is procured in accordance with paragraph 11.1 above and so as to maintain continuous coverage in accordance with paragraph
<u>12.</u>	Revisions to Terms		Revisions to Terms of Reference
	of Reference	<u>12.1</u>	Where a Party (the "Proposing Party"), wishes to revise:
			(a) the CDS Terms of Reference;
			(b) the Independent Verifier Terms of Reference; or
			(c) the Network Portal Terms of Reference
			any such revision shall be subject to the procedure set out in paragraph 12.2 to 12.9 below.
		<u>12.2</u>	The Proposing Party shall develop and deliver to:
			(a) each other Party:
			(b) the LCCC; and
			(c) the Authority:
			the proposed amendments to the applicable Terms of Reference ("ToR Proposal") for review and comment in accordance with paragraphs 12.3 to 12.5 below.
		12.3	As soon as reasonably practicable and in any event within 20 Business Days of receipt of the ToR Proposal, each Party shall notify the Proposing Party of any comments on the ToR Proposal.
		<u>12.4</u>	When providing comments to the Proposing Party in
			accordance with paragraph
			required to provide the following:
			(a) information about the Party (company, registered office, etc.) and about at least one reference person (name, telephone number, fax number, e-mail address, etc.) who can be contacted with respect to that Party's comments;
			(b) the reasons why that Party believes its comments should be incorporated; and
			(c) any documentation (analyses, reports, etc.) to support the request.
		<u>12.5</u>	The Proposing Party shall:
			164

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>	
			(a) give reasonable consideration to any comments provided by a Party pursuant to paragraph
			(b) where the Proposing Party does not take on board or incorporate any comments provided by a Party pursuant to paragraph 12.3, provide an explanation to the Party of the reasons for this decision.
		<u>12.6</u>	Once all comments have been received and considered pursuant to the process set out in paragraphs 12.3 to 12.5, the Proposing Party shall deliver to:
			(a) each other Party;
			(b) the LCCC; and
			(c) the Authority,
			the final draft of the revised Terms of Reference ("Revised Terms of Reference").
		<u>12.7</u>	Subject to paragraph 12.8, any Revised Terms of Reference, shall be implemented as a Self-Governance Modification Proposal via the Modification Procedure in Section B (Governance).
			<u>Disputes</u>
		<u>12.8</u>	Where:
			(a) a Party comment provided pursuant to paragraph 12.3 of this section I was not included in the Revised Terms of Reference; and
			(b) a majority of other Parties considers that such comment should have been incorporated by the Proposing Party,
			then such matter may be referred by the Party who made the original comment to dispute resolution in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 8 of Section B (Governance).
		<u>12.9</u>	Where any matter is referred to dispute resolution under paragraph 12.8, the Proposing Party shall not raise a Self-Governance Modification Proposal until such dispute has been resolved in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 8 of Section B (Governance).

SECTION J: GENERAL

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
<u>1.</u>	Notices and communications	1.1	Except where the means by which a particular Communication is to be given is specified in the Code, such Communication shall be given by Conventional Notice.
		1.2	References in this paragraph to "Conventional Notice" are to any Communication or other notice to be given by one Party to another under the Code or an Ancillary Agreement, other than one which is given by means of the T&S Network Portal or by telephone.
		1.3	Any Conventional Notice shall be in writing and shall be addressed to the recipient Party at the recipient Party's address or e-mail address notified pursuant to paragraph 1.4 and marked for the attention of the representative identified in accordance with paragraph 1.4.
		<u>1.4</u>	The initial address, e-mail address and details of the representative for whose attention notices are to be marked shall be as specified in a Connection Agreement and any changes shall be communicated by each Party to the other Party before taking effect.
		<u>1.5</u>	Any Conventional Notice given by delivery shall be given by letter delivered by hand, and any notice given by post shall be sent by first class prepaid post (airmail if overseas).
		<u>1.6</u>	Any Conventional Notice shall be deemed to have been received:
			(a) in case of delivery by hand, when delivered; or
			(b) in the case of first class prepaid post, on the second Day following the Day of posting (or, if sent airmail overseas or from overseas, on the fifth Day following the Day of posting); or
			(c) in the case of e-mail, subject to paragraph 1.8, shall be deemed to have been received one hour after being sent in the absence of any undeliverable return receipt received by the sender during that period.
		<u>1.7</u>	A Party may specify different addresses and representatives pursuant to paragraph 1.3 for the purposes of Conventional Notices of different kinds or relating to different matters.
		<u>1.8</u>	If the time at which any Conventional Notice sent by e-mail is deemed to have been received falls after 1700 hours on a day, the Conventional Notice shall be deemed to have been received at the start of the next

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>				
			Business Day.			
		<u>1.9</u>	Where a Conventional Notice is sent by e-mail, the Party giving the Conventional Notice shall (but without prejudice to paragraph 1.6(c)) if requested by the recipient Party, resend as soon as reasonable practicable the Conventional Notice by email.			
<u>2.</u>	Alternative means	<u>2.1</u>	Where:			
	of communication		(a) the Code specifies that any Communication or other notice is to be provided by a User to T&SCo, or by T&SCo to the User, by means of the T&S Network Portal; and			
			(b) as a result of a technical fault or other circumstances the T&S Network Portal is not functioning or one of the parties is, through unforeseen circumstances unable to access the T&S Network Portal,			
			then the party experiencing the difficulties specified paragraph 2.1(b) shall make the relevant Communication or notice by means of telephone of e-mail (depending on which is most appropriate in the circumstances) using the other party's Alternative Operational Communication Contact Details.			
		<u>2.2</u>	T&SCo shall provide to Users, and each User shall provide to T&SCo, the Alternative Operational Communication Contact Details, which shall consist of:			
			(a) an e-mail address; and			
			(b) a telephone number,			
			which will be closely monitored by the parties for the purposes of receiving any Communications or other notices made in accordance with paragraph 2.1.			
		<u>2.3</u>	Any changes to a party's Alternative Operational Communication Contact Details must be notified to the other party or parties as soon as is reasonably practicable.			
<u>3.</u>	Liability between	3.1	For the purposes of this paragraph 3, each of:			
	T&SCo and a User		(a) T&SCo and			
			(b) the User that is a counterparty to the T&SCo under a Connection Agreement,			
			shall be a "Counterparty".			
			<u>Liability</u>			

Section J: $\frac{\text{glossary}}{\text{General}}$

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
			Subject to the remainder of this paragraph 3 and any other express provision to the contrary, no Party shall be liable to its Counterparty for any claims, losses, damages costs, expenses or liabilities arising from any default, negligence or breach of duty (whether statutory or otherwise) or any breach of this Code or an Ancillary Agreement (or the Party's performance of its obligations under this Code or an Ancillary Agreement), except for any such claims, losses, damages, costs, expenses or liabilities in respect of: (a) physical damage to the property of the Counterparty; and/or (b) the liability (in law) of the Counterparty to any third party.
		<u>3.3</u>	Where T&SCo elects to accept delivery of carbon dioxide which does not comply with the Entry Provisions for delivery into the T&S Network pursuant to paragraph 3.1(b) of Section F (Network design and specification), then it thereby takes responsibility for the impact of such carbon dioxide on the T&S Network. Note: this provision is without prejudice to any liability at law between the Parties where there is no such
		<u>3.4</u>	The amount or amounts for which a Party may be liable to a Counterparty pursuant to paragraph 3.2 in respect of any one event or circumstance shall not exceed:
		į	in respect of the liability of the T&SCo to any one User or of any one User to T&SCo, £[20 million]; or
			(b) in respect of the liability in aggregate of T&SCo to more than one User, £[100 million].
			Exclusions and exceptions
		<u>3.5</u>	No Party shall in any circumstances be liable in respect of any breach of this Code or an Ancillary Agreement (or the Party's performance of its obligations under this Code or any Ancillary Agreement) to any Counterparty for:
			(a) any loss of profit, loss of revenue, loss of use, loss of contract, loss of goodwill, or increased cost of working; or
		į	(b) any indirect or consequential loss, including any ETS Liabilities; or
			(c) except as provided in paragraphs 3.2(b) and 3.6,

Section J: $\frac{\text{glossary}}{\text{General}}$

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
			loss resulting from the liability of any Counterparty to any other person howsoever and whensoever arising.
		<u>3.6</u>	Nothing in this Code or any Ancillary Agreement excludes or limits the liability of any Party:
			(a) for death or personal injury resulting from the negligence of such Party; or
			(b) where such a limitation or exclusion would be contrary to applicable law.
		<u>3.7</u>	Paragraph 3.2 is without prejudice to any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement which provides for a Party to make a payment to a Counterparty.
		<u>3.8</u>	Nothing in this Code or any Ancillary Agreement shall prevent any T&SCo or User from seeking injunctive relief, specific performance or other equitable relief.
		<u>3.9</u>	The rights and remedies of the Parties pursuant to the Code and any Ancillary Agreement exclude and are in place of any rights or remedies of any Party in tort (including negligence and nuisance) or misrepresentation in respect of the subject matter of the Code or such Ancillary Agreement and accordingly, but without prejudice to paragraphs 3.6, each Party (to the fullest extent permitted by law):
			(a) waives any rights or remedies; and (b) releases the Counterparty from any duties or liabilities arising in tort or misrepresentation in respect of the subject matter of the Code or such Ancillary Agreement.
		3.10	Without prejudice to paragraph 3.9, where any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement provides for any amount to be payable by a Party upon or in respect of that Party's breach of any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement, each Party agrees and acknowledges that the remedy conferred by such provision is exclusive of and is in substitution for any remedy in damages in respect of such breach or the event or circumstance giving rise thereto.
		<u>3.11</u>	Nothing in this paragraph 3 shall prevent any Party from or restrict it in enforcing any obligation owed to under or pursuant to the Code, the Code Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement.
<u>4.</u>	Liabilities between Users, between T&SCos and cross-network	4.1	Unless otherwise provided, nothing in the Code or any Ancillary Agreement creates contractual rights or liabilities:

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>						
	<u>liabilities</u>		<u>(a)</u>	betwe	en Use	ers inter se;		
			<u>(b)</u>	<u>betwe</u>	en T&S	Scos inter se; or		
			<u>(c)</u>	between Users of a T&S Network and the T&SCo of another T&S Network.				
		<u>4.2</u>	<u>Each</u>					
			<u>(a)</u>	T&SC	<u>o:</u>			
				<u>(i)</u>	waive any:	s any rights or remedies against		
					<u>(A)</u>	other T&SCo and		
					<u>(B)</u>	User other than the User which is its Connection Agreement counterparty; and		
				<u>(ii)</u>	releas	ses:		
					<u>(A)</u>	each other T&SCo and		
					<u>(B)</u>	each User other than the User which is its Connection Agreement counterparty; and		
			<u>(b)</u>	<u>User:</u>	=			
				<u>(i)</u>	waive any:	s any rights or remedies against		
					<u>(A)</u>	other User; and		
					<u>(B)</u>	T&SCo other than the T&SCo which is its Connection Agreement counterparty; and		
				<u>(ii)</u>	releas	ses:		
					<u>(A)</u>	each other User; and		
					<u>(B)</u>	T&SCo other than the T&SCo which is its Connection Agreement counterparty,		
			neglig respe	ence	and n	or liabilities arising in tort (including uisance) or misrepresentation in bject matter of the Code or any t.		
<u>5.</u>	Warning notices	<u>5.1</u>	Where	<u>e:</u>				
			<u>(a)</u>					

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>		
			<u>(b)</u>	such breach is not a Payment Default or Insolvency Default,
				o may give warning notice of such material or tent breach to the User (the "Warning Notice")
				(i) requires the User to desist from failing to comply with the Code; and
				(ii) includes details of how the User has materially or persistently failed to comply with the requirements of the Code.
			<u>(c)</u>	the User shall be permitted a "grace period" of 14 Days to implement measures to assist the User in complying with the Code; and
			<u>(d)</u>	for the avoidance of doubt, any non-compliance with the Code by the User during the grace period referred to in paragraph 5.1(c) shall not entitle T&SCo to serve another Warning Notice on the User.
<u>6.</u>	Default and remedy	<u>6.1</u>	Where	<u>3:</u>
			<u>(a)</u>	having received three Warning Notices within the preceding 12 months, the material or persistent breach identified in such Warning Notices remains unremedied by the User; and
			<u>(b)</u>	such breach is not a Payment Default or Insolvency Default, then
				o may give notice of such breach to the User ault Notice).
		<u>6.2</u>	Withir must:	n fourteen (14) Days of such notice the User
			<u>(a)</u>	where the breach is reasonably capable of remedy within such period of fourteen (14) Days, remedy the breach in all material respects;
			<u>(b)</u>	where the breach is capable of remedy but not reasonably within fourteen (14) Days, provide to T&SCo a remediation plan setting out the steps to be taken by the User and the timetable for taking such steps for the remedy of the breach as soon as is reasonably practicable;
			<u>(c)</u>	where the breach is not capable of remedy, provide a remediation plan setting out:
				(i) the steps to be taken by the User and the

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>	
			timetable for taking such steps to mitigate the impact of the breach so far as is reasonably practicable; and (ii) the steps to be taken to prevent the recurrence or re-occurrence of the relevant breach so far as is reasonably practicable.
			the purposes of paragraphs 6.1 and 6.2 the owing breaches are excluded:
		<u>(a)</u>	a breach which results from a breach by T&SCo of the Code or an Ancillary Agreement; or
		<u>(b)</u>	a breach other than a wilful breach of a provision of the Code where the Code specifically provides some other remedy for such breach and such other remedy may reasonably be considered to be adequate in the circumstances.
<u>Z.</u>	General Default		ieneral Default occurs when a Default Notice has n issued and:
		<u>(a)</u>	paragraph 6.2(a) applies and the breach remains unremedied in any material respect after the expiry of seven (7) Days after a further notice by T&SCo to the User to the effect that the User has not complied with paragraph 6.2(a); or
		<u>(b)</u>	(i) remedy the breach in all material respects with all reasonable diligence and so far as reasonably practicable in accordance with the remediation plan provided under 6.2(b) or a revised remediation plan pursuant to paragraph 7.1(b)(ii) below; or
			(ii) where notwithstanding the reasonable diligence of the User it is not reasonably practicable for the User to remedy the breach in accordance with that remediation plan, provide to T&SCo a revised remediation plan,
			and such failure remains unremedied in any material respect after the expiry of seven (7) Days after a further notice by T&SCo to the User to the effect that the User has not complied with this paragraph 7.1(b);
		<u>(c)</u>	paragraph 6.2(c) applies and:

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
		<u>(i)</u>	the User does not :
			(A) comply in all material respects with the remediation plan provided under 6.2(c) or a revised remediation plan pursuant to paragraph below; or
			(B) where notwithstanding the reasonable diligence of the User it is not reasonably practicable for the User to comply in all material respects with that remediation plan, provide to T&SCo a revised remediation plan,
			and such failure remains unremedied in any material respect after the expiry of seven (7) Days after a further notice by T&SCo to the User to the effect that the User has not complied with this paragraph 7.1(c); or
		<u>(ii)</u>	at any time within the period of twelve (12) months following T&SCo's Default Notice, there occurs a further material breach by the User of the same provision of the Code; and T&SCo has given a notice of such further breach to the User and a period of seven (7) Days has expired following such notice.
<u>8.</u>	Insolvency Default	the provision	ncy Default occurs, save if and to the extent ons of section 233B of the Insolvency Act when a User:
		Section 1986, volum it und comp than	able to pay its debts (within the meaning of on 123(1) or (2) of the Insolvency Act, but subject to paragraph 8.2, or any tary arrangement is proposed in relation to ler Section 1 of that Act or it enters into any osition or scheme of arrangement (other for the purpose of a bona fide solvent struction or amalgamation); or
		<u>admir</u> <u>Sectio</u> whole	receiver (which expression shall include an nistrative receiver within the meaning of on 29 of the Insolvency Act 1986) of the e or any material part of its assets or taking appointed; or
			n administration order under Section 8 of nsolvency Act 1986 made in relation to it;
		(d) passe	es any resolution for winding-up (other than

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>
		for the purpose of a bona fide solvent reconstruction or amalgamation); or
		(e) <u>becomes subject to an order by the High Court</u> for winding-up; or
		(f) becomes subject to a bankruptcy order; or
		(g) becomes subject to an event made in a jurisdiction outside England and Wales, equivalent or analogous to any one or more of those events listed in paragraphs 8.1(a) to 8.1(f) above.
		8.2 For the purposes of paragraph 8.1(a), Section 123(1)(a) of the Insolvency Act 1986 shall have effect as if for '£750' there was substituted £10,000, and the User shall not be deemed to be unable to pay its debts for the purposes of that paragraph if any such demand as is mentioned in the said Section is being contested in good faith by the User with recourse to all appropriate measures and procedures.
<u>9.</u>	Payment Default	9.1 A Payment Default occurs where in relation to any amount (or amounts in aggregate) of not less than £10,000 which has become due for payment by the User under the Code:
		(a) the T&SCo has issued a notice of demand for payment of the outstanding amount (a "Late Payment Notice"); and
		(b) the User has not paid such amount in full by the 30th Day after the date of the Late Payment Notice.
<u>10.</u>	Right to suspend	10.1 Without prejudice to any other rights of T&SCo under the Code, during any period in which a Default Notice or Late Payment Notice has been issued and such breach of the Code or failure to pay is subsisting, or during any period while an Insolvency Default is subsisting, T&SCo shall be entitled to reject or refuse to accept all or any of the following by the relevant User:
		(a) <u>delivery of carbon dioxide at the User's Delivery</u> Point; or
		(b) an application for Registered Capacity or increased Registered Capacity at any Delivery Point under Section E (network use and capacity).
		10.2 A User shall remain liable to pay Capacity Charges and Network Charges during any period in which paragraph

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
			9.1 applies.
11.	Default Termination	11.1	Upon the occurrence of a User Default, T&SCo may give notice (" Termination Notice ") to the User to the effect that the User shall cease to be a User of or in relation to the T&S Network with effect from the date (which may be any date on or after the date on which the notice is given) specified in the notice.
		<u>11.2</u>	Where T&SCo gives a Termination Notice to a User, with effect from the date specified in the notice, the User will cease to be a User of the T&S Network and paragraph 13.2 shall apply.
		<u>11.3</u>	The giving of a Termination Notice and the application of paragraph 11.2 shall not affect the rights and obligations of T&SCo and the User under the Code or any Ancillary Agreement (including rights and obligations in respect of the User Default, and in respect of amounts including interest payable by either Party, and rights and obligations arising pursuant to any provision of the Code in respect of the User's ceasing to be a User) accrued up to the date referred to in paragraph 11.2, which shall continue to be enforceable notwithstanding that paragraph.
<u>12.</u>	<u>User discontinuation</u>	12.1	A User may by giving notice ("Discontinuance Notice") to T&SCo apply to cease to be a User of or in relation to the T&SCo Network:
			(a) where it no longer intends to hold Registered Capacity;
			(b) while a Construction Longstop Default affecting the User is subsisting in respect of a failure of T&SCo to complete the relevant T&SCo Works;
			where a Capacity Constraint Default affecting the User is subsisting in respect of Capacity Constraint.
			Note: the definition of "Capacity Constraint Default" is still being developed, but it is intended to reflect a prolonged outage.
		<u>12.2</u>	A User may not cease to be a User under this paragraph 12 until such time as:
			(a) where paragraph 12.1(a) applies, the User's Registered Capacity has expired;
			(b) subject to paragraph 13.3(a), all amounts payable or (other than in respect of any recurrent charge becoming payable by reason only of the lapse of time after the date on which the last of the other requirements of this

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>
		paragraph 12.2 is satisfied) which may become payable by the User to T&SCo pursuant to any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement have been paid in full; (c) any requirements under any Ancillary Agreement in respect of termination have been complied with; and
		(d) any outstanding breach, being a breach capable of remedy and of which T&SCo has given notice to the User, by the User of any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement shall have been remedied.
		Where a User has given notice under paragraph 12.1, the User and T&SCo shall remain bound by the Code and any Ancillary Agreement to which the User is party until the requirements of paragraph 12.2 are satisfied;
		Where a User has given notice under paragraph 12.1 after the satisfaction of the last of the requirements of paragraph 12.2 to be satisfied:
		(a) with effect from the 5th Business Day following such satisfaction, the User will cease to be a User;
		(b) without prejudice to paragraph 12.5, T&SCo will as soon as reasonably practicable (and where possible before such date) inform the User of the date on which it ceases to be a User under paragraph (a).
		Notwithstanding paragraph 12.3, T&SCo or (as the case may be) the User shall remain liable, subject to and in accordance with the Code, to the other and after the User Discontinuance Date:
		(a) for any amount which was or becomes payable under the Code or any Ancillary Agreement in respect of any period before the User Discontinuance Date; and
		(b) in respect of any outstanding breach of any provision of the Code or any Ancillary Agreement where such breach was not (for the purposes of paragraph 12.2(d)) capable of remedy or (notwithstanding that paragraph) was capable of remedy but was not remedied.
<u>13.</u>	Discontinuing Users and termination	A User may cease to be a User of or in relation to a T&S Network pursuant to paragraph 11 or 12 and for the purposes of the Code a "Discontinuing User" is a User who so ceases to be a User and the "User Discontinuance Date" is the date with effect from

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>	
			which (in accordance with paragraph 11 or 12) a Discontinuing User ceases to be a User. Upon a User's ceasing to be a User: (a) subject to any provision of the Code expressed to survive termination and to paragraph 11.3, the Code Agreement shall cease to bind the Discontinuing User and (as respects the Discontinuing User) the T&SCo (b) each Ancillary Agreement to which a Discontinuing User is party shall, unless
			otherwise provided in such Ancillary Agreement, terminate as respects that User (but without prejudice to the continuance of that Agreement as respects any other User(s) party thereto) with effect from the User Discontinuance Date.
		<u>13.3</u>	A Discontinuing User's Registered Capacity shall not be reduced or cancelled (and the User will remain liable for payment of Capacity Charges in respect thereof but may elect to make prepayment thereof) other than:
			(a) Long-term Registered Network Capacity after the date which is three years from the Discontinuance Date; (b) Registered Capacity from the Discontinuance
			Date, where a Discontinuance Notice has been issued under paragraph 12.1(b) or 0;or (c) by agreement with the T&SCo.
		<u>13.4</u>	A Discontinuing User will remain liable for payment of Network Charges for the period in which it is liable for Capacity Charges in accordance with paragraph 13.3.
		<u>13.5</u>	Following the User Discontinuance Date, each party shall bear responsibility for: (a) the safe decommissioning of the connection assets owned by that party; and
			(b) all decommissioning costs and liabilities (including any such liabilities arising under relevant legal requirements) associated with the decommissioning of such assets.
			based on the boundaries of ownership set out in the Connection Agreement between the T&SCo and the Discontinuing User.
<u>14.</u>	Governing law	<u>14.1</u>	The Code, the Code Agreement, every Code Accession Agreement and every Ancillary Agreement, and any dispute, controversy, proceedings or claim of whatever

<u>No</u>	Subject	<u>Terms</u>	
			nature arising out of or in any way relating to the Code, the Code Agreement, any Code Accession Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement or their formation (including any non-contractual disputes or claims), shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law.
<u>15.</u>	Jurisdiction	<u>15.1</u>	Subject to the provisions providing for mediation and expert determination in Section B (Governance), all the Parties irrevocably agree that the courts of England shall have exclusive jurisdiction to hear, settle and/or determine any dispute, controversy or claim (including any non-contractual dispute, controversy or claim) arising out of or in connection with the Code, the Code Agreement, any Code Accession Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement, including any question regarding its existence, validity, formation or termination. For these purposes, each Party irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of the English courts.
<u>16.</u>	Third party rights	<u>16.1</u>	Unless expressly provided otherwise (including under paragraph 7.4 of Section B), no term of any Code Document is intended to be enforceable by third parties and the operation of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 is hereby excluded. Where an obligation is expressly stated to be enforceable by a third party, the consent of that third party will not be required to rescind or vary the relevant term.
<u>17.</u>	Severance	<u>17.1</u>	If any provision of this Code, the Code Agreement, any of the Code Accession Agreements or any of the Ancillary Agreements (the "Code Documents") is or becomes (whether or not pursuant to any judgment or otherwise) invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under the law of any jurisdiction: (a) the validity, legality and enforceability under the law of that jurisdiction of any other provision; and (b) the validity, legality and enforceability under the law of any other jurisdiction of that or any other provision, shall not be affected or impaired in any way thereby.
		<u>17.2</u>	If any provision of any Code Document shall be held to be void or declared illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever, such provision shall be divisible from the Code Document and shall be deemed to be deleted from the Code Document and the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected.
<u>18.</u>	Entire agreement	<u>18.1</u>	Each of the Code Documents represents the entire understanding, and constitute the whole agreement of

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
			the Parties in relation to their subject matter and supersede any previous agreement between the Parties with respect thereto and, to the fullest extent practicable under the relevant law, and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, exclude any warranty, condition or other undertaking implied at law or by custom.
<u>19.</u>	Waiver	<u>19.1</u>	A waiver of any term, provision or condition of, or consent granted under, any Code Document shall be effective only if given in writing and signed by the waiving or consenting party and then only in the instance and for the purpose for which it is given.
		<u>19.2</u>	No failure or delay on the part of any party in exercising any right, power or privilege under any Code Document shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege.
		<u>19.3</u>	No breach of any provision of any Code Document shall be waived or discharged except with the express written consent of the parties.
		<u>19.4</u>	The rights and remedies herein provided are cumulative with and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.
<u>20.</u>	<u>Language</u>	20.1	Every communication or notice to be given by one Party to another under any Code Document shall be in the English language.
<u>21.</u>	Assignment	<u>21.1</u>	Neither Party shall assign its rights and obligations under this Code except in accordance with the provisions of clauses 20.2 and 20.3.
		21.2	The User shall only be entitled to assign its rights and obligations under Code to a third party where:
			(a) the User assigns the ownership and operation of the User Facility to the third party;
			(b) the User has obtained the prior written consent of T&SCo, which shall not be unreasonably withheld; and
			(c) the third party becomes bound by the Code by entering into a Code Accession Agreement.
		<u>21.3</u>	T&SCo shall only be entitled to assign its rights and obligations under this Code to a third party where:
			(a) T&SCo assigns the ownership and operation of

CCS Network Code - Heads of Terms

Section J: $\frac{\text{glossary}}{\text{General}}$

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>	
			the T&S Network to a third party holding a Licence; and
		<u>(b)</u>	the third party becomes bound by the Code by entering into a Code Accession Agreement.

SECTION K: GLOSSARY

In this Code, the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings, unless the context otherwise requires:

Term	Meaning
Act	means the [Energy Act].
Adjustment Period	has the meaning given in paragraph 7.1 of Section F (network design and specification)
Accession Agreement	means an agreement in the form set out in Exhibit A pursuant- to a which a User accedes to the Code Agreement. Note: this will be a short-form standard accession agreement.
Act	Note : this will refer to the legislation which provides for the grant of a licence to each T&SCo, authorising T&SCo to operate the T&S Network.
Affected User	means a User likely to be affected by Programmed Maintenance or Reactive Maintenance.
Allowed Onshore Capacity Revenue	means has the rate determined meaning given in accordance with paragraph 3.1(a) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Allowed Onshore Revenue	has the meaning given in paragraph 4.1(a) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Allowed Offshore Capacity Revenue	means has the rate determined meaning given in in accordance with paragraph 3.13.2(a) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Allowed Offshore Revenue	has the meaning given in paragraph 4.6(a) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Allowed Revenue	means the amount that T&SCo is entitled to recover in accordance with its Licence, as defined in the Licence.
Ancillary Agreements	means÷
	◆the Construction Agreement ; and
	• the Connection Agreement.
	Note: the range of Ancillary Agreements may be expanded to the extent that the process of developing the Code identifies the need for further agreements. However, the general intent is to minimise the number of separate documents/agreements required.
Annual Forecast	has the meaning given in paragraphs 5.8 and 5.9 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Annual Maintenance Meeting	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{10.410.5(b)}{10.5(b)}$ of Section E (Network use and capacity).

Term	Meaning
Annual Network Capacity	means Network Capacity allocated by T&SCo on an annual basis for a particular Charging Year.
<u>Appeal</u>	means an appeal made by an Appealing Party to the Modification Panel of a determination by the Modification Panel under paragraph [2.69] of Section B (Governance) in respect of a Self-Governance Modification Proposal;
Annual NominationAppealing Party	has the meaning given in paragraph 5.8 of Section E (Network- use and capacity). Means in relation to an Appeal or an Authority Appeal, a User, T&SCo or Third Party Participant making such appeal.
Applicable Interest Rate	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.5 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Appointment Period	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.31 of Section B (Governance).
Authority	means the economic regulator appointed under section [x] of the Act.
Authority Appeal	means an appeal to the Authority made by the Appealing Party under paragraph 3.59 of Section B (Governance).
Backstop Lead Time	means where the Authority Decision Date is later than the last Proposed Authority Decision Date, the proposed period of time (commencing on the Authority Decision Date) required to enable the Modification to be implemented.
Billing Period	means a calendar month.
Breach Notice	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.1 of Section $\[\frac{1}{2} \]$ (General).
Budget Forecast	means a budget forecast that meets the requirements of paragraph $\frac{1.20}{1.18}$ of Section B (Governance)
Capacity Application WindowApplicant	has the meaning given in paragraph 3.3 of Section E (<i>Network use and capacity</i>).
Capacity Charges	means the Onshore Capacity Charge and/or the Offshore Capacity Charge.
Capacity Constraint	has the meaning given to that term in paragraph 11.1 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Capacity Constraint Default	Note : this definition is still being developed, but it is intended to reflect a prolonged outage.
Capacity Offer	has the meaning given in paragraph 8.2 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Carbon Dioxide Specifications	has the meaning given in paragraph 2.2 of Section F (<i>Network design and specification</i>).

Term	Meaning
CCS Network Code or Code	means this CCS Network Code, including all Uniform Provisions and Specific Provisions, as may be applicable.
CCUS Cluster Sequencing Process	means the programme(s) by that name implemented by the UK Government to select:
	(a) prospective T&S Networks and prospective Users of those T&S Networks; and/or
	(b) prospective or existing Users for allocation of Network Capacity in existing or prospective T&S Networks.
CDS	has the meaning given in paragraph 9.1 of Section I (Data).
CDS Accession Agreement	means an agreement in the form set out in Exhibit D pursuant to which a T&SCo accedes to the CDS Contract.
	Note: this will be a short-form standard accession agreement
CDS Contract	has the meaning given in paragraph 9.1 of Section I (Data).
CDS Data Dispute	has the meaning given in paragraph 9.6 of Section I (Data).
CCS Network DataCDS Terms of Reference	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{2.39.3}{0.3}$ of Section I ($\frac{\text{General}}{0.3}$).
Charges	means each of the charges listed in paragraph 1.3 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Charges Statement	means the statement to be published in accordance with paragraph 6 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Charging Methodology	means the methodology for determining the Charges in accordance with Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Charging Year	means the period from 1 April in any year until and including 31 March in the following year.
Code Accession Agreement	means an agreement in the form set out in Exhibit A pursuant to a which a User accedes to the Code Agreement.
	Note: this will be a short-form standard accession agreement.
Code Agreement	means the agreement which makes the Code binding on a T&Sco or a User (in the form set out as an exhibit to the <u>Code</u> Accession Agreement).
Code Document	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{23.1}{17.1}$ of Section $\frac{1}{2}$ (General).
Code Implementation Date	means the effective date of the Code Agreement (specified in the Code Agreement) when the CCS Network Code is given legal effect.
Commercial Operations	has the meaning given in T&SCo's Licence.

Term	Meaning
<u>Date</u>	
Communication	Note : to be developed – this will include different categories of communications under the Code, such as nominations, curtailment notices, etc.
Competent Authority	means the Authority, or any local, national or supra-national agency, authority, department, inspectorate, minister, official, court, tribunal or public or statutory person (whether autonomous or not) of the United Kingdom (or the government thereof) which has jurisdiction over the T&SCo or a User or the subject matter of the Code.
Confirmed Nominated Quantity	has the meaning given in paragraph 6.11 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Connection Agreement	means an agreement between a T&SCo and a User in the form set out in Exhibit C. Note: in the interests of consistency it is expected that T&SCos and Users will enter into a Connection Agreement in a prescribed form, save that except for some provisions may need to differ based on the type of User_specific details.
Connection Application	has the meaning given to that term in paragraph 6.1 of Section C (Connection).
Connection Offer	means a connection offer that complies with the requirements of paragraph 9.3 of Section C (Connection), in a written format determined by T&SCo.
Constrained Capacity Optimisation Principles	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.7 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Constrained Registered Capacity	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.10 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Constrained User	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.3(a) of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Construction Agreement	means an agreement between a T&SCo and a User in the form set out in Exhibit B. Note: in the interests of consistency it is expected that T&SCosScos and Users will enter into a Construction Agreement in a prescribed form, save that except for some provisions may need to differ based on the type of User-specific details.
Construction Longstop Default	means a failure by T&SCo to complete the T&SCo Works or the User to complete the User Works by the applicable longstop-dateLongstop Date (as extended in accordance with the Construction Agreement) in accordance with paragraph [14]13 of the Construction Agreement.
Consultation	means the consultation process described in paragraph

Term	Meaning
	2.123.34 and 2.143.35 of Section B (governanceGovernance).
Conventional Notice	means a notice which complies with the general requirements of the notice provisions in the Code. has the meaning given in paragraph 1.2 of Section J (General).
Core Industrial Procedures	means:
	(a) Emergency Procedure;
	(b) Maintenance Procedure (Planned and Unplanned);
	(c) Operational Safety Procedure;
	Note: It is expected that T&SCos will add to this list other industrial procedures which should be developed prior to the Code Implementation Date and be set out in the Code on Day 1
	and which will apply to all Users equally
Counterparty	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{10.1}{3.1}$ of Section $\frac{1}{2}$ (General).
Credit Rating Agency	means:
	<u>(a)</u> ←Fitch Ratings,
	(b) Moody's Investment Service and Standard; and/or
	(c) Poor's Rating Group and any of their subsidiaries.
Daily Curtailed Nomination	has the meaning given in paragraph 5.106.13 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Daily Nomination	has the meaning given in paragraphs 6.2 and 6.4 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Daily Quantity	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.5 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Day	means the period from 00:00 hours on one day until 11:59 on the following day.
Data Transfer Procedures	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{3.1}{6.1}$ of Section I $(\frac{General}{Data})$.
Default Notice	has the meaning given in paragraph 6.1 of Section J (General).
Delivery Point	means the point of connection between a User Facility and the T&S Network at which point a User will deliver carbon dioxide into the T&S Network.
Delivery Point Size	means the size of the Delivery Point to which the User Facility is- connected, as set out in the Connection Agreement, expressed-

Term	Meaning
	in tCO ₂ /hour. has the meaning given in paragraph 1.11 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Deposit Deed	means an agreement that is Enforceable and in such form as provided to the User from time to time by T&SCo enabling the deposit of cash as security.
Depreciation	has the meaning given in the Licence.
<u>Deselected</u>	means that an Eligible Applicant, having first been Selected, has been advised by the Secretary of State through the Selection Process that it is no longer eligible for: (a) award of an Emitter Revenue Support Contract;
	or (b) connection to a T&S Network; or
	(c) modification of its existing Delivery Point.
Directive	means any present or future directive, request, requirement, instruction, code of practice, direction or rule of any Competent Authority (but only, if not having the force of law, if it is reasonable in all the circumstances for it to be treated as though it had legal force), and any modification, extension or replacement thereof.
Disclosing Party	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{7.5}{3.5}$ of Section I ($\frac{GeneralData}{1}$).
Discontinuance Notice	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{18}{13.1}$ of Section $\frac{1}{2}$ (General).
Discontinuing User	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{19}{13.1}$ of Section $\frac{1}{10}$ (General).
Draft Statement of Expenses	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.23 of Section B (Governance).
Eligible Applicant	has the meaning given to that term in paragraph 5.1 of Section C (Connection).
Emergency	means a situation where T&SCo in its judgment considers that action must be taken without delay to:
	(a) avert or reduce danger to life or property; or
	(b) secure the safety of the T&S Network or a part of the T&S Network or the safe transportation of carbon dioxide by it or reducing the risk to it.
Emitter Revenue Support Contract	means a revenue support contract granted to an emitter pursuant to Part 2 of the [Act] or a Contract for Difference granted to an emitter pursuant to Chapter 2 of Part 2 of the Energy Act 2013.

Term	Meaning
Enforceable	means T&SCo (acting reasonably) is satisfied that the instrument of security or surety is legally enforceable and in this respect, where surety is provided by a company registered outside of England and Wales, the country of residence of such company must have a sovereign credit rating of a Qualifying Company (where such ratings conflict, the lower of the ratings will be used) and the User shall at its own expense provides such legal opinion as the T&SCo may reasonably require.
Entry Provisions	has the meaning given in paragraph 2.1 of Section F (Network design and specification).
ETS Liabilities	means any costs or liabilities of a Party relating to that Party's liabilities or obligations under the UK Emissions Trading Scheme established under the Greenhouse Gas Emissions Trading Scheme Order 2020.
Expenses Dispute Notification	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.24 of Section B (Governance)
Expert Determination	means the process for determination of a dispute by Experts in accordance with paragraph 9 of Section B (<i>Governance</i>).
Fast Track Self-Governance Procedure	means that a proposal, if implemented: (a) would meet the Self-Governance Criteria; and (b) is properly a housekeeping modification required as a result of some error or factual change, including but not limited to: (i) updating names or addresses listed in the uniform network code; (ii) correcting minor typographical errors; (iii) correcting formatting and consistency errors, such as paragraph numbering; or updating out of date references to other documents or paragraphs.
Final Confirmed Nominated Quantity	Has the meaning given in paragraph 6.22 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Final Statement of Expenses	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.25 of Section B (Governance)
Fixed Implementation Date	means the proposed implementation date of a Modification, such date being included in accordance with paragraph 2.4(c) of Section B and, except where the Proposal is a Self Governance Modification Proposal, paragraph 2.31(f) of Section B.
Flow Charges	means the Onshore Flow Charge and/or the Offshore Flow

Term	Meaning
	Charge.
Flow Meter	Note: this definition is to be developed on the basis of the Measurement Requirements.
Flow Meter Error	means a Measurement Equipment Error relating to the Flow Meter.
Flow Meter Adjustment	means a Measurement Adjustment made in accordance with paragraph 7.1 or paragraph 7.2 of Section F (Network design and specification).
Flow Rate	means the total instantaneous flow rate, in the form of carbon dioxide, expressed in tCO ₂ /hour, that is being delivered at the Delivery Point.
Forecasting Pro-Forma	means the pro-forma document issued by T&SCo identifying the information to be provided by Users in accordance with paragraph 5.2 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
<u>Forecast</u>	has the meaning in paragraph 5.2 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
General Default	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{13.17.1}{}$ of Section $\frac{1}{2}$ (General).
<u>Handover Date</u>	has the meaning given in T&SCo's Licence.
<u>Hour</u>	means a period of 60 minutes, with the first Hour of each Day starting at 00:00 hours.
Implementation Date	means the date upon which an Industrial Procedure is to be implemented.
Independent Verifier	has the meaning given in paragraph 10.1 of Section I (Data).
Independent Verifier Appointment	has the meaning given in paragraph 10.1 of Section I (Data).
Independent Verifier Terms of Reference	has the meaning given in paragraph 10.2 of Section I (Data).
Industrial Procedures	means:
	(a) has the Core meaning given in paragraph 3.1 of Section H (Industrial Procedures; and
	(b) the Supplementary Industrial Procedures.
<u>Initial Offer</u>	means an initial offer that complies with the requirements of paragraph 9.2 of Section C (Connection), in a written format determined by T&SCo.
Initial Users <u>User</u>	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.1(a) of Section C (Connection).means a User or prospective User who was

Term	Meaning
	Selected through the Track-1 Cluster Sequencing Process and:
	(a) <u>became a User on or before the Code</u> <u>Implementation Date; or</u>
	(b) as at the Code Implementation Date, has not yet become a User, but is in the process of reaching financial investment decision and has already applied to connect to a T&S Network, and has not been Deselected.
Insolvency Default	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{14.1}{8.1}$ of Section $\frac{1}{2}$ (General).
Interim Period	has the meaning given in the Energy Bill.
Invoice Amount	means the amount shown as payable by the User or T&SCo in respect of that item under the relevant Invoice Document.
<u>Invoice Dispute</u>	has the meaning given in paragraph 11.1 of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Invoice Document	means an invoice document submitted by T&SCo to a User pursuant to this Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Invoice Due Date	has the meaning given in paragraph 10.2 of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Late Payment Notice	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.1 of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
LCCC	means the Low Carbon Contracts Company or any successor or equivalent body.
Local Requirements	has the meaning given in paragraph 2.9 of Section F (Network design and specification).
Legal Requirement	means any Act of Parliament, regulation, licence or Directive of a Competent Authority.
Letter of Credit	means an unconditional irrevocable standby letter of credit in such form as reasonably provided to the User from time to time by T&SCo from such bank as T&SCo may approve, (provided that payment may be made at a United Kingdom branch of such issuing bank) with a long-term debt rating of not less than that of a Qualifying Company (where such ratings conflict, the lower of the ratings will be used).
Licence	means the licence granted to each T&SCo under section [x] of the Act.
Listed Expert	has the meaning given to that term in paragraph 9.2 of Section B (<i>Governance</i>).
<u>Local Requirements</u>	has the meaning given in paragraph 2.8 of Section F (Network

Term	Meaning
	design and specification).
Long-term Network Capacity	means Network Capacity allocated by T&SCo for a period exceeding one year.
Maintenance Programme	the programme of planned maintenance of the T&S Network, containing in relation to the relevant Planning Period the information specified in paragraph 10.2 of Section E (<i>Network use and capacity</i>).
<u>Materially</u>	has the meaning given in paragraph 6.26 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Maximum Eligible Ramp Capacity Rate	means the maximum Network Capacityunconstrained Ramp Rate that ais technically achievable by the User could apply for Facility, as specified set out in its the User's Connection Agreement.
Measurement Adjustment	means any action or adjustment which is required to correct any Measurement Equipment Error.
Measurement Data	has the meaning given to in 2.25.2 of Section I (General Data).
Measurement Equipment	has the meaning given in paragraph 4.1 of Section F (Network design and specification).
Measurement Equipment Error	means where the Measurement Equipment (or any part of it) is or has been:
	(a) registering erroneously; or (b) not functioning in accordance with the Measurement Requirements or otherwise in accordance with Section F. (Network design and specification).
Measurement Requirements	has the meaning given in paragraph 2.5 of Section F (Network design and specification).
Member	means any individual for the time being appointed to the Modification Panel.
Minimum Eligible Ramp Gapacity Rate	means the minimum Network Capacityunconstrained Ramp Rate that ais technically achievable by the User could apply for Facility, as specified set out in its the User's Connection Agreement.
Minimum Turndown Rate	means the User's Flow Rate, in tCO ₂ /hour (as set out in the User's Connection Agreement), when the User is operating the User Facility at its lowest operational level, to represent the lowest amount of network capacity that the User can make use of when its Registered Capacity is constrained in accordance with Section E of the Code.
Modification	means any modification of the CCS Network Code made

Term	Meaning
	pursuant to the Modification Rules.
Modification Panel	means the panel comprised in accordance with paragraph 1.2 of Section B (<i>Governance</i>) which is to perform the functions described in paragraph 1 of Section B (<i>Governance</i>).
Modification Procedures	means the provisions relating to Modifications and Modification Proposals set out in paragraphs 1 and 2 to 7 of Section B (governance and, as the context may require, any of those provisions.
Modification Proposal	means a proposal for a Modification which meets the requirements of the Code.
Modification Report	means a draft, final or amended final report prepared in accordance with paragraphs $\frac{2.12}{3.40}$ to $\frac{2.17}{3.43}$ of Section B (Governance).
Modification Rules	means the rules set out in paragraphs 1 and 2 to 7 of Section B (Governance).
[Monthly Nomination] Forecast	fhas the meaning given in paragraph 5.9 paragraphs 5.12 and 5.13 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Most Restricted Communal Element	has the meaning given by reference to the following concepts:
	(a) "Most Restricted", which means the part of the T&S Network (or part of the T&S Network) through which the lowest mass of carbon dioxide can instantaneously flow, determined by the lower of any physical or regulatory limits; and
	(b) "Communal Element", which refers to any part of the T&S Network (or part of the T&S Network) that all Users' carbon dioxide must flow through, excluding any contingent infrastructure.
Network Capacity	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.3 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Network Charges	means the Onshore Network Charge and/or the Offshore Network Charge.
Network Expansion Works	means works for the expansion, reinforcement or extension of a T&S Network, including
	(a) works in relation to existing parts of a T&S Network; and
	(b) works required to connect a User or a prospective User to the T&S Network,
	(including taking any part of a T&S Network out of service, whether on a provisional or permanent basis) to enable such

Term	Meaning
	works to be carried out.
Network Portal Service Contract Network Portal Terms of Reference	has the meaning given in paragraph 11.1 of Section I (<i>Data</i>). has the meaning given in paragraph 11.2 of Section I (<i>Data</i>).
Nominated Quantity	has the meaning given in paragraph 5.36.4(d) of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Nomination	means a nomination by a User in respect of a quantity of carbon dioxide to be delivered to the T&S Network on a Day.
Nomination Close Time	means [x]. Note: this will be developed as part of the further development of the nominations process. has the meaning given in paragraph 6.2 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Nominations Non-conformity Notice	has the meaning given in paragraph 6.24 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Non-Delivery Notice	Has the meaning given in paragraph 25(a) of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Obligated Network Capacity	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.5 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Offshore Capacity Charge	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.6(a)(ii) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Offshore Capacity Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 3.2 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Offshore Flow Charge	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.4(a)(ii) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Offshore Flow Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 2.2 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Offshore Mutualised Network Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 4.7 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Offshore Network Charge	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.10(a)(ii) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Offshore Network Charge Cap	has the meaning given in paragraph 4.8 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Offshore Network Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 4.5 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Offshore Pipeline Infrastructure	means that part of the T&S Network which is offshore, including the pipelines and related infrastructure from the pig trap at the Onshore Transportation System to the pig trap at the inlet to

Term	Meaning
	the Storage Complex, but excluding the Storage Complex and including the Terminal.
Offshore Proportionate Network Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 4.6 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Offshore Transportation and Storage System	means the Offshore Pipeline Infrastructure and any Storage Complex.
Offshore User	means a User with a Delivery Point which connects to the T&S Network at the Offshore Transportation and Storage System.
Onshore Capacity Charge	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.6(a)(i) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Onshore Capacity Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 3.1 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Onshore Flow Charge	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.4(a)(i) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Onshore Flow Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 2.1 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Onshore Mutualised Network Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 4.3 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Onshore Network Charge	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.10(a)(i) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Onshore Network Charges Cap	has the meaning given in paragraph 4.4 of Section H (charges, invoicing and payment).
Onshore Network Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 4.1 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Onshore Proportionate Network Charge Rate	means the rate determined in accordance with paragraph 4.2 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Onshore Transportation System	means that part of the T&S Network which is located onshore, including the pipelines and related infrastructure from the emitter(s) boundary fence to the pipeline entry pig trap at the entry to the Terminal, but excluding any part of the T&S Network which constitutes the Offshore Transportation and Storage System.
Onshore User	means a User with a Delivery Point which connects to the T&S Network at the Onshore Transportation System, including any User with an emergency shutdown valve upstream of any high pressure compression or pumping inlet header at the Terminal.
Panel Chairperson	means the chairperson of the Modification Panel, appointed under paragraph 1.3 of Section B (<i>Governance</i>).
Panel Majority	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{1.17}{1.47}$ of Section B

Term	Meaning
	(Governance).
Payment Default	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{159.1}{}$ of Section $\frac{1}{1}$ (General).
Persistently	has the meaning given in paragraph 6.26 of Section E (<i>Network</i> use and capacity).
Planning Period	means a period of five (5) Charging Years commencing on 1 April.
Preference Notice	has the meaning given in paragraph 9.9 of Section B (Governance).
Preference Number	has the meaning given in paragraph 9.9 of Section B (Governance).
Processed Flow Meter Data Statement	has the meaning given in paragraph 9.2 of Section I (Data).
Programmed Maintenance	means maintenance performed in accordance with the prevailing Maintenance Programme.
Proposer	means the person that submitted a Modification Proposal.
Proposed Authority Decision Date	means the proposed date by which the Authority shall give notice to the Secretary in accordance with paragraph 2.46(b) of its determination to implement the Modification, such date being included in accordance with paragraph 2.4(c)(ii) and, except where the Proposal is a Self Governance Modification Proposal, paragraph 2.42(g)(ii).
Proposed Industrial Procedure	has the meaning given in paragraph 5.1 of Section G (<i>Industrial procedures</i>).
Proposing Party	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.1 of Section I (Data).
Pro-rata Reduction	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.4 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Prospective T&SCo	means a T&SCo who:
	(a) has been selected through the CCUS Cluster Sequencing Process (or another Selection Process) to build and operate a new T&S Network; and
	(b) will become a party to the Code upon being awarded a Licence and acceding to the Code Agreement.
Protected Information	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{7.33}{2}$ of Section I ($\frac{GeneralData}{2}$).
Qualifying Company	means:

Term	Meaning
	(a) —in the case of a company registered in England and Wales a public or private company within the meaning of section 1(3) of the Companies Act 1985 with a long-term debt rating of [at least A] provided by a Credit Rating Agency (where such ratings conflict, the lower of the ratings will be used); or
	(b) •-in the case of an entity registered outside of England and Wales, such equivalent entity to (i) above that is acceptable to the TransporterT&SCo, acting reasonably.
Ramp Rate	means the rate (expressed in tCO ₂ /hour per minute) at which the User is able to increase or decrease its Flow Rate.
Reactive Maintenance	means any maintenance which is not Programmed Maintenance but which T&SCo considers, acting as a Reasonable and Prudent Operator, needs to be scheduled before the next update to the Maintenance Programme to avoid an Emergency or Capacity Constraints of greater magnitude than the Capacity Constraints caused by the carrying out of the maintenance itself.
Reasonable and Prudent Operator	means a person seeking, in good faith, to perform its contractual obligations and, in so doing and in the general conduct of its undertaking, exercising that degree of skill, diligence, prudence and foresight which would reasonably and ordinarily be expected from a skilled and experienced operator complying with all applicable Legal Requirements engaged in the same type of undertaking in similar circumstances and conditions.
Reduced Capacity	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.4 and 12.7 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Registered Capacity	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.6 of Section E (<i>Network use and capacity</i>).
Registered Long-term Network Capacity	means Long-term Network Capacity that is registered as held by a User.
Regulatory Requirements	means various laws, regulations, permits and licences relating to the operation of the T&S Network, as well as orders and directions issued by relevant regulators under these instruments, including (but not limited to) the storage permit held by T&ScoSCo.
Relevant Objectives	has the meaning given in the Licence.
Renominated Constrained Quantity	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.11(c) of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Renomination	Has the meaning given in paragraph 6.14 of Section E (Network use and capacity).

Term	Meaning
Required Security	has the meaning given in paragraph 7.2 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Resource Plan	means a plan satisfying the requirements of paragraph $\frac{1.19}{1.18}$ of Section B (Governance)
Resource Plan and Budget Forecast	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.18 of Section B (Governance)
Re-use Meter	means any additional Flow Meter required to measure the flow of carbon dioxide being delivered to a User at the User's Re-use Delivery Point.
Re-use Purpose	means the use of carbon dioxide by the User at the User Facility for the re-pressurisation of an LP compressor during a plant start up sequence.
Re-use Service	has the meaning given in paragraph 8.1 of Section F (Network design and specification).
Re-use Service Infrastructure	means the infrastructure and equipment required to allow the Re-use Service to be offered to the User, including any additional pipework, valves, compressors and Re-use Meters.
Re-use Service Infrastructure Works	means all the work required for the provision of the Re-use Service, including the installation of the Re-use Service Infrastructure, but not including any Works (as that term is defined in the Construction Agreement) that are required to connect the User Facility to the T&S Network.
Revised Terms of Reference	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.6 of Section I (Data).
Rolling Quarterly Forecast	has the meaning given in paragraphs 5.10 and 5.11 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Secretary	means the individual appointed under paragraph 1.15 of Section B (<i>Governance</i>).
Secretary Expenditure	means the costs and expenditure incurred by the Secretary in the carrying out of the various tasks and duties assigned to it in section B (<i>Governance</i>).
Secretary Expenses Claim	has the meaning given in paragraph 1.22 of section B (Governance).
Secretary of State	means the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. Security and Net Zero.
Security Default Notice	has the meaning given in paragraph 7.3 of Section H (<i>Charges, invoicing and payment</i>).
Selected	means that where a User or a prospective User has applied, through the Selection Process, for the potential: (a) award of an Emitter Revenue Support Contract;

Term	Meaning
	<u>or</u>
	(b) connection to a T&S Network; or
	(c) modification of its existing Delivery Point,
	that prospective User has been notified by the Secretary of State that it has been selected for the final stage of the process, subject only to any final requirements specified as part of the Selection Process, and the word "Selection" shall be construed accordingly.
Selection Process	Note: this definitions remains under review and development.
Self-Governance Criteria	means a proposal that, if implemented:
	(a) is unlikely to have a material effect on:
	(i) competition in the transportation or storage of carbon dioxide conveyed through pipes or any commercial activities connected with the transportation or storage of carbon dioxide conveyed through pipes; and
	(ii) the operation of one or more pipe-line system(s); and
	(iii) matters relating to sustainable development, safety or security of supply, or the management of market or network emergencies; and
	(iv) the Code governance procedures or the Code Modification procedures; and
	(b) is unlikely to discriminate between different classes of parties to the Code.
Self-Governance Determination Date	means the date on which the Modification Panel makes a determination whether to implement or not to implement a Self-Governance Modification Proposal.
Self-Governance	means a Modification Proposal which:
Modification Proposal	(a) the Modification Panel has determined satisfies the Self-Governance Criteria and in respect of which the Secretary has submitted to the Authority a Self-Governance Statement (which has not been rejected by the Authority by the Self-Governance Modification Proposal Determination Date); or
	(b) the Authority has determined satisfies the Self-Governance Criteria under paragraph 2.24 of Section B (<i>Governance</i>).

Term	Meaning
Self-Governance Modification Proposal Determination Date	means the proposed date on which the Modification Panel is to make a determination whether to implement or not to implement a Self-Governance Modification Proposal.
Self-Governance Statement	means a statement complying with the requirements of the Code which identifies the proposed Self-Governance Determination Date.
Significant Code Review	has the meaning given in the Standard Conditions in Part II of the Licence.
Significant Code Review Modification Proposal	 means a Modification Proposal made by: (a) the Authority in respect of a Significant Code Review; or (b) a T&SCo pursuant to a direction of the Authority which is made further to a Significant Code Review.
Significant Code Review Phase	Note : definition to be developed by reference to the Licence condition dealing with the CCS Network Code.
Significant Code Review Suspended Modification Proposal	means, unless paragraph 2.12 of Section B (Governance) applies a Modification Proposal in respect of which the application of the Modification Procedures is suspended pursuant to paragraph 2.15 of Section B (Governance) until the end of the Significant Code Review Phase.
SoS Modification Proposal	has the meaning given in paragraph 7.1 of Section B (Governance).
Specific Provisions	means the provisions of the Code which only apply to a particular T&S Network, or part of a T&S Network, as set out in the Annexures.
Standard Licence Conditions	means the standard licence conditions of the Licence.
Statement of Expenses	means the statement produced by the Secretary pursuant to paragraph 1.17 of Section B (<i>Governance</i>).
Storage Complex	has the meaning given to it in regulations in respect of the storage of carbon dioxide under the Energy Act 2008.
Supplementary Industrial Procedures Supported User	means any procedures other than Core Industrial Procedures developed in accordance with this section which address:
	(a) establishment of the T&S network; (b) routine operations;
	(c) emergencies;
	(d) safety of operations;

Term	Meaning
	(e) asset integrity; or
	(f) environment and operational efficiency of the T&S- Network as a whole,
	and which apply to all Users. User who has been awarded an Emitter Revenue Support Contract.
Surplus Available Capacity	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.5 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
T&SCo	means the holder of a Licence, who operates a T&S Network.
T&S Network	means a pipeline system for the transportation and storage of carbon dioxide, which may include the Onshore Transportation System and the Offshore Transportation and Storage System.
T&S Network Data	has the meaning given in paragraph 5.3 of Section I (Data).
T&S Network Portal	means a web portal established and maintained by T&SCo to publish and provide access to up to date information-relating to matters such as (but not limited to) Network Capacity, Capacity Constraints and Maintenance Programmes.
	Note : it is assumed that T&SCos will have the ability to maintain a portal which will facilitate various processes with Users such as capacity allocation forecasts, nominations and notifications of constraints.
T&S Network Portal Provider	has the meaning given in paragraph 11.1 of Section I (Data).
T&SCo Representative	means a representative of a T&SCo or T&SCos appointed to the Modification Panel.
Terminal	means the onshore terminal facility and all ancillaries between the pig trap at the Onshore Transportation System and the pipeline pig trap at the Onshore Pipeline Infrastructure, which is deemed to form part of the Offshore Transportation and Storage System and not form part of the Onshore Transportation System.
Termination Notice	has the meaning given in paragraph $\frac{17.1}{11.1}$ of Section $\frac{1}{2}$ (General).
Third Party Participant	has the meaning given in paragraph 2.1 of Section B (Governance).
ToR Proposal	has the meaning given in paragraph 12.2 of Section I (Data).
Track-1 Cluster Sequencing Process	means the CCUS Cluster Sequencing Process comprising Phase 1, launched on 7 May 2021 and Phase 2, launched on 8 November 2021.
Uniform Provisions	means all the provisions of the Code, other than the Specific Provisions, which apply to each T&S Network or part of a T&S

Term	Meaning
	Network, unless otherwise specified.
Urgent Modification	means a Modification made pursuant to an Urgent Modification Proposal.
Urgent Modification Proposal	means a Modification Proposal in respect of which it is to be submitted to the Authority that theagrees or determines should be treated as an Urgent Modification is required as a matter of urgency as described in Licence Condition [x]Proposal.
User	means a person other than a T&SCo who is for the time being bound by the Code.
User Default	means a:
	<u>(a)</u> ←General Default;
	(b) -Payment Default.
	(c) •Insolvency Default; or
	(d) •-Construction Longstop Default.
User Discontinuance Date	means the date determined under paragraph 19.1 of Section I (General).
User Facility	means a single facility or several facilities (where such facilities share a single Delivery Point) operated by a User connected to the T&S Network at a Delivery Point.
User Representative	means a representative of a User or Users appointed to the Modification Panel.
User Requirements	has the meaning given in paragraph 2.8 of Section F (Network-design and specification). means the requirements that arise from legal or contractual obligations of the User including requirements under support contracts.
User-Specific Data	has the meaning given to in 2.15.1 of Section I (General Data).
User Type	means: [x]
	Note: to include list of types of users eg dispatchable power, industrial, hydrogen etc.
User's Meter Readings	has the meaning given in paragraph 8.1(a) of Section H (Charges, invoicing and payment).
Variable Opex	means that part of the Opex (as that term is defined in the Licence) which varies with each tonne of CO_2 delivered into the T&S Network.
Voting Member	means a T&SCo Representative or User Representative appointed as a Voting Member, and the Authority, where the Authority elects to exercise a casting vote under paragraph 1.46 of Section B.

<u>CCS Network Code – Heads of Terms</u> <u>Section K:Glossary</u>

Term	Meaning
WACC	has the meaning given in the Licence.
[Weekly- Nomination]Warning Notice	that the meaning given to that term in paragraph 5.95.1 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Weekly Forecast	has the meaning given in paragraphs 5.14 and 5.15 of Section E (Network use and capacity).
Workgroup	means a group constituted of T&SCos and Users, and Third Party Participants which is convened for the general purposes of consideration and discussion of matters relating to the Code or a Modification Proposal in accordance with its Terms of Reference.
Workgroup Assessment	means an assessment of a Modification Proposal by a Workgroup in accordance with paragraph $\frac{2.9}{3.16}$ to $\frac{2.10}{3.19}$ of Section B (<i>Governance</i>).
Workgroup Report	means the report of a Workgroup in relation to a Modification Proposal referred to it by the Modification Panel prepared pursuant to paragraph 2.103.17 of Section B (<i>Governance</i>).

EXHIBIT A: CODE ACCESSION AGREEMENT

The Code Agreement will be signed by the Original T&SCo and the Initial Users, to give legal effect to the Code from the Code Implementation Date. Any User or T&SCo that is required to become a Party to the CCS Network Code after the Code Agreement is signed (i.e. after the Code Implementation Date) will become Parties to the Code Agreement by signing an Accession Agreement.

No	Subject	Terms
1.	Parties	 1.1 The parties to the <u>Code</u> Accession Agreement shall be: (a) a T&SCo that is already a party to the Code Agreement; and (b) a New T&SCo or a New User (as those terms are defined in the Code Agreement).
2.	Recitals	 2.1 The Code Agreement dated [date to be inserted], attached to this Agreement as an exhibit, gives legal effect to the CCS Network Code and makes the Parties legally bound by it. 2.2 The [New User/New T&SCo] wishes to be admitted as a Party under the Code Agreement.
3.	Interpretation	3.1 Capitalised terms used in this <u>Code</u> Accession Agreement shall have the meaning given to them in the Code Agreement and the CCS Network Code.
		3.2 Paragraphs [2014 to 2620] of Section 1 (General) of the CCS Network Code apply to this Agreement as if they were set out in this Agreement.
4.	Admission as a Party	4.1 T&SCo admits the [New User/New T&SCo] as a Party under the Code Agreement.
		4.2 The [New User/New T&SCo] accepts its admission as a Party and undertakes to perform and to be bound by the Code Agreement as a Party from the date of this Agreement.
		4.3 This Agreement and the Code Agreement shall be read and construed as one document and references (in or pursuant to the Code Agreement) to the Code Agreement should be read and construed as references to the Code Agreement and this Agreement.
		4.4 [The Carbon Dioxide Specifications and Measurement Requirements that apply to the New T&SCo's T&S Network, and that will become new annexures to the CCS Network Code upon the New T&SCo becoming a Party to the CCS Network Code, are set out in in the Schedule to this Agreement.]
		Note : paragraph 4.4 provides for a mechanism for the T&S Network-specific Carbon Dioxide Specifications and Measurement Requirements to be included in the

CCS Network Code – Heads of Terms

Exhibit A: accession agreement Code Accession Agreement

No	Subject	Terms
		Code.

[Schedule]

[New T&SCo's Carbon Dioxide Specifications and Measurement Requirements]

EXHIBIT TO CODE ACCESSION AGREEMENT

CODE AGREEMENT

It is intended that the T&SCos and Users who first achieve a Financial Investment Decision will sign a Code Agreement to give legal effect to the CCS Network Code from the Code Implementation Date. Subsequent parties – new Users and new T&SCos – will become bound by the Code Agreement by signing ana.Code Accession Agreement.

No	Subject	Terms
1.	Parties	1.1 The parties to the Code Agreement shall be:
		(a) T&SCo (referred to as the "Original T&SCo"); and
		Note : depending on timing and process, it may be that more than one T&SCo signs the Code Agreement on the Code Implementation Date.
		(b) the Initial Users.
2.	Recitals	2.1 The Original T&SCo holds a Licence.
		2.2 The Original T&SCo, with input from industry, prepared a document as the CCS Network Code which the Original T&SCo and all other T&SCos are required to do so pursuant to their Licence.
		2.3 The Original T&SCo is entering into this Code Agreement for the purpose of giving effect to and binding itself to the CCS Network Code.
		2.4 The Initial Users are the first Users to connect to a T&S Network and are entering into this Code Agreement for the purposes of binding themselves to the CCS Network Code.
3.	Interpretation	3.1 Capitalised terms used in the Code Agreement shall have the meaning given to them in the CCS Network Code and:
		(a) "Accession Requirements" means:
		(i) for New Users, the requirements to be complied with by a New User pursuant to the CCS Network Code before the New User may accede to this Agreement; and
		(ii) for New T&SCos, the requirement that the New T&SCo holds a Licence;
		(b) "CCS Network Code" means the CCS Network Code prepared by the Original T&SCo pursuant to its Licences, as modified;
		(c) "Code Implementation Date" means [date to be inserted].

CCS Network Code – Heads of Terms Exhibit A: accession agreement Code Accession Agreement

No	Subject	Terms	}	
			(d)	"Effective Date" means:
				(iii) with respect to each of the Original T&SCo and Initial Users, the Code Implementation Date;
				(iv) with respect to any New User or New T&SCo who is admitted as an additional Party to this Agreement after the date of this Agreement, the date of the relevant <u>Code</u> Accession Agreement;
			(e)	" New T&SCo " means a T&SCo who is admitted as an additional Party to this Agreement after the date of this Agreement;
			(f)	" New User " means a User who is admitted as an additional Party to this Agreement after the date of this Agreement;
			(g)	"Party" means:
				(i) the Original T&SCo
				(ii) the Initial Users;
				(iii) each New T&SCo and
				(iv) each New User.
		3.2	the (graphs [$\frac{2014}{1}$ to $\frac{2620}{1}$] of Section $\frac{1}{2}$ (General) of CCS Network Code apply to this Agreement as if were set out in this Agreement.
4.	CCS Network Code	4.1	made	CCS Network Code is hereby given effect and binding upon each Party with effect from the tive Date.
		4.2	unde perfo	effect from the Effective Date each Party rtakes to each other Party to comply with and to orm its obligations in accordance with and subject e CCS Network Code.
5.	New T&SCo	5.1	Acce a Pa	re a New T&SCo has complied with all the relevant ssion Requirements, the New T&SCo shall become arty to this Agreement by signing ana Code ssion Agreement;
		5.2		Party that has already been admitted as a Party e Code Agreement:
			(a)	authorises a T&SCo (that is already a Party) nominated by the Authority to sign and Code Accession Agreement with a New T&SCo being admitted as a Party; and

CCS Network Code – Heads of Terms Exhibit A: accession agreement Code Accession Agreement

No	Subject	Terms	
		(b)	[agrees that upon a New T&SCo signing ana Code Accession Agreement, the Carbon Dioxide Specifications and Measurement Requirements that apply to that New T&SCo's T&S Network shall be added as new annexures to the CCS Network Code];
		prov	py of each <u>Code</u> Accession Agreement shall be ided to the Authority within 28 days after the <u>Code</u> ssion Agreement is made.
6.	New Users		re a New User is connecting to a T&S Network, the User:
		(a)	shall satisfy the T&SCo that owns and operates that T&S Network, or part of a T&S Network, that the New User is connecting to, that it has complied with all the relevant Accession Requirements; and
		(b)	provided that T&SCo is already a Party, shall enter into ana_Code Accession Agreement with that T&SCo.
		to th to in	Party that has already been admitted as a Party e Code Agreement authorises the T&SCo referred paragraph 6.1 to sign and Code Accession ement with a New User being admitted as a Party.
7.	Ceasing to be Party to this Agreement		rty that is a User will cease to be a Party where it Discontinuing User.
			rty that is a T&SCo will cease to be a Party where longer holds a Licence.

EXHIBIT B: CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

No	Subject	Terms	
1.	Parties	1.1	The parties to the Construction Agreement shall be:
			(a) "T&SCo" (being the identified party to the Agreement which, in relation to each T&S Network or part of a T&S Network, shall be the entity that is the holder of a Licence authorising it to operate that T&S Network or part of a T&S Network); and
			(b) "User" (being the identified party to the Agreement which is the person other than T&SCo who is bound by the provisions of the CCS Network Code and delivers carbon dioxide into the T&S Network at a Delivery Point).
2.	Scope	2.1	The Construction Agreement relates to the:
			carrying out of work required to be performed by T&SCo ("T&SCo Works") and the User ("User Works") to connect the User Facility to the T&S Network ("the Works"); and
			(b) commissioning of the Works.
			Note: The the scope of the works will be specifically described in Schedules 1 and 2 on an agreement by agreement basis. However
			Note: for initial users, the User will be responsible for all works within the boundary of the User's Facility and the T&SCo will be responsible for all works to connect the T&S Network to the User's Facility at the boundary of the User's Facility. commissioning of the connection will be conditional upon commissioning of the T&S Network itself. For this reason, Schedule 7, dealing with the interdependencies between the two, will apply to users who enter into a Construction Agreement with T&SCo before the T&S Network achieves commercial operation. Schedule 7 may also be relevant in other instances where works to connect a User are tied to substantial expansion of an existing T&S Network.
<u>3.</u>	T&SCo Works	<u>3.1</u>	The T&SCo Works, to be carried out by T&SCo, are those works required to connect the User Facility to the T&S Network, up to the boundary of the User Facility, as more particularly described in Schedule 1.
		3.2	T&SCo shall be responsible for all costs associated with carrying out the T&SCo Works.
<u>4.</u>	<u>User Works</u>	4.1	The User Works, to be carried out by the User, are those works required to connect the User Facility to the T&S Network, within boundary of the User Facility, as

No	Subject	Terms	
			more particularly described in Schedule 2.
		<u>4.2</u>	The User shall be responsible for all costs associated with carrying out the User Works.
<u>5.</u> 3.	Carrying out of Works	<u>5.1</u>	3.1—T&SCo shall, acting as a Reasonable and Prudent Operator and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, carry out the T&SCo Works in accordance with the Construction Programme.
		<u>5.2</u>	3.2 The User shall, acting as a Reasonable and Prudent Operator and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, carry out the User Works in accordance with the Construction Programme.
		<u>5.3</u>	3.3 The User shall, in carrying out the User Works, comply with the User Work Obligations and any reasonable directions issued by T&SCo.
		<u>5.4</u>	Note: In addition to setting out the agreed design details, which will be included in the schedules, there may be some standard safety/technical obligations (the User Work Obligations) included as schedules the Construction Agreement. T&SCo shall, in carrying out the T&SCo Works, comply with any operational and health and safety requirements relating to the User Facility, which have been communicated by the User to T&SCo, and any reasonable directions issued by the User.
<u>6.</u> 4.	Design of the Works	6.1	4.1 Without prejudice to the User's obligation to ensure that the Works comply with the requirements of this Construction Agreement, the User shall provide T&SCo with the opportunity to regularly review the User's designs for the User Works and comment where it considers that such design may prevent the User Works from complying with the requirements of this Agreement or the Code.
<u>Z.</u> 5.	Consents for the Works	<u>7.1</u>	5.1 Following the effective date of the Construction Agreement T&SCo shall use its best endeavours to obtain in relation to the T&SCo Works, and the User shall use its best endeavours to obtain in relation to the User Works, all outstanding Consents. Each party shall give advice and assistance to the other to the extent reasonably required by the other in the furtherance of these obligations.
			Note: <u>Hit</u> is expected that all substantive consents will be in place prior to commencement of the Construction Agreement.
		<u>7.2</u>	5.2 Each party shall provide copies of any relevant correspondence and keep the other party regularly updated in writing or by such other means as the parties may agree as to the progress made from time

No	Subject	Terms	
			to time in the obtaining of relevant Consents.
<u>8.</u> 6.	Liaison	8.1	6.1—The parties shall continuously liaise throughout the Construction Programme and the—Commissioning Programme and each party shall provide to the other all information relating to:
			(a) in the case of the User, the User Works; and
			(b) in the case of T&SCo, the T&SCo Works,
			as is reasonably necessary to assist the other in performance of that other's part of the Works, and shall use all reasonable endeavours to coordinate and integrate their respective part of the Works.
		8.2	6.2 There shall be on-site meetings between representatives of the parties at intervals to be agreed between the parties.
		<u>8.3</u>	6.3 Each party shall deliver to the other party a written report of progress during each calendar quarter within 7 days Days of the end of that quarter.
			A broader forum of T&SCo and Users involved in the sioning of the T&S Network may be required.
<u>9.</u> 7.	Shared access	9.1	7.1—During the Construction Programme and the Commissioning Programme, the User shall provide T&SCo with access to the site of the User Works, and T&SCo shall provide the User access to the site of the T&SCo Works (and each case that access rights shall be extended to that party' employees, agents, suppliers and contractors) but not so as to disrupt or delay the construction and completion of the other's Works on the said sites or the operation of the other's plant and apparatus located thereon.
		<u>9.2</u>	7.2—Any access under paragraph 7.19.1 shall be exercised only:
			(a) where it is reasonably necessary for the purposes of carrying out of the Works;
			(b) with the prior approval of the other party (which should not be unreasonably withheld);
			(c) in accordance with any reasonable requirements (including safety procedures) of the owner of the site relating to such access.
<u>10.</u> 8.	Construction Programme	10.1	8.1 An agreed Construction Programme for the Works is included as a schedule to the Construction Agreement and amended in specified circumstances under the set out in Schedule 3, subject to any changes to that Construction Programme in accordance with

No	Subject	Terms	
			<u>this</u> Agreement.
<u>11.9.</u>	Commissioning Programme	11.1	9.1 Not later than [x] months prior to the Commissioning Programme Commencement Date, T&SCo shall provide the User with a draftAn agreed Commissioning Programme for the Commissioning of the Works.
		9.2	The User shall, as quickly as practicable and in any event within [x] months of receipt thereof, determine whether or not to approve the proposed Commissioning Programme (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed) and shall within such [x] month period either notify T&SCo of its approval or, in the event that the User reasonably withholds its approval, notify T&SCo of is set out in Schedule 5, subject to any changes or variations to the proposed that Commissioning Programme-recommended by the User. If the T&SCo does not accept such changes or variations submitted by the User any dispute shall be addressed in accordance with Section B (governance) of the CCS Network Code.
		Note:	Alternative arrangements may apply for Users involved in the commissioning of the T&S Networkthis Agreement.
<u>12.</u> 10.	Commissioning	12.1	10.1—Each party shall give written notice to the other declaring its readiness to commence the Commissioning Programme.
		12.2	10.2 The Commissioning Programme shall commence forthwith once both parties have given written notice to the other under paragraph 10.112.1.
		12.3	The Works shall be deemed to have been Commissioned on the date that T&SCo certifies in writing to that effect.
<u>13.</u> 11.	Delays	13.1	11.1 If either party shall have reason to believe that it is being delayed or will be delayed in carrying out that party's Works for any reason (whether it is one entitling it to an adjustment to that date under paragraph 11.213.2 of this Construction Agreement or not) it shall forthwith notify the other party in writing of the circumstances giving rise to the delay and of the extent of the actual and/or anticipated delay.
		13.2	11.2 If prior to the Completion Date a party (in this paragraph 11.213.2 "the Affected Party") shall be delayed in carrying out any of the Affected Party's Works (including their commissioning) by reason of:

No	Subject	Terms
		(a) any act, default or omission on the part of the other Party (in this Clauseparagraph the "Defaulting Party") or the Defaulting Party's employees, agents, contractors or sub-contractors; or
		(b) an event of <u>a</u> Force Majeure <u>Event</u> ,
		the Affected Party shall be entitled to have such later-date orany dates fixed as in the Construction Programme and/or the Commissioning Programme Commencement Date and/or_the Commissioning Commencement Date) and the Longstop Date (as the case may be) amended as may be fair and reasonable in the circumstances provided that it shall have notified the other Party in writing of such event within 28 days Days of it becoming aware of the occurrence giving rise to the delay together with an estimate of the proposed delay which it will cause the Affected Party.
		Note: Under Construction Agreements with some- initial Users, an extension to the T&SCo Works-
		programme (which includes the broader T&S Network)
		may need to be administered consistently across all- initial Construction Agreements.
<u>14.</u> 12.	Consequences of T&SCo delays	Delayed commencement of commissioning
	rasco aciays	14.1 In the event that the actual date of commencement of the Commissioning Programme is later than the Commissioning Programme Commencement Date the T&SCo (if and to the extent that it is responsible for delayed commissioning beyond the Commissioning Programme Commencement Date,) shall be liable to pay the User Liquidated Damages for each day that the actual date of commencement of the Commissioning Programme is later than the Commissioning Programme Commencement Date.
		14.2 Such Liquidated Damages shall cease to be payable in respect of any period after the date of actual commencement of the Commissioning Programme.
		Delayed completion of commissioning
		14.3 12.3 In the event that the actual date on which the T&SCo Works are Commissioned in accordance with the Commissioning Programme is later than the Completion Date the T&SCo (if and to the extent that it is responsible for delayed completion beyond the Completion Date) shall be liable to pay the User Liquidated Damages for each day that the actual date on which the T&SCo Works are Commissioned is later

No	Subject	Terms	
			than the Completion Date.
		14.4	12.4 Such Liquidated Damages shall cease to be payable in respect of any period after completion of the T&SCo Works.
			Note: it is expected that User Liquidated Damages will- be set at £0 for Users for the first regulatory period. The level of User Liquidated Damages for subsequent- regulatory periods will be determined by the CCS- Network Code Modification Panel.
<u>15.</u> 13.	Consequences of User delays	Delaye	d commencement of commissioning
	User delays	<u>15.1</u>	13.1—In the event that the actual date of commencement of the Commissioning Programme is later than the Commissioning Programme Commencement Date the User (if and to the extent that it is responsible for delayed commissioning beyond the Commissioning Programme Commencement Date,) shall be liable to pay the T&SCo Liquidated Damages for each day that the actual date of commencement of the Commissioning Programme is later than the Commissioning Programme Commencement Date.
		<u>15.2</u>	13.2 Such Liquidated Damages shall cease to be payable in respect of any period after the date of actual commencement of the Commissioning Programme.
		Delaye	d completion of commissioning
		<u>15.3</u>	13.3 In the event that the actual date on which the User Works are Commissioned is later than the Completion Date the User (if and to the extent that it is responsible for delayed completion beyond the Completion Date) shall be liable to pay the T&SCo Liquidated Damages for each day that the actual date on which the User Works are Commissioned is later than the Completion Date.
		<u>15.4</u>	13.4 Such Liquidated Damages shall cease to be payable in respect of any period after completion of the User Works.
			Note: it is expected that T&SCo Liquidated Damages will be set at £0 for T&SCo for the first regulatory period. The level of T&SCo Liquidated Damages for subsequent regulatory periods will be determined by the CCS Network Code Modification Panel.
14.	Programme :		if either party's Works are delayed, the Construction- Programme shall be amended accordingly.

No	Subject	Terms	
<u>16.</u> 15.	Longstop date	16.1	15.1—In the event that T&SCo or the User shall have failed, in circumstances not entitling it to the fixing of a new dateLongstop Date pursuant to paragraph 11.213.2, to complete the T&S Works or User Works (as applicable) by the Longstop Date, then such failure shall constitute a Construction Longstop Default and Section 11 (general) shall apply.
<u>17.</u> 16.	Approval for connection to		the Construction Agreement will provide for a timetable ns for the parties in the lead up
	become operational Requi rements in preparation for commissioning	<u>17.1</u>	Not later than three (3) months prior to the start of the expected Commissioning Programme_Commencement Date or by such other time as may be agreed between the parties, including—the exchange of parties shall provide to each other:
			(a) any technical drawings, and other details relating to each other's Works;
			(b) contact information and other matters provided for under the T&S Code.details of key personnel to be involved in the carrying out of the Commissioning Programme; and
			(c) in the case of the User, all information that the User is required to provide to T&SCo pursuant to the Code and the Industrial Procedures in order for the User to be able to commence delivery of carbon dioxide at the Delivery Point.
<u>18.</u> 17.	Becoming operational	<u>18.1</u>	Once:
	•		(a) T&SCo has certified that the Works have been Commissioned pursuant to paragraph 12.3; and
			17.1 T&SCo shall complete the connection at the Connection Site during the course of and in accordance with the Commissioning Programme and thereafter upon compliance by the Userwith the provisions of paragraph 16 and provided the T&SCo Works shall be Commissioned the the User has complied with the requirements of paragraph 17.1(c).
			T&SCo shall forthwith notify the User in writing that the connection shall at the Delivery Point has become operational.
<u>19.</u>	T&S Network Commissioning	<u>19.1</u>	Schedule 7 has effect under this Construction Agreement.
			Drafting instruction: Schedule 7 applies where this Construction Agreement is being entered into prior to System Acceptance of the T&S Network, where System Acceptance means when the Authority has confirmed,

completed T&S Network commissioning as region order to be able to commence commercial oper the T&S Network. Where Schedule 7 is not any then this paragraph 19 should be deleted. 20. Works relating to Re-use Service 20. Schedule 8 has effect under this Const Agreement. Drafting instruction: Schedule 8 applies whe Construction Agreement also covers any Works to the Re-use Service which may be provided to Users under Section F, and where details, such payment by the User for any part of the T&SCC relating to the Re-use Service, need to be set the Construction Agreement. Where Schedule is applicable, then this paragraph 20 should be deleted 21. 18.1 This Construction Agreement the ass Connection Agreement and the Code Agreem respect of the User) shall be co-terminus. 22. General Provisions 22. Paragraphs [14 to 20] of Section 1 (General) CCS Network Code apply to this Const Agreement. Note: this refers to the general boilerplate proving the CCS Network Code. 23. Assignment 23.1 Neither party shall assign its rights and obliqueder this Agreement except in accordance we provisions of clauses 23.2 and 23.3. 23.2 The User shall only be entitled to assign its right obligations under this Agreement to a third where: (a) the User also assigns the ownership operation of the User Facility to the third of T&SCO, which shall not be unreasy withheld; and	No	Subject	Terms	
Agreement.				in accordance with T&SCo's Licence, that T&SCo has completed T&S Network commissioning as required in order to be able to commence commercial operation of the T&S Network. Where Schedule 7 is not applicable, then this paragraph 19 should be deleted.
21.18. Termination 21.1 18.1 This Construction Agreement the ass Connection Agreement and the Code Agreem respect of the User) shall be co-terminus.	20.		20.1	Agreement. Drafting instruction: Schedule 8 applies where this Construction Agreement also covers any Works relating to the Re-use Service which may be provided to some Users under Section F, and where details, such as the payment by the User for any part of the T&SCo Works relating to the Re-use Service, need to be set out in the Construction Agreement. Where Schedule 8 is not
CCS Network Code apply to this Const Agreement as if they were set out in this Const Agreement. Note: this refers to the general boilerplate provin Section J of the CCS Network Code. 23. Neither party shall assign its rights and obliquenter this Agreement except in accordance with provisions of clauses 23.2 and 23.3. 23.2 The User shall only be entitled to assign its right obligations under this Agreement to a third where: (a) the User also assigns the ownership operation of the User Facility to the third provisions of T&SCo, which shall not be unreast withheld; and	<u>21.</u> 18.		21.1	18.1—This Construction Agreement the associated Connection Agreement and the Code Agreement (in
under this Agreement except in accordance we provisions of clauses 23.2 and 23.3. 23.2 The User shall only be entitled to assign its right obligations under this Agreement to a third where: (a) the User also assigns the ownershing operation of the User Facility to the third properties of T&SCo, which shall not be unreasing withheld; and	22.		22.1	Note: this refers to the general boilerplate provisions
obligations under this Agreement to a third where: (a) the User also assigns the ownershi operation of the User Facility to the third poperation of the User Facility to the third poperation of T&SCo, which shall not be unreasy withheld; and	<u>23.</u>	<u>Assignment</u>		
this Agreement.			_	obligations under this Agreement to a third party where: (a) the User also assigns the ownership and operation of the User Facility to the third party; (b) the User has obtained the prior written consent of T&SCo, which shall not be unreasonably withheld; and (c) the third party becomes bound by the Code and
obligations under this Agreement to a third where: (a) T&SCo also assigns the ownership and op-				

No	Subject	Terms
		and (b) the third party becomes bound by the Code and this Agreement.
<u>24.</u> 19.	Definitions	24.1 19.1 Capitalised terms used in the Construction Agreement have the meaning given to them in the Code and:
		(a) "Commissioning Programme Commencement Date" means the date specified in the Construction Programme for the commencement of the Commissioning Programme as specified in the Commissioning Programme in Schedule 5 or any substituted date fixed under the terms of this Construction Agreement.
		Commissioned, in relation to the Works, means that all works and activities required to be carried out in accordance with the Commissioning Programme have been carried out.
		(b) "Completion Date" means [] or such other the date as may be agreed in for completion of the Works as specified in the Construction Programme in Schedule 3 or any substituted date fixed under the terms of this Construction Agreement for completion of the T&S Works/User Works.
		(c) "Consents" means:
		(a) (i) all such planning and other statutory consents; and
		(b) (ii) all wayleaves, easements, rights over or interests in land or any other consent; or
		(c) (iii) permission of any kind as shall be necessary for the construction of the Works and for commencement and carrying on of any activity proposed to be undertaken at or from such Works when completed.
		(d) "Construction Longstop Default" has the meaning given in paragraph 1516
		(e) "Commissioning Programme" means the sequence of operations/tests necessary to connect the User Facility and Works to the T&S Network, as set out in Schedule 5 for the purpose of making the User Works Delivery Point operable with the T&S Network.
		(f) "Construction Programme" means the agreed programme for the Works to be carried out by or on behalf of T&SCo and the User as set out in Schedule 3 to the Construction Agreement or as amended from

No	Subject	Terms
		time to time in accordance with the express terms of the Construction Agreement.
		(g) "Force Majeure" <u>Event</u> means [definition to be developed].:
		(d) any event or combination of events or circumstance (other than the lack, nonreceipt or unavailability of financial resources or funds) which is beyond the control of a party acting and having acted as a Reasonable and Prudent Operator, and which prevents that party from or causes hindrance, delay or impediment to that party in fulfilling all or any of its obligations under the Agreement; For the avoidance of doubt unforeseen adverse weather
		(e) any failure by the party to perform its obligations hereunder to the extent that such failure was caused by any change in the law or cancellation of any consent, approval or licence rendering it unlawful for a party to comply with its obligations hereunder after the date of Acceptance unless such change or cancellation would not have occurred except for any act or omission of the party concerned in relation to such law, consent, approval or licence unless itself caused by the Force Majeure Event.
		(h) "Liquidated Damages" means the sums specified in or calculated pursuant to Schedule 5 to this Construction Agreement.
		(i) "Longstop Date" means [Note: To be stated inthe Construction Agreement] Longstop Date means [to be agreed on a case by case basis].
		(j) "Reasonable and Prudent Operator" means a person acting, in good faith, to perform its contractual obligations and, in so doing and in the general conduct of its undertaking, exercising that degree of skill, diligence, prudence and foresight which would reasonably and ordinarily be expected from a skilled and experienced operator engaged in the same type of undertaking under the same or similar circumstances.
		(k) "Note: where Schedule 7 applies, the Longstop Date relating to the Works will be linked to the Longstop Dates relating to the User Facility and the T&S Network" means a pipeline system for the transportation and storage of carbon dioxide, which may include onshore and offshore components.
		(I) "T&SCo Works" means those Works specified in the Construction Agreement for which T&ScoSCo is

No	Subject	Terms
		responsible.
		(m) "User Works" means those Works specified in the Construction Agreement for which the User is responsible.

Schedule 1 - T&SCo Works

Note: details of the T&SCo Works, including design specifications to be included.

Schedule 2 - User Works

Note: details of the User Works, including design specifications to be included.

Schedule 3 – Construction Programme

Note: agreed Key dates of Construction Programme

Completion Date: [agreed date to be inserted]

Note: other dates and details to be inserted.

Schedule 4 – User Works Obligations

Note: any general technical/operational/safety requirements that will apply to all User Works to be inserted.

Schedule 5 - Commissioning Programme

Key dates of Commissioning Programme

<u>Commissioning Programme Commencement Date: [agreed date to be inserted]</u>

Note: other dates and details to be inserted.

Schedule 6 - Liquidated Damages

1.	User Liquidated Damages	£[x]
2.	T&SCo Liquidated Damages	£[x]

Drafting instruction: in relation to any Construction Agreement entered into in the First Regulatory Period under T&SCo's Licence, the User Liquidated Damages and T&SCo Liquidated Damages shall be set at £0.

Schedule 7 - T&S Network Commissioning

Drafting instruction: this schedule is only to be included where applicable – see paragraph 19.

Part 1: Scope of this Schedule 7

- 1. This Schedule 7 applies where this Construction Agreement has been entered into prior to System Acceptance of the T&S Network, where System Acceptance means when the Authority has confirmed, in accordance with T&SCo's Licence, that T&SCo has completed T&S Network commissioning as required in order to be able to commence commercial operation of the T&S Network.
- 2. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Construction Agreement, the provisions set out in Part 2 of this Schedule 7 shall apply.
- <u>3.</u> The provisions set out in Part 2 of this Schedule 7 govern the interaction between:
 - the construction and commissioning of the User Facility and the User Works as required to enable the construction and commissioning of the T&S Network and the T&SCo work (including, where applicable, the supply of carbon dioxide for the commissioning of the T&S Network); and
 - (b) the construction and commissioning of the T&S Network in accordance with T&SCo's Licence and the T&SCo Works.

Part 2: T&S Network Commissioning

1. **Definitions**

In this Schedule 7, the following definitions apply:

Emitter Revenue Support Contract means a revenue support contract granted to an emitter pursuant to Part 2 of the [Energy Bill] or a Contract for Difference granted to an emitter pursuant to Chapter 2 of Part 2 of the Energy Act 2013.

Supported User means a User who has been awarded an Emitter Revenue Support Contract.

T&S Network Commissioning Plan means the programme established by T&SCo pursuant to its Licence, for the commissioning of the T&S Network.

T&S Network Longstop Date means the longstop date under the T&SCo's Licence.

T&SCo Delay means any delay in the construction or commissioning of the T&S Network and/or the T&SCo Works.

<u>User Delay</u> means any delay in the construction or commissioning of the User Facility and/or the User Works.

User Facility Longstop Date means:

- (a) <u>in the case of a Supported User, the longstop date under the User's Emitter</u> Revenue Support Agreement (where applicable), or
- (b) in the case of a User which is not a Supported User, [to be agreed on a case by case basis].

2. Specific provisions relating to T&S Network Commissioning

The following specific provisions will be included within this Schedule in relation to T&S Network Commissioning:

(a) T&S Network Commissioning Plan

- Provision for the preparation and delivery of the T&S Network Commissioning Plan.
- <u>[Details of the activities and responsibilities of T&SCo and the User under the T&S Network Commissioning Plan].</u>

(b) Notification of delay

- Provision for notification to T&SCo of User Delay and notification to User of T&SCo Delay.
- [Details of the process for rescheduling the activities and responsibilities of T&SCo and User under the T&S Network Commissioning Plan].

(c) Liquidated damages

- <u>Provision for liquidated damages to be set at zero in accordance with Schedule 6 in response to User Delay and T&SCo Delay.</u>
- Provision for T&SCo and the User to each be responsible for its own costs of rescheduling of activities and responsibilities under the T&S Network Commissioning Plan.

(d) Longstop date

- Provision for Longstop Date under this Construction Agreement to be set by reference to the T&SCo Network Longstop Date (as extended under T&SCo's Licence) and the User Facility Longstop Date (as extended under the User's Emitter Revenue Support Contract, where applicable).
- [Details of the process for rescheduling the activities and responsibilities of T&SCo and User under the T&S Network Commissioning Plan following extension of the T&S Network Longstop Date and /or the User Facility Longstop Date.]

Drafting instruction: T&SCo and Users to complete details of the:

- <u>activities and responsibilities of T&SCo and the User under the T&S Network Commissioning Plan; and</u>
- process for rescheduling the activities and responsibilities of T&SCo and User under the T&S Network Commissioning Plan

Schedule 8 - Works relating to Re-use Service

Drafting instruction: this schedule is only to be included where applicable. If the User is required to pay for any T&SCo Works to the extent they relate to the Re-use Service, then this should be set out here.

EXHIBIT C: CONNECTION AGREEMENT

It is intended that a T&SCo will enter into a Connection Agreement with each User in relation to the connection of the User Facility at the Delivery Point and the rights to deliver carbon dioxide at the Delivery Point.

In order to maintain the greatest extent of uniformity, it is intended that matters addressed in the Connection Agreement should be minimised and limited to those matters which relate specifically to the T&SCo and the User which could not be addressed in the main body of the Code.

It is contemplated that a separate Construction Agreement will govern the arrangements relating to the construction of the works required to connect the User Facility to the T&S Network.

Separate contractual arrangements may be required in the future for Users who deliver carbon-dioxide to the Storage Complex by ship, depending on what arrangements are made for that carbon dioxide to be delivered to the Storage Complex.

No	Subject	Terms		
1.	Parties	1.1	The parties to the Connection Agreement shall be:	
			(a) "T&SCo" (being the identified party to the Agreement which, in relation to each T&S Network or part of a T&S Network, shall be the entity that is the holder of a Licence authorising it to operate that T&S Network or part of a T&S Network); and	
			(b) "User" (being the identified party to the Agreement which is the person other than T&SCo who is bound by the provisions of the CCS Network Code and delivers carbon dioxide into the T&S Network at a Delivery Point).	
			Note: in the future it may become necessary to distinguish between different types of Users.	
2.	Recitals	2.1 T&SCo and the User are parties to the Code Agreem (being an agreement by which the CCS Network C is made contractually binding between the parties the CCS Network Code Parties).		
		2.2	This Connection Agreement is entered into pursuant to the CCS Network Code and shall be read as being governed by it.	
3.	Scope	3.1	The Connection Agreement relates to the connection of the User Facility to the T&S Network at the Delivery Point and the User's rights to deliver carbon dioxide at the Delivery Point.	
		3.2	Details of the T&S Network, the User Facility, the Delivery Point, Delivery Point Size and whether the User is an Onshore User or an Offshore User are set out in Schedule 1 sets out key User-specific details, which define the User's rights under the Code and this Connection Agreement.	
		3.3	Except as expressly provided otherwise in this	

No	Subject	Terms	
			Agreement, each party will perform its duties under this Agreement in accordance with the standard of a Reasonable and Prudent Operator.
		<u>3.4</u>	If there are any changes to the User contact details, Minimum Turndown Rate, the Minimum Ramp Rate and the Maximum Ramp Rate specified in Schedule 1, the User shall inform T&SCo as soon as is reasonably practicable.
4.	Commencement and Term	4.1	The Connection Agreement commences on the Commencement Date specified in Schedule 1, which is the date when Commissioning has been completed in accordance with the Construction Agreement.
		4.2	This Connection Agreement shall continue to be in force until it is terminated in accordance with the Provisions of Section **[] (General) of the CCS Network Code.
5.	Entry Provisions	5.1	The Entry Provisions that apply to the User are specified in Schedule 2.
		5.2	The User recognises and acknowledges that the Entry Provisions are designed to protect the T&S Network and to ensure that T&SCo can safely transport and store carbon dioxide within the T&S Network in compliance with its Legal Requirements.
6.	Installation of Measurement Equipment	6.1	In accordance with the requirements of the Code, Measurement Equipment has been installed at the Delivery Point to measure and monitor the quantity and quality of the carbon dioxide being delivered by the User at the Delivery Point.
		6.2	The details and schematics of the Measurement Equipment that has been installed by the User, as specified and approved by T&SCo, in accordance with the requirements of the Code (including the Entry Provisions) are set out in Schedule 3.
		6.3	Where Schedule 3 specifies that the User is responsible for the operation and maintenance of the Measurement-Equipment, the User shall do so in accordance with all-requirements of the Code (including but not limited to Section F (Network design and specifications)).
7.	Provision of Security	7.1	The User shall provide the Required Security:
			(a) in accordance with Section H of the Code, for an amount calculated by T&SCo in accordance with Section H of the Code; and
			(b) in accordance with Section E of the Code, for an amount calculated by T&SCo in accordance with

No	Subject	Terms	
			Section E of the Code.
			Note: user specific requirements for security that may be required in accordance with Section E or Section H could be included.
			Drafting instruction: the level of financial security under Section E has been set at zero.
		7.2	The amount of the Required Security to be provided by the User as the Commencement Date is set out in Schedule 1, as calculated in accordance with the Code, but this shall be revised from time to time in accordance with the Code.
8.	Capacity Allocation	8.1	The User shall acquire Registered Capacity to use the T&S Network in accordance with Section E of the CCS Network Code.
		8.2	The Registered Capacity that the User acquires to- deliver carbon dioxideholds as at the Delivery Point- may not:
			(a) be less than the Minimum Eligible Capacity; or
		(b)	exceed the Maximum Eligible Capacitydate of entering into this Connection Agreement is set out in Schedule 1.
9.	Charges	9.1	The User shall pay all Charges in accordance with the CCS Network Code.
10.	Variations	10.1	T&SCo and the User shall effect any amendment required to be made to this Connection Agreement as a result of a modification to the CCS Network Code or the T&S Licence, or as a result of an order or direction made in accordance with the Regulatory Requirements.
		10.2	The User authorises and instructs T&SCoSco to make any such amendment on its behalf and undertakes not to withdraw, qualify or revoke such authority or instruction at any time.
<u>11.</u>	Re-use Service	11.1	This paragraph 11 applies where T&Sco has agreed to provide the Re-use Service to the User in accordance with section F of the Code.
		11.2	Details of the Re-use Service that T&Sco has agreed to provide to the User are set out in Schedule 4.
<u>12.</u> 1	General provisions ± -	12.1	11.1 Paragraphs [2014 to 2620] of Section 11 (General) of the CCS Network Code apply to this Connection Agreement as if they were set out in this Connection Agreement.
			Note : this refers to the general boilerplate provisions

No	Subject	Terms
		in Section 1 of the CCS Network Code.
<u>13.</u> 1	Assignment 2	13.1 Heither party shall assign its rights and obligations under this Connection Agreement except in accordance with the provisions of clauses 12.213.2 and 12.313.3.
		13.2 The User shall only be entitled to assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement to a third party where:
		(a) the User also assigns the ownership and operation of the User Facility to the third party;
		(b) the User has obtained the prior written consent of T& SCo <u>Sco</u> , which shall not be unreasonably withheld; and
		(c) the third party becomes bound by the Code and this Agreement.
		13.3 12.3 T&SCoSco shall only be entitled to assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement to a third party where:
		 (a) T&SCo<u>Sco</u> also assigns the ownership and operation of that part of the T&S Network that includes the Delivery Point to a third party holding a Licence; and
		(b) the third party becomes bound by the Code and this Agreement.
14.1	Definitions 3 .	14.1 Capitalised terms used in the Connection Agreement have the meaning given to them in CCS Network Code and: Carbon Dioxide Specifications means the Carbon Dioxide Specifications which are stated to apply to the User's Delivery Point in Schedule 2. Delivery Point means the point of connection between a User's Facility and the T&S Network at which point a User will deliver carbon dioxide into the T&S Network, as described in Schedule 1. Entry Provisions means the terms and conditions which specify the requirements in respect of the delivery of carbon dioxide to the T&S Network at the Delivery Point including the Carbon Dioxide Specifications, Measurement Requirements and Local Requirements. Flow Rate means [the total instantaneous flow rate, in the form of carbon dioxide, expressed in tCO2/hour] that is being delivered at the Delivery Point]. Local Requirements means the

Exhibit C: connection agreement Connection Agreement

technical requirements that apply to a User Point or equipment, as specified in 2.Measurement Requirements mear procedures, methods and standards in place of the measurement and determination of the and delivery characteristics of carbon dioxide or tendered for delivery at the Delivery Point stated to apply to the User's Delivery Point in	Schedule ns those
2.Maximum Eligible Capacity means the Flow Rate on a tCO ₂ /hour basis, as set out in 1.Minimum Eligible Capacity means the Flow Rate on a tCO ₂ /hour basis, as set out in 1.Reasonable and Prudent Operator person acting, in good faith, to perform its obligations and, in so doing and in the general of its undertaking, exercising that degree diligence, prudence and foresight whise reasonably and ordinarily be expected from and experienced operator engaged in the satundertaking under the same or circumstances. User Facility means the Use which is connected at the Delivery Point, relevant, are more particularly detailed described by Schedule 1. (k) T&S Network means the T&S Network sechedule 1.Schedules to this Connection Agreement of the same	e delivered twhich are n Schedule maximum n Schedule minimum n Schedule means a contractual ral conduct e of skill, ich would m a skilled me type of similar er's facility as, where escribed in specified in specified in specified in schedule means a skilled me type of similar er's facility as, where escribed in specified in specified in specified in schedule.

Schedule 1 – Details relating to the User's Connection Agreement

<u>User</u>	[insert company details]
<u>User contact details</u>	[insert details, for purposes of notice provisions (paragraph 1.4 of Section J) under the Code]
T&S Network	[description to be inserted]
User Facility	[description to be inserted]
Delivery Point	[description to be inserted, as well as a schematic showing the location of the Delivery Point and the demarcation of the User Facility and the T&S Network]
Delivery Point Size	[the size of the Delivery Point to be inserted, expressed in tCO ₂ /hour]
Type of User by reference to the location of the Delivery Point	[Onshore User/Offshore User]
Commencement Date	[date to be inserted]
Required Security under Section E	[£ to be inserted] Drafting instruction: the level of financial security under Section E has been set at zero.
Required Security under Section H	[£ to be inserted]
Registered Capacity as at the date of the Connection Agreement	[to be inserted – note that this will also be recorded in the T&S Network Portal]
Maximum Eligible Capacity Minimum Turndown Rate	[to be inserted] Note: further consideration is being given to whether the Minimum Turndown Rate could vary depending on, for example, the season.
Minimum Eligible Ramp Capacity Rate	[to be inserted]
<u>Maximum Ramp Rate</u>	[to be inserted]

Schedule 2 – Entry Provisions

Carbon Dioxide Specifications	[which Carbon Dioxide Specifications set out in the Code apply to the User to be confirmed here]
Measurement Requirements	[which Measurement Requirements set out in the Code apply to the User to be confirmed here]
Local Requirements	[it is intended that here will be set out any additional technical requirements that may apply to the User' Delivery Point — e.g. any changes to the Carbon Dioxide Specification that may be agreed in accordance with the provisions of the Code]

Schedule 3 – Measurement Equipment

Details of the Measurement Equipment at the Delivery Point, including schematic with location of the Measurement Equipment	[details to be inserted and schematic showing location to be attached to this schedule]
Party responsible for the operation and maintenance of the Measurement Equipment	[to specify which party is responsible for the Measurement Equipment, in accordance with the Code]

Schedule 4 - Re-use Service

Re-use Delivery Point	[description to be inserted, as well as a schematic showing the location of the Re-use Delivery Point]
Re-use Delivery Point Size	[to be inserted, expressed in tCO ₂ /hour]
Re-use Meter	[details of meter requirements to be inserted]
Re-use Service Charge Rate	Note: the approach to charging for any operating costs associated with the Re-use Service is being further considered, but the rate is expected to be cost reflective and calculated on a basis applied to all Users in a consistent manner.
Access right to inspect	[details of User's access rights to be inserted,
equipment/infrastructure associated with Re-use Service	where there is equipment/infrastructure on a site owned or controlled by T&SCo]

EXHIBIT D: CDS ACCESSION AGREEMENT

The CDS Contract will be signed by the Original T&SCo(s) to appoint the CDS. Any T&SCo that is required to become a Party to the CDS Contract after the CDS Contract is signed will become a Party to the CDS Contract by signing a CDS Accession Agreement.

<u>No</u>	<u>Subject</u>	<u>Terms</u>
4		1.1 The state of t
<u>1.</u>	<u>Parties</u>	1.1 The parties to the CDS Accession Agreement shall be: (a) a T&SCo that is already a party to the CDS Contract;
		(b) the CDS; and
		(c) [a New T&SCo (as this term is defined in the CDS Contract)].
		Note : the details of the CDS Accession Agreement are subject to the terms of the CDS Contract itself, and will be further developed once the CDS Contract is developed.
<u>2.</u>	Recitals	2.1 The CDS Contract dated [date to be inserted], attached to this Agreement as an exhibit, appoints the CDS.
		2.2 The [New T&SCo] wishes to become a Party to the CDS Contract.
<u>3.</u>	<u>Interpretation</u>	3.1 <u>Capitalised terms used in this CDS Accession</u> Agreement shall have the meaning given to them in the CDS Contract and the CCS Network Code.
<u>4.</u>	Admission as a Party	4.1 T&SCo(s) and the CDS admit the [New T&SCo] as a Party under the CDS Contract.
		4.2 The [New T&SCo] accepts its admission as a Party and undertakes to perform and to be bound by the CDS Contract as a Party from the date of this Agreement.
		4.3 This Agreement and the CDS Contract shall be read and construed as one document and references (in or pursuant to the CDS Contract) to the CDS Contract should be read and construed as references to the CDS Contract and this Agreement.

ANNEXURE A: CARBON DIOXIDE SPECIFICATIONS - GENERAL

The carbon dioxide specifications shall as a minimum:

- (a) recognise that >95mol% CO₂ is the industry standard;
- (b) recognise that the combined non-condensable content of <4mol% is the industry standard with hydrogen and CO being minority contributors;
- (c) set the H₂O specification such that, and with sufficient margin, an aqueous phase is never present during any operational scenario, including transient operations;
- (d) ensure that impacts of all impurities in the CO₂-stream at all operational conditions are considered, when determining the maximum value of the saturation pressure. The MAOP shall be above the saturation pressure for that stream within the operating envelope;
- (e) consider the impact of lighter impurity components on refrigerated storage where the CO₂ stream itself is being used as the refrigerant;
- (f) take into consideration the impact of lighter components on the potential for running ductile fracture of pipelines carrying a CO₂ stream in dense phase;
- (g) ensure that the impact of the level of H₂ on hydrogen-enhanced crack propagation behaviour is considered, and that sufficient margin to crack growth exists;
- (h) in the event of a release of CO₂-stream, ensure that the local hazard associated by any single impurity component, is always lower, and with sufficient margin, than the hazard associated with the CO₂ itself;
- (i) note that in dense phase the concentration of an impurity in the released CO₂-stream can be different from that in the original fluid, which can result in a more corrosive mixture remaining in the pipeline;
- (j) where an impurity may be liquid or solid on release to the environment, the hazard associated with this release shall be considered;
- (k) where an impurity may accumulate anywhere in the CCS/CCU chain, the hazard associated with this accumulation shall be considered;
- (I) consider the corrosion risk of induced aqueous phases in the specification for hygroscopic components that may be present as liquids in a gaseous CO₂ stream, such as glycols, amines, and methanol;
- (m) consider this corrosion risk in the specification for polar light components that may impact the corrosivity of an aqueous phase induced by a hygroscopic impurity;
- (n) assume that the products of possible chemical reactions, either between different impurities in a CO₂ stream or chemical reactions between impurities and the CO₂, are present in the CO₂ stream, and consider their impact(s);
- (o) keep to a practical minimum the presence of liquids that may accumulate in a gaseous CO₂ stream;
- (p) keep to a practical minimum the presence of solids in a CO₂ stream; and
- (q) consider the impact of solid particles within the CO₂ stream on equipment such as compressors, and on the injection reservoir itself (if appropriate).]

ANNEXURE B: CARBON DIOXIDE SPECIFICATIONS $\frac{-\text{ECC}(\text{NORTHERN} \text{ ENDURANCE})}{\text{PARTNERSHIP}}$

1. **CORE SPECIFICATION**

Component	Limit	Units	Notes
CO ₂	≥96	mol %	
N2	≤4	mol %	* Combined total ≤ 4.0 mol%
H2	≤0.75	mol %	
Ar	≤4	mol %	
СО	0.2	mol %	
CH4			
Methane	n/a	mol %	
Ethane	n/a	mol %	
Propane & Other Aliphatic Hydrocarbons	n/a	mol %	
(Heavy hydrocarbons (C3+) shall not shift the dew point below that			
H2O	≤50	ppm mol	
02	≤10	ppm mol	
NOx (NO, NO ₂)	≤10	ppm mol	
Sox (SO, SO ₂ , SO ₃)	≤20	ppm mol	
H2S	≤5	ppm mol	
COS & CS ₂	n/a	ppm mol	
NНз	≤10	ppm mol	See footnote 1
BTEX	n/a	ppm mol	
Methanol	500	ppm mol	* Combined total 500 ppm mol
Ethanol	500		* Combined total 500 ppm mol
Solid Particulates (Max size of	<= 1	mg/Nm³	

CCS Network Code - Heads of Terms

Annexure B: carbon dioxide specifications (ECC)<u>Carbon Dioxide Specifications – Northern Endurance Partnership</u>

particulate: 1 µm)			
(Ash, dust, Na, K, Mg, Cr, Ni, Cd, Hg, Tl, Pb, As & Se)			
Toxic Metal	n/a	mg/Nm³	
(Max size of particulate: 1 µm)			
VOCs	n/a	mg/Nm³	
(Formaldehyde, acetaldehyde, dimethyl sulfide, ethanol)			
Acid Forming Compounds (Cl ₂ , HF, HCl, HCN)	n/a	mg/Nm³	
Amines (Max size of liquid droplet: 1 µm)	n/a	ppb mol	
(All, including MEA, MDEA, DEA, AMP, piperazine etc)			
Glycols	NIL	ppm mol	
(All, including TEG, MEG, DEG, propylene glycol etc)			
Nitrosamines and Nitramines	n/a	μg/Nm³	See footnote 2
(NDMA, NMEA, NDEA, NDELA, NPIP, NMor			
Napthalene	n/a	ppb mol	
Dioxins and Furans (PCDD, PCDF)	n/a	Ng/ Nm³	
Solexol (polyethylene glycol dimethyl ether)	n/a	ppm mol	

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

In addition to the requirements set out in Paragraph 1 above, the following requirements must also be met:

1.1 Max droplet size <= 2um (tbc)

CCS Network Code - Heads of Terms

Annexure B: carbon dioxide specifications (ECC)<u>Carbon Dioxide Specifications – Northern Endurance Partnership</u>

1.2 [All other components at detectable levels]

[Note: specific limits to be confirmed by ECC Northern Endurance Partnership]

ANNEXURE C—: CARBON DIOXIDE SPECIFICATIONS — LBA(HYNET)

Component	Limit	Units	Notes
CO ₂	≥95.0	mol %	
N2	4.0	mol %	* Combined total ≤ 4.0 mol%
H2	0.75	mol %	1110170
Ar	4.0	mol %	
СО	0.2	mol %	
Methane	4.0	mol %	
Ethane	4.0	mol %	
CH4	n/a	n/a	n/a
Propane & Other Aliphatic Hydrocarbons (Heavy hydrocarbons (C3+) shall not shift the dew point below that	0.15 in total	mol %	
H2O	50	ppm mol	
02	10	ppm mol	
NOx (NO, NO ₂)	10	ppm mol	
Sox (SO, SO ₂ , SO ₃)	10	ppm mol	
H2S	5	ppm mol	
COS & CS ₂	5 in total	ppm mol	
NНз	10	ppm mol	See footnote 1
BTEX	15 in total	ppm mol	
Methanol	350	ppm mol	
Solid Particulates (Max size of particulate: 1 µm) (Ash, dust, Na, K, Mg, Cr, Ni, Cd, Hg, Tl, Pb, As & Se)	1 in total	mg/Nm³	
Toxic Metal	0.15	mg/Nm³	
(Max size of			

particulate: 1 μm)			
VOCs	48 in total	mg/Nm³	
(Formaldehyde, acetaldehyde, dimethyl sulfide, ethanol)			
Acid Forming Compounds (Cl ₂ , HF, HCl, HCN)	150 in total	mg/Nm³	
Amines (Max size of liquid droplet: 1 µm)	100 in total	ppb mol	
(All, including MEA, MDEA, DEA, AMP, piperazine etc)			
Glycols	NIL		
(All, including TEG, MEG, DEG, propylene glycol etc)			
Nitrosamines and Nitramines	3 in total	μg/Nm³	
(NDMA, NMEA, NDEA, NDELA, NPIP, NMor			
Napthalene	100	ppb mol	
Dioxins and Furans (PCDD, PCDF)	0.02 in total	Ng/ Nm³	
Selexol (polyethylene glycol dimethyl ether)	NIL	ppm mol	

Footnotes:

1. NH3 has potential for significant solid particle generation in the T&S network. Quantification will be undertaken to determine extent of NH3 conversion to Ammonium Carbamate. Any future change would be subject to the Project Change Request process..

ANNEXURE D—: MEASUREMENT REQUIREMENTS (ECCNORTHERN ENDURANCE PARTNERSHIP)

Note: This section will be populated with detailed measurement requirements relating to <u>ECCNorthern Endurance Partnership</u>

ANNEXURE E—: MEASUREMENT REQUIREMENTS (LBAHYNET)

Note: This section will be populated with detailed measurement requirements relating to <u>LBAHyNet</u>.

ANNEXURE F: EMERGENCY PROCEDURE TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of an operational procedure for emergencies is to provide a means of deploying people, physical resources and information systems in a methodical manner to control an emergency.

2. INITIAL RESPONSE TO AN EMERGENCY

<u>During abnormal operating conditions, the decisions and actions taken during the early stages are critical to maintaining control of the transportation system. This section clearly defines responsibilities.</u>

3. EMERGENCY CLASSIFICATION

This section clearly defines define the level of the emergency to identify the level of response required.

4. OPERATIONAL ROLES

This section clearly defines the key accountabilities and command structure of the operational roles for managing emergencies must be clearly identified and documented.

5. **EMERGENCY LOG**

This section clearly defines how the Emergency logs should be defined and maintained by the various parties involved. For example, Strategic Response Team, Emergency Controller, Engineering Operations Controller etc.

6. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PROCESSES

This section clearly defines several aspects: Resource management, Network management, Notifications to Users, Isolation of affected Users, Network isolation User communications, External communications (including interaction with emergency and welfare services), Network recovery—recommissioning of Network and reinstatement of Users.

ANNEXURE G: COMMISSIONING PROCEDURE TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of the commissioning procedure is to provide a systematic approach to bring the T&S Network into service to deliver the desired function.

2. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

This section clearly defines the key accountabilities of the operational roles for managing the commissioning of plant, pipelines or facilities.

3. METHODOLOGY

The procedure(s) needs to provide detailed methodology to commission all items of plant, pipelines and facilities within the T&S Network in order for it to become operational, to include but not limited to:

- (a) Onshore pipelines
- (b) Offshore Pipelines
- (c) Compression equipment
- (d) Metering facilities
- (e) Operational Plant
- (f) Onshore terminals
- (g) Storage facilities

The procedure itself will detail the process to be followed to bring each of the components of the T&S Network into operation and the order in which they are to be brought into service. This section will include:

- (h) Commissioning requirements, not limited to:
 - (i) <u>Testing (test certification)</u>
 - (ii) Statutory Notifications
 - (iii) Operational settings (data sheet)
 - (iv) Isolation requirements (LOTO)
 - (v) Commissioning materials and equipment
 - (vi) Key responsibilities and resources
 - (vii) Communication plan
 - (viii) Certifications complete as required
 - (ix) Risk Management
- (i) Commissioning process, as required but not limited to:
 - (i) Cleaning processes

<u>CCS Network Code – Heads of Terms</u> <u>Annexure G: Commissioning Procedure Terms of Reference</u>

- (ii) Dry Commissioning electrical connection, component testing
 - (A) Commissioning auxiliary systems
 - (B) testing
 - (C) Commissioning checklist
- (j) Wet commissioning
 - (i) Introduction of fluids
 - (ii) Performance verification
 - (iii) Operational readiness

ANNEXURE H: ISOLATION PROCEDURE TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. PURPOSE

The Isolation Procedure will detail the requirements for the safe isolation of systems allowing safe maintenance, modification, or decommissioning. Safe Isolation is a key component of the system of work that allows tasks to be completed safely and without harm to people, unplanned loss of containment, environmental damage or damage to plant or equipment.

2. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

This section clearly defines the key accountabilities of the operational roles for managing, authorising and communicating the application and removal of isolations.

3. METHODOLOGY

Complex isolations may include, but are not limited to, work requiring isolation of single energy sources, multiple sources of energy requiring isolation, isolations required by multiple disciplines or organisations and isolations required for confined space entry. Consideration must be given to all energy sources, not just pressurised systems when assessing the complexity of isolations required to safely execute the work. Complex isolations should document the sequence of events to isolate the systems involved and outline how to prove zero energy within the isolated system and document how the system will be reinstated on completion of the work.

The procedure will detail the following stages as a minimum:

- (a) Identification of all affected plant
- (b) <u>Isolation process(es)</u>
- (c) Securing the Isolation(s) (LOTO)
- (d) Discharging \ de-energising the system(s)
- (e) Testing of the isolated system(s) and proving zero energy
- (f) Testing and reinstatement of system(s)

ANNEXURE I: MINIMUM DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS

Note: it is expected that this Annexure will be populated with templates, naming protocols, transfer intervals and methods of acquisition for what are considered to be key datasets across the network, eg flow rates, nominations, compositional analysis etc.

ANNEXURE J: INFORMATION PUBLICATION REQUIREMENTS

Note: it is expected that this Annexure will contain minimum requirements for granularity and frequency of data release in relation to information to be published by T&SCos.

ANNEXURE K: RETAINED DATA

Note: it is expected that this Annexure will list the categories of data and information, which is required to be retained for at least ten (10) years.

ANNEXURE L: CDS TERMS OF REFERENCE

Note: it is intended that this Annexure will be developed and will cover the key terms to be included within the CDS Contract, including but not limited to:

- <u>key scope and responsibilities, including provision of the Processed Flow Meter Data Statement in accordance with the Billing Periods under the CCS Network Code;</u>
- general standard of performance;
- duties of care to Users and the LCCC and requirements for the provision of collateral warranties in favour of such parties (including agreement to allow additional Users to accede to such collateral warranties and provision of the Processed Flow Meter Data Statement direct to the LCCC);
- process for variations to scope as new Users and T&SCos join the T&S Network;
- <u>limitations of liability;</u>
- <u>insurance;</u>
- <u>provision of access to relevant metering data by CDS and access to relevant CDS data by Users/LCCC/T&SCo;</u>
- <u>agreed data protocols for fixed decimalisation and rounding, including any necessary read across/alignment and compliance with the Data Transfer Procedures under the CCS Network Code;</u>
- <u>agreements around reflecting the outcome of any CDS Data Dispute in the CDS Management system;</u>
- <u>any licensing or usage requirements for relevant software; and</u>
- <u>the same permissions and access rights to CDS data for the LCCC as is available to each individual User;</u>
- anything else required by the User Requirements; and
- [others to be confirmed].

ANNEXURE M: INDEPENDENT VERIFIER TERMS OF REFERENCE

Note: it is intended that this Annexure will be developed and will cover the key terms to be included within the Independent Verifier Appointment, including but not limited to:

- <u>key scope and responsibilities, including provision of the annual verification report under paragraph 4.5 of Section F of the CCS Network Code;</u>
- general standard of performance;
- <u>duties of care to Users and the LCCC and requirements for the provision of collateral warranties in favour of such parties (including agreement to allow additional Users to accede to such collateral warranties);</u>
- process for variations to scope as new Users and T&SCos join the T&S Network;
- <u>limitations of liability;</u>
- <u>insurance;</u>
- the same permissions and access rights to information/reports prepared by the Independent Verifier for the LCCC as is available to each individual User;
- anything else required by the User Requirements; and
- [others to be confirmed].

ANNEXURE N: NETWORK PORTAL TERMS OF REFERENCE

Note: it is intended that this Annexure will be developed and will cover the key terms to be included within the T&S Network Portal arrangement, including but not limited to:

- functionalities required to support the following operational functions under the Code:
 - <u>the recording of the Registered Capacity of Users;</u>
 - the making of Forecasts and Nominations by Users, and communications by T&SCo in response to such Forecasts and Nominations;
 - <u>Capacity Constraint management;</u>
 - the issuing of Invoice Documents and Processed Flow Meter Data Statements; and
 - publication of T&S Network Data; and
- the Forecasts and Nominations function of the T&S Network Portal shall, at a minimum, provide for Users to be able input the information required under Section E of the Code, but may also include the following [information fields]:
 - the User's Registered Capacity;
 - any Capacity Constraints affecting the User's Registered Capacity;
 - input functions for Forecasts and Nominations;
 - <u>automatic caps to prevent Forecasts and Nominations above the User's Registered</u>
 <u>Capacity</u>;
 - <u>absent nominations notification process for day ahead either notification or requirement to fill in for submission to continue;</u>
 - <u>blocked out entries for hours passed;</u>
 - <u>confirmation notifications of hourly nomination acceptance by T&SCo simple as colour highlighted or specific notifications;</u>
 - <u>minimum nomination;</u>
- the same permissions and access rights to User-Specific Data and T&S Network Data for the LCCC as is available to each individual User;
- appropriate API for automatic download/transmission of relevant data to LCCC;
- anything else required by the User Requirements;
- [others to be confirmed].

Document comparison by Workshare 10.0 on 22 November 2023 18:11:59

Input:	
Document 1 ID	file://C:\Users\jbreme\Documents\CCS Network Code - Draft HoT - consolidated version (December 2022).docx
Description	CCS Network Code - Draft HoT - consolidated version (December 2022)
Document 2 ID	file://C:\Users\jbreme\Desktop\CCS Network Code – Consolidated HoT - Version 9.docx
Description	CCS Network Code – Consolidated HoT - Version 9
Rendering set	Ashurst

Legend:		
<u>Insertion</u>		
Deletion		
Moved from		
Moved to		
Style change		
Format change		
Moved deletion		
Inserted cell		
Deleted cell		
Moved cell		
Split/Merged cell		
Padding cell		

Statistics:		
	Count	
Insertions	3730	
Deletions	1516	
Moved from	0	
Moved to	0	
Style change	0	
Format changed	0	
Total changes	5246	